Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride RIDES

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Thursday, March 18, 2021 at 6:00PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



Ordinance #3: 2" and Final Public Hearing

Section 1.25 (4) Refusal of service. Refusal of service may occur only in situations
where a rider engages in violent, seriously disruptive, or illegal conduct; or represents a
direct threat to the health or safety of others. The District shall not refuse to provide
service to an individual with disabilities solely because the individual's disability results
in involuntary behavior that may offend, annoy, or inconvenience others.



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 2/28/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 893,985.48 *

1006 Payroll Checking 53,450.80

1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 130,748.13 -

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking 48,773.36 *

1020 LGIP - General Account 1,179,897 .40 -

1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 942,656.11 -

1040 Petty Cash 200.00

Report Total 3,249,811.28 0.00
Report Difference 3,249,811.28

Date: 3/1/21 04:07:07 PM

2\
4),‘3'

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

Page: 1



| :08ed 2oueLIRA % 198png (LLA/M Hodoy qOF A[YIuow W 95:€5:20 1Z/01/€ :a1eq

%0E°LE (0L'+8T°11) 00°000°81 0£°6IL'9 LYTFS 09°810°1 0I6¥ swoou] dxg [euoljerad( oses]
%6€°L9 (00°00S°L) 00°000°€C 00°005°S1 00°005°1 00°000°C 006¥ aWOodU| 58]
20070 (00000°1) 00°000°1 000 £€°€8 00°0 0Zsh swodu] SuISIIRAPY
%9 1€ (z0'122°20) 00°00$°T¢ 86'8LT°01 £€£'80LC L8'LOT] 015t aWw0oU] 1SI3IU]
%0070 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 000 £€7€€8 00°0 11877 awoou| - S12sSY JO I[eS
%10 %9 68°00T'81 00°000°S 68°00T°€T LY9IY 00°0 00¥¥ SWODU] SNOSUE[[30SIN
%000 (000050 00°00S°C 000 ££'80T 000 00€Y suonerad( sng [e103dg
%0767 (00 zE0°SED) 00°000°2€€ 00°896°96 0070 00°0 ShTy 01€S - SelD
2%€9'8¢ {00°906°C11) 00°000°¥81 00P60°1L 000 00°0 ovey () 11¢€6 - swe1n
%00°SL (00°526°91) 00°00L°L9 00°SLL0S 00°$26'91 00°0 0€Th ALS - suein
%00°SL (00°005°01) 00°000°TH 00°005°1¢€ 00°000°C1 000 STy YoTe]N U0D JuLRd V.IOMN
%000 8€'88T°LY 00°0 8€°88T°L9 000 00°0 12 dIAQD - SIue1)
%S 1T1 00°185°¢8 00°000°S6€ 00°185°8L¥ 000 000 0Ty [1€S V1d - swein
%0070 (00°000°160°1) 00°000°160°1 000 000 000 01z syrels) [ede)
%0t°01 (00 T8€°61¢) 00°000°TS¢ 00°819°9¢ 00°000°88 000 LEIY Areuona10si(y 411S
%81°8¢C (00 TzE81T) 00°000°v0€ 00'8L9°c8 000009 00°0 9¢1Y Aunuwos1auy LS
2%20°9 (00°791°€12) 00°1ZL v8Y 00°65S°1LT ST 081121 00°0 387 B[nuwiIog J11S
%S €L (0L €6v°T0) 00°000°68 0£°905°29 £€°€80°L 000 0€ly Xe[ [[01Ke ] 2]1S 1ISURL], SSB]N
%60 tF (99°L8%°95 1) 00°000°SLT PETISBIIL L9'916°CC SUSKT19 0zly ONUIASY LquIL] 18IS
%39°79 (18°62£°6) 00°000°S¢T 61°0L9°S1 ££°€80C 00°SIS°T 011¥ xe [, Auadold s1eax ised
%08 101 LO06TY1 00°000°056 L006T196 L9991°6L ¥€T09°S 001¥ xe], Auodorg
%08 S (P6SEP*56¢) 00°000°5L8 90°+9S°6LY L99I6TL v8 VL LE 020¥ ANUSAY 19B1U0D)
%S0 I (LSL¥89L1) 00°000°00€ 343 Nxd! 00°000°5¢T 9L LLSTI 000% sareq
%00°0 (00°€£8916°1) 00°S£8°916°1 00°0 00°0 000 00S€ [ende) Juniiom
SA2INOSAY
%99 ouBLIB A 123png w10, [erioy 198png potiad [en1oy poLag
138png [e10], 12 X JUDLIND jlisibiig) Jus1Iny)

12702/87/T USNoay [, [207/1/ woid
USWIONEIS [BIOUBUL]

LYSI uonBliodsuea T, Ayuno)) yooweji,



7 19%eq ueLERA 29 198png qLA/M Hodoy qOY A[YIuon
%LT 8% LY8SL L 00°000°G1 €S IPTL 00°0ST’l 66C1
%SP ¥l (9€°9¢€%) 00°000°0¢ 9¢9¢E ¢ 00°005°C 1S°€TF°S
2000 00°00S°L 00°008°L 00°0 00529 000
%81 0SLESYI 00°000°ST 0$°29%°01 £€°€80°C 00°0
%9L°98 LEV6S T 00°0ST°011 £9°669°¢6 0S'L81°6 (6v°L15°¢0)
%8S°19 96°¥16°506 00'T7S6°9S€°C PO LEV' ISH'T LITIV 961 SSI61°091
%I¥HT1 (€97¢18°L) 00°000°Z¢ €9°€18°6¢ L97999°C 000
%€£9°8¢ 8079881 00°009°S¥ 6°LEL'DT 00°008°¢ OF'E61°E
%9S°L9 £6'898°CC 00°005°0L LOIEY LY 00°6.8°S 09°'801°S
%87°9S 6v061°161 00°CSELEY 1S 191°9%C 00°9¥¥°9¢ TroLI'IE
%$0°99 YL'9T6' 1Y 00°00$°€T1 9T ELSIS L9 16T°01 €L°65S°8
%069 8 CIFIT 00°000°0L 79°785°8% £€°€€8°S 19997°¢
%S6'6S LE'8SS 8PP 00°000°0C1°1 €IV 1L9 €EEEEE6 00°079°%L
%6TLL £L°168°0C 00°000°76 LT801°1L L9999°L €€°00€°L
2%99°6$ LS YI9° LT 00°000°99¢ £1°68¢€°81¢ 00°005°0€ 9 0L6' YT
%01°LE (8S°€L9°0£9°) 00°LT6°1S6°8 reSTITe’e 85°€95°6TS V0'TLLTST
%I1LI (zs8¥Tess) 00°000°St6 87 1SL7I91 000 87'850°8C1
26000 00°000°¢ 000 00°000°¢ 000 00°000°¢
26000 (0098L°9%) 00°98L°9% 000 000 000
%000 (00°¢£8°1¢) 00°€8°1€ 000 000 000
%£9°€6 (00°000°01) 00°0S0°LS1 00°0S0°LY1 00°0 00°0

299 9OUBLIB A 123png [e10] [en1oy 193png poliag [eMOY polIa]

193png [e10],

1202/82/T Y8noay 1, [Z0T/1/7 woi]

Je3 & UL

licliilg)

JIdWRIELS [BIOUBUIL]

uaIny)

PLISIQ uoneyiodsue. I, )uno)) yoowe|[L,

0cIS
(A08Y
c01¢
101¢
001¢

§S0¢
€808
Ts0¢
1€0¢
0€0¢s
0ros
0€o¢
020¢
0r10¢

816%
Lley
9l6v
clov
L16v

Wd 96-€6:20 1Z/01/¢ =1ed

suonduosqng 2 san(g
Juiuue(q

QOURUDIUIBIA 2SI
uoddng aanensiuiwpy
$3D1AIDS [BUOISSIJOIJ

SIOIAIOS PUE S[BLIBIA
SOJIAIDG [9UUOSIad [B1O],

‘suf uonesuaduio?) S1ayI0p
BQDA [[0JAR]

JUDWIRINYY [[0IAR]
2Jedy[BIH [[01Ked
asuadx [[014ed
QOURUIUIBIA :[[0IAB]
SIDALI(T :[[01ARd

yoredsiq :[joiked
UoOENSIUTWPY [[0JAR]

SOOIAIDS [SUUOSIo]

$92IN0SY [BI0],

pung JILS Wol Jajsusi],
VIOMN woly ojsuel],

pun, J1S WOJJ 19JSueL],

'S YoIng "YIA WOLJ IOJSUBL],
puny [eJauar) Wol,] Iojsuel],



¢ :o8ed
%10°SS 0S°66L°1 00000t
%E9'+T1 (10'851°9) 00°000°5T
2000 00°00¢ 00°00¢
%566 wTY16%6 00°00S™ ¢
%00°0 (L¥'8L5"¢6) 000
%00°0 00000052 00°000°06T
%STH9 L6'EEY9 00°000°81
%000 (00°00£°9) 000
%000 00'80L°C 00'80L°C
%8719 0¥ bLL 00000°C
%TE TS 9G°6L9°1T1 00°000°0$¢T
%08°¢8 76 16£°8C 00°000°00¢
%L6'0T LTLBTST 00°000°C¢
%EP 19 99°8GS°L 00°009°61
%00°0 (€8°L8%°0) 000
%0L ¥ 00°69%° 1+ 00°000°SL
%807 SO ISL'TY 00°000°GS
%09°SY 00°09¢°1 00°00$°C
%E9 VL 9€°€LT 01 00005 0¥
%TL1E L19L8°8 00°000°¢1
%19°9L L0"80€°¢ 00°000°G1
%1S°L01 (00°v15°L) 00°000°001
%0€+8 68998t 00°000°1€
%S$°0S TEE€T0'0T 000050
%S S L6981°C 00000y

9,99 S0UBLIBA 193png 10

198png [ej0],

1202/8¢/C YSNOXY [, 1Z0Z/1/C WOl

doueLIBA 29 198png (LA /M Hoday qOg AlLuon

05$°002°C ceeee T8°SL
108S1°1€ £€°€80°C £9°99L°C
00°0 LY 1Y 0070
817686 v1 LY 1¥0°T €9°699°C
LY'8LS €6 00°0 01'¥61'8
000 00°0 00°0
€07995°11 0070051 $$°69C°1
00°00€'9 00°00L 00°00t1
000 L9°6TT 00°0
09°6TC'1 L9991 86VL
PP 0T8T £€°€€8°0T $0'890°81
90°809°1L1 L97999°91 A WARS
EL'TIL9 89°999°C $6'¢81
vEIH0TI £C°€E9°1 $6°6£6
€8°L8Y'C 000 00°0
00°1€5°¢€ 0070579 00°9LS"S
S6'8YTEl PEE8C Y (61°51.°7)
00°0V1°1 ££80 00°0L1
¥9°972°0¢ 66'PLEE L6SEL Y
£8°€TI'Y ££°€80°1 $5'88%
£6'16V°11 00°0ST°1 LY"09€
00 ¥1S°LO1 £EEEES 000
11°€€1°9T £E€86°C 0L°789°¢1
89°9L1°0T 00°SLE'E $0°000°C
€0°EI8] £eeee ST
[en)oy 198png pouad [emdy poliad
e X Eob:U Juanny ULy

JUQWOle]S [BIOUBUL]
pLYSI( voneliodsuea ), Auno)) yooweyyL

IrES
oves
0€es
00€¢
16C¢
06¢¢
.14
08cs
0Lze
09¢s
9749
oves
0ces
01cs
961¢
161¢
061¢
S8I¢
081¢
CLIS
0L1S
091¢
0sI¢
9489
(U8

INd 96:€6:20 1Z/01/¢ =21ed

urelA Afioe suonerad
Jreday] 29 Jurep Auadolg
$99,] 2582 X3 ]

asuadxg FuneradQ Aiadorg
esuadxg QIAOD

quo)) dunreiad( [B19ULD)
JUTBIA] J9JUS)) IOUSIA 29 JISUBL]
95BY I9JUDD) IONSIA 29 JSUBL]
pun, uoneaIday Io0qe TSN
a3e1s0g

asuadxq [ang

asuadxd 321y A

ururea] 2 [aABI]

asuadxy suoydsja],

192[014 SS90V 1SuBI]
ug1sa(-9y AMSqIM

Bunayre

UonRISIUIWIPY [0Y0d[y 7 Sni(q
asuadxq [euoneradp

asuadxyg pieog

asuadxq 20130

soueInSU]

SISUIDIT 2 $99,]

WY Pmdwo)

@Y wawdinby 30140



t :a8eg

duBLEA 79 393png (LA/M Hodoy qOg A[YIUoN

%00°0 00°000°0+8 00°000°0v8 000 000 000
%98°€11 (ST°651°%) 00°000°0€ SI'6S1VE 00005 000
%81°CL ¥9I1SL'8C 000S€°€01 9€°865 VL 0S°TIL'S 857209
%S58'¢Y 8Lvb891 00°000°0¢ TTssIel 000 000
%0070 00008y 0070081 000 000 000
%LT¥9 9€'6L9°C 00°005°L 79078y 00629 86°C09
%00°6¢ 0S°LESY 000509 0S°TISl LT¥0S 000
%07 001 (00011) 00°000°SS 00°011°SS £€°€8SY 000
%€EL 01 TS ISEV6S'T 00°€S1906°C 8 108°L1LE 000 81'8S0°1€1
%00°0  00LP9°0TO°I 00°L¥9°0T0°1 000 000 000
%000 00°S€8°10L 00°6€8°10L 000 000 000
%68'8¥ 00'1¥8°8€ 00°000°9L 00°6S1°LE 000 00651°5¢
%0070 00°000°01 00000701 000 000 00°0
%661 TS E61 6L 00°98L°0€6 81°265°6¢€1 000 81°668°C01
%00°001 000 00°0S0°G€l 00°050°S€1 000 000
%000 00°6€8°1€ 00°6€8°1€ 00°0 000 000
%l0°SL 00°LLYQ 00¥16°ST 00°LEV 61 €8°TPL ] 000
%00°SL 00°0ST°1 00°000°S 00°0SL°E 00°0 000
2%00°SL 00°LTT'S 00¥16°0C 00°L89°C1 €8°THLL 00°0
Yot - CUBLEEIS 008SST6E T B66LT6L8 91'tT6 6 SOTLYTL
299 QDUBLIBA 198png [e0], [enoy 193png poliag [BNIOY poLIdg
108png B0, Iea A JUaLIND slichii g} waun))

1202/8T/T Y3noayy, [z0g/1/¢ woid

JUSUI}R)S [BIOUBUL]

PLgsiq uoneLiodsura g, Ayuno) yooureq,

0009
0s¢es

8€€S
LEES
443"
0zes
0res

0816
SLI6
0916
0s16
0€I6
Oll6
0016

10¢s
00cs

INd 96°€5°T0 1T/01/€ o180
uonIppy Auswase[day sng
uoneaouy 2 Jreday] Suipping
saseyaind [ende)
201A19S 199(] [BI0],
M1AI9§ 192 d1LO
NVOTDAL dI10
asuadxg ueoT (qnd
1S2191U] :3SBa ] X9
[edrounig :asea X9l
20IAIDG 192(J
KepinQ ende)n
SIDJSURI] [B10],
feg pung Surpuy pajeudoiddeun
amyipuadxq aInin,J 10] 9AI9SY
pungd VIOMN 01 Iojsued],
QAIISIY J[IIYI A 0] IQJSUBI]
pung [BISUL) 07 J9JSUBI],
TSN Auadord 0y 19JsueL],
1€6S dIDT 03 Iogsuet],
SIgJsuel],
SjudWAe [B1oadg [e10],
syusidioay 01 syuawied LS
S1U1di03Yy 01 SIUSWARJ S
suswAeR ] [ervedg
SIOIAIAS PUE S[BLISIBIA] [B10],



G 28eq

QouBLIEA %9 103png (LA/M HodN (OY AlYIuo

%L6°CE 8'701°000°9 00°LT6°156'8 81°7T8IS6T 91'182°89¢ 69°LSLTLE

%LL'TI TEE8E086°1 00°0S£°0LTT 89°996°68C 0STITYL 859€9°6

%66 89°1€9°156°1 00°000°L91°C TEBIECIT 00°005°89 00106

%6¥°8C £8°691 01 00000919 LI0ES'SLT €EEEE’TS 00v£0°6

%bb € 00'1Z€°6S1 00°000°91 00°6L9°C 00°0SL°ET 000

%0070 00°000°9 00°000°9 000 00°00¢ 00°0

%00°0 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 000 L9911V 00°0

%00°0 00°000°¢0¢ 00°000°50S 00°0 00°0 000

%99 DUBLIBA 103png [e10] [enioy 198png pousd [eN1OY poLdg

198png w10, Iea ) 1uoLny L)) LTS

1270T/87/T USnoIy L, 170T/1/7 wolg

JUSWoJR)S [BIOURUL]

»Lysi( uoyeriodsues I, Ayuno)) yooweyi],

0509
0¥09
1209
0209
0109

INd 95°€5°20 12/01/¢ 1.

sasuadxy] [e10],
KennQ [ende) [e1o].

saseyoing [ende)) (101
s1oloig renden 1ay10
S19)1ayS/23eusis doig sng
o uonen3ueli] [[3) [on]
apei3dn J1oindwo)
uomppy Audwase[day uep



[ :28eq

oueleA 7 198png LA/M Hoday qOg Aqruonw

%L1°SE YTI8Y9 00°000°01 9L°L1S°E £€°€€8 €969
2%00°0 00°000°C 00°000°Z 000 L9991 000
%L0'SY £LTP 1HT 00°000°59¥ LTLES'€TT 00°0ST 1S 0€T9F€IT
%L1°88 LY YLLT 00°000°1 £5°6TTEl 00°0ST°1 €L1€0°T
%TESH L6981 00°000°% £0°€181 £eeee TsTe
2%00°0 00°00¢°1 00°00¢°1 000 007621 00°0
%ET €81 (LS191°Y) 00°000°S LSI91°6 L9991y 000
%80°6S PLS8S°Sh1 00°000°8L¥ 9T Y1 T8T £EEE8°6¢ 29'4L8°0¢
%000 (Ty'81¢) 000 Tr8lIe 000 000
%56°SS YLLLL'S 00°000°€1 9T TTLL €£°€80°1 ¥9°6L8
%y 69 16285y 00°000°G1 60°L1¥°01 00°0$T°1 960L01
%bL 6 CIE8T Y 00°000°011 L891L°69 L9°991°6 99'810°8
%L1°96 T1°¢86°01 00°000°CT 88 PO p1 €£7€80°C 9¢°SEY’ 1
%ES 81 U6 v 00°000°0¢€ 88°095°C 00°005°C 88°08¢
%5879 #1°998°501 00°000°68Z 98°¢EI6L1 00°0SL°€T 75°€60°61
%0T 6% (1979£6699°C) 00°008°LYT’S 6£€98°185C LYOIELEY 8 SH6'SeE
2000 007001 000 00001 000 000
2000 LETEY DI 000 LEVEY YT 00°0 00°0
%0070 0£T9¥°€1T 000 0€°29¥°€1T 00°0 000
%58 Fh (87°¢£6°¢687) 00°008°L¥T’S TL998°€SET LY9TELEY 8E°CP6CEE
24,99 DUBLIB A 103png [e10], [enioy 193png pouag [en10y poLIdJ
uvwﬁdm— [e1o], 1B X EME:U walnd juarLmy

1207/8T/T Y3NOI L, 170T/1/C WOl

JUSUISIRLS [BIOUEBUL]

PLysIq uoneiodsueay, A)uno)) yoouri,

0LI¢
091¢
0¢I¢
SPIS
oris
0zIs
001¢

€cos
£€0S
[440s
[€0¢
060¢
170¢
01o¢

(1697
[cer
LTOV
920v

N S0:¥5:C0 [T/01/€ -2red

asuadxg 301330
soueInsuj
SISUIDIT 2 594
Y Iomndwo))
A2y wawdinbg 29130
suondrosqng 2 sanQg
SIDIAIOG [BUOISSIJ0I]
SIDJAIOS PUE S[BLISIRIA
SIVIAIRG [2UUOSIDJ [RIO],
'SuJ uoresuaduo)) SIOIO A,

BQIA [[01e]
UAWAINY []01AB]
JIBOU)[BIY [[0IAE]

asuadxy jj01keg
19211pU] :[[0IAB]
UONRNSIUIWIPY [[0IAB]
SIDIAIRG [2UUOSIDJ
sosuadxyg

$901N0S9Y [B10].
2wooU] 1Sa19)U]
AIAOD - swuel)
IAIASOY YMN

ANUIATY YMN
$90IN0SY



7 9%8eqg JouBIIRA %9 198png . LA/M Hodny qOd A[YIUo
%0T SV 80'819°CL8°C 00°008°L¥CT°S T6'I81°TLET 99°91E°LEY €9°508°18¢
..XLw.mv vETE0°089°C 00°008°69L ¥ 99°29L°680°C £CE8YL6E €0 1€6°05¢
%v 1T 89°C8C°L 00°000°01 EVIVT £EEE8 16°9¢¢
%9999 00°009°1 00008 00°00Z°¢ 00°00¥ 00°00v
%85°6¢ Y6’ LYY IPT 00°000°00¥ 90°TSE'8S!1 geeee’ee 61°€6L°CT
%EEPYT 00°080°80T 00°000°LT 00°076°99 L9916°CT 000
%SL VY €6'1€0°196°1 00°000°0S5°¢ L0'896°885°1 (L97999°911) €8°6L5601
%96°LE 0¥'029 00°000°I 09'6LE £€°¢8 $6°601
%59t 1ELI8Y 00°000°¢ 69°C81 L991Y 000
%TC6'L8 L6'SIYT 00°000°02 €0¥8S°LI L9°999°1 STL6T'T
%IlIvE LT'886 00°005°1 LIS 00°¢T1 00°0

%99 DUBLIR A 128png [e10], [enOy 103png pouag [en)oy poLiad
193png e10] IB3 A Jualn)) 21N JuaLmy)

1270T/82/T YSnOI], 1707/1/Z woL]

JuauWIdIE)S [RIOURUL]

yLOSI(q uoneyiodsued I, AJUno)) YOOWe[[L],

00€s
182¢
L9T¢
99¢¢
S14Y
09¢¢
0ces
orze
081¢

INd SO:¥5°C0 12/01/¢€ @1ed

sasuadxy g0
SAOIAIDG pUR S[BLIDIBIA [B10],

asuadxq Suneledo Krodoi
Y 2P0
ISINQUIIYY 3L J9IUN[O A
JUWIDSINQUIYY 3TN JoqUIS]A]
uoneuodsuRI] paseyolng
a3eysog
Butures] » [oABI]
asuadxy suoydsjay,
asuadxq jeuoneradp



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Transaction Description

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee

16087 2/9/2021 4,728.63 ABILA

16088 2/9/2021 295.60 ALSCO - Portland Linen

16089 2/9/2021 376.73 BAUDVILLE

16090 2/9/2021 325.00 Burden's Muffler & Towing
16091 2/9/2021 850.00 WAVE

16092 2/9/2021 106.81 COMCAST

16093 2/9/2021 1,008.00 COUNTRY MEDIA

16093 2/9/2021 125.55 COUNTRY MEDIA

16094 2/9/2021 40.00 CENTURYLINK

16095 2/9/2021 100.00 ERIN RYAN

16096 2/9/2021 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat

16097 2/9/2021 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS

16098 2/9/2021 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN

16099 2/9/2021 50.00 JUDY RIGGS

16100 2/9/2021 3,415.49 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.
16101 2/9/2021 900.00 KDEP-FM/KTIL-FM/KTIL-AM
16102 2/9/2021 50.00 Linda Adler

16103 2/9/2021 1,913.57 LUM'S AUTO CENTER, INC.
16104 2/9/2021 134.06 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING
16105 2/9/2021 1,154.55 Marie Mills Center, Inc

16105 2/9/2021 22.92 Marie Mills Center, Inc

16106 2/9/2021 50.00 MARTY HOLM

16107 2/9/2021 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON
16108 2/9/2021 34.24 Office Depot Credit Plan
16108 2/9/2021 38.98 Office Depot Credit Plan
16108 2/9/2021 77.64 Office Depot Credit Plan
16109 2/9/2021 12.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES
16110 2/9/2021 122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN

16110 2/9/2021 122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN

16111 2/9/2021 53.76 PAUL NORTCN

16112 2/9/2021 58.97 PETERSON TRUCKS INC
16113 2/9/2021 838.89 PETROCARD INC.

16114 2/9/2021 76.39 PORTLAND GENERAL

16115 2/9/2021 39.54 Rosenberg Builders Supply
16116 2/9/2021 15,140.16 Sheldon Qil Distributors
16117 2/9/2021 49,95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC.
16118 2/9/2021 394.80 VERIZON

16119 2/17/2021 89.50 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC.
16120 2/17/2021 307.16 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES
16121 2/17/2021 567.58 CUMMINS NORTHWEST, LLC
16121 2/17/2021 96.85 CUMMINS NORTHWEST, LLC
16122 2/17/2021 185.54 DSU PETERBILT & GMC INC
16123 2/17/2021 473.14 FleetPride, Inc.

16124 2/17/2021 365.00 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
16124 2/17/2021 72.75 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
16124 2/17/2021 20.50 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS
16125 2/17/2021 3,046.08 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER
16126 2/17/2021 2,781.89 McCOY FREIGHTLINER

16127 2/17/2021 167.83 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC.
16128 2/17/2021 238.28 NORTHSIDE FORD

16129 2/17/2021 321.49 Tillamook Motor Co.

16130 2/17/2021 2,819.08 CARDMEMBER SERVICE
16131 2/17/2021 146.13 Fred Meyer Customer Charges
16132 2/17/2021 112.00 Tillamook County

16132 2/17/2021 460.00 Tillamook County

Date: 3/1/21 04:10:38 PM

ANNUAL SOFTWARE FEES
MATT SERVICE

FIVE YEAR RECOGNITION
TOW BUS 302
TELEPHONE

SALEM INTERNET
ADVERTISING
ADVERTISING

HARD LINE FAX

CDL PHYSICAL

BOARD MEETING 01.21.21
BOARD MEETING 01.21.21
BOARD MEETING 01.21.21
BOARD MEETING 01.21.2021
STIF PLANNING
ADVERTISING

BOARD MEETING 01.21.21
VAN 102 ENGINE REPAIR
SHOP TOOLS

JANITORIAL TRANSIT CENTER
JANITORIAL SUPPLIES
BOARD MEETING 01/21/2021
BOARD MEETING 01.21.21
OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES
DRIVING RECORDS
ADVERTISING
ADVERTISING

MILEAGE- COVID VACCINE
SHOP SUPPLIES/HOSE
FUEL

SALEM ELECTRIC

SHOP SUPPLIES

FUEL

INTERNET

TABLET DATA

DEF

SHOP SUPPLIES

SHOP INVENTORY

SHOP INVENTORY

BUS 204 WORK

SHOP SUPPLIES

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

SHOP TOOLS

TIRES

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
SHOP SUPPLIES

BUS 34 MAINTENANCE
BUS 202 REDIATOR

CARD CHARGES

JANUARY 2021

FILING FEES - TRANSIT VISITOR
CENTER

FEES FOR PARTITION PLAT- VISIT
CENTER

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

16132 2/17/2021 (572.00)  Tillamook County REVERSE INVOICES

16133 2/23/2021 1,010.10 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SUPPORT

16134 2/23/2021 170.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. DRUG SCREENING

16135 2/23/2021 700.00 City Of Tillamook TVC LEASE

16136 2/23/2021 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat FEBRUARY 2021

16137 2/23/2021 502.05 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEBRUARY 2021

16137 2/23/2021 1,498.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEBRUARY 2021

16138 2/23/2021 225.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS LEGAL

16139 2/23/2021 303.67 J. J. Keller & Associates, Inc PRE TRIP BOOKS

16140 2/23/2021 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS FEBRUARY 2021

16141 2/23/2021 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN FEBRUARY 2021

16142 2/23/2021 100.00 John Grover CDL PHYSICAL

16143 2/23/2021 2,612.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL/PROPANE

16143 2/23/2021 1,054.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL

16144 2/23/2021 50.00 JUDY RIGGS FEBRUARY 2021

16145 2/23/2021 50.00 Linda Adler FEBRUARY 2021

16146 2/23/2021 50.00 MARTY HOLM FEBRUARY 2021

16147 2/23/2021 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON FEBRUARY 2021

16148 2/23/2021 1,025.00 NATHAN LEVIN FEBRUARY 2021

16149 2/23/2021 986.78 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

16150 2/23/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation TCTD COPIER LEASE

16151 2/23/2021 44,92 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARN

16151 2/23/2021 30.90 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN

16152 2/23/2021 95.00 TOMMIE HUFFMAN CDL PHYSICAL

16153 2/23/2021 3,500.00 TRANSIT FARE POLICY PUBLIC QUTREACH/:
PLANNING

16154 2/23/2021 12,600.00 TRILLIUM SOLUTIONS, INC. ANNUAL SWIFTLY SUPPORT

Report Total 71,639.35

Date: 3/1/21 04:10:38 PM

Page; 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5615 2/4/2021 HAILEY FIELDS

5616 2/10/2021  ATU LOCAL #757

5617 2/10/2021  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5618 2/10/2021 PACIFIC SOURCE

5619 2/11/2021 HRA VEBA TRUST

5620 2/22/2021 ROY NIEDERHISER

5621 2/25/2021  ATU LOCAL #757

Date: 3/1/21 04:10:45 PM

Page: 1

o

£



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

2885 2/9/2021 2,141.24 AAA RIDE ASSIST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2885 2/9/2021 1,210.84 AAA RIDE ASSIST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2886 2/9/2021 340.00 BRYAN P. FITZSIMMONS, CPA NWR BUDGET

2887 2/9/2021 732.43 WAVE TELEPHONE

2888 2/9/2021 50.99 CENTURYLINK HARD LINE FAX

2889 2/9/2021 4,306.16 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2889 2/9/2021 3,624.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2890 2/9/2021 7,367.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2891 2/9/2021 5,791.20 METRO WEST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2892 2/9/2021 13,561.62 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2892 2/9/2021 13,672.12 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2893 2/9/2021 728.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2894 2/9/2021 9,217.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2895 2/9/2021 10,009.40 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. JANUARY BENEFITS

2896 2/9/2021 200.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR INDIRECT PR 011521
2897 2/9/2021 11,329.91 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 01292021
2898 2/9/2021 200.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. INDIRECT 01.29.21

2899 2/9/2021 10,431.36 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 011521

2900 2/9/2021 7,780.25 WAPATO SHORES PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2901 2/9/2021 3,598.00 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2902 2/15/2021 160.46 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA VOLUNTEERS

2903 2/15/2021 3,178.24 JANNA SMITH VOLUNTEERS

2904 2/15/2021 3,031.52 JOHN REKART JR VOLUNTEERS

2905 2/15/2021 2,900.72 KANDIS LIDAY VOLUNTEERS

2906 2/15/2021 606.08 LEANN CHUINARD VOLUNTEERS

2907 2/15/2021 3,498.93 ROXANNE ANDERSON VOLUNTEERS

2908 2/15/2021 3,086.44 SEAN REKART VOLUNTEERS

2909 2/15/2021 3,174.32 VAL HOLYOAK VOLUNTEERS

2910 2/15/2021 3,156.48 WILLIAM NERENBERG VOLUNTEERS

2911 2/16/2021 1,451.52 AAA RIDE ASSIST Provider Transportation

2912 2/16/2021 3,978.40 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER Provider Transportation

2913 2/16/2021 5,444.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE Provider Transportation

2914 2/16/2021 1,187.50 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT Provider Transportation

2915 2/16/2021 11,662.26 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE Provider Transportation

2916 2/16/2021 916.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT Provider Transportation

2916 2/16/2021 775.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT Covid Meals

2916 2/16/2021 1,259.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT Provider Transportation

2917 2/16/2021 12,017.75 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. Provider Transportation

2918 2/17/2021 646.78 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. JANUARY 2021 RENT/UTILITY
2919 2/17/2021 876.69 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CARD CHARGES

2920 2/17/2021 203.58 Fred Meyer Customer Charges JANUARY 2021

2921 2/19/2021 213,462.30 CareQOregon NWR GAINSHARE, Q2, Q3 AND Q4
2922 2/22/2021 0.00

2923 2/22/2021 2,017.68 AAA RIDE ASSIST TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER
2924 2/22/2021 3,135.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER
2925 2/22/2021 4,986.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER
2926 2/22/2021 13,137.19 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER
2927 2/22/2021 9,882.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER
2928 2/23/2021 1,502.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC FEBRUARY 2021

2929 2/23/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation NWR COPIER LEASE

2930 2/24/2021 176.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE AFTER HOURS PHONES

2931 2/24/2021 280.85 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PH: 503-861-0657 FINAL
2932 2/24/2021 10,286.15 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. Payroll 2.12.21

2933 2/24/2021 200.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. FEB PR INDIRECT

2934 2/24/2021 180.88 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS, DIST. FEB IND PAYROLL 2.26.21
2935 2/24/2021 10,242.73 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. FEB PAYROLL 2.26.21

2936 2/26/2021 2,772.75 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTAION
Date: 3/1/21 04:10:52 PM BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT Page: 1

|

-



Document Document
Number Date

2937 2/26/2021
2938 2/26/2021
2939 2/26/2021
Report Total

Date: 3/1/21 04:10:52 PM

Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Transaction
Amount Payee

Transaction Description

5,528.84 MEDIX AMBULANCE
312.50 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT
10,608.50 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST.

458,441.28

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

PROVIDER TRANSPORTAION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTAION
PROVIDER TRANSPORTAION

Page: 2

U



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 2/1/2021 Through 2/28/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
4370 2/9/2021 725.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL

4371 2/9/2021 3,000.00 DANIEL E KEPHART CARPET PROJECT
4372 2/9/2021 840.00 JINB MECHANICAL, INC. HVAC

4373 2/9/2021 464.82 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL 3RD ST
4374 2/9/2021 540.00 North Coast Lawn LANDSCAPING

4375 2/9/2021 382.49 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES WATER SEWER

4376 2/9/2021 167.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE

4377 2/23/2021 2,635.44 Tillamook PUD ELECTRIC AND LOAN
Report Total 8,755.70

Date: 3/1/21 04:10:59 PM

Page: 1



Date _'Vendor

02/17/21 |ADOBE ACROPRO
01/27/21 VIRTUAL POSTMAIL
02/01/21 FACEBOOK
02/03/21 FRED MEYER

02/11/21 FRED MEYER
02/16/21 ADOBE ACROPRO

01/29/21 |LANGUAGE LINE
102/01/21 |FIELDPRINT
02/02/21 ENDICIA

02/04/21 |/AMAZON.COM
02/08/21 /ADOBE ACROPRO
02/16/21 \USPS

'02/17/21 | BLUE HERON

02/02/21  TILLAMOOK COUNTY HEATH DEPT
02/04/21 |PACIFIC RESTAURANT

02/16/21 RAM MOUNTS

02/18/21 TACO BELL

01/27/21 |LA PROVIDENCIA

02/02/21 INDEED
02/05/21 /AMAZON.COM
02/11/21 AMAZON.COM
02/12/21 AMAZON.COM
02/16/21 ENDICIA

02/17/21 AMAZON.COM
02/22/21 |WERNER

102/16/21 |COSTCO

|UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 2/23/2021
|Description of Transaction

_ o DOUG PILANT
'ADOBE SOFTWARE .
POSTAGE

'ADMIN ASSISANT ADVERTISING
EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION

OFFICE SUPPLIES

/ADOBE SOFTWARE

1 CATHY BOND
'NWR TELEPHONE
'FINGERPRINTING
|NWR POSTAGE
' COMPUTER MONITOR STANDS
'NWR ADOBE SOFTWARE
'NWR POSTAGE

'MEALS/STAFF BRANDYS FIRST DAY

. BRENTOLSON
'EMPLOYEE MED CERT

'MEALS/BRENT AND EMPLOYEE MEETING
'TABLET HOLDERS

'MEALS/BUS DELIVERY

i TABATHAWELCH
MEALS/CATHY & TABATHA MEETING
'JOB POSTING RECRUITMENT

|OFFICE SUPPLIES
'COVID- FACE MASKS
COVID- FACE MASKS

'POSTAGE
'MONTHLY MEMBERSHIP

'MEALS/CATHY & TABATHA BOARD MEETING

| ~ CLAYTON NORRBOM
_ﬂs SANITIZING/CLEANERS

'STATEMENT TRUE UP

Em oo

$|€9€BG)

>

1222.24

28.46
214.74
12.23
63570
179.75
24.99
12.99.

~ 33.93
1,142.79

69‘99 %

|€ﬂm

~ 119.21
119.21

‘Gﬁ%

Charges total' $  3,105.29
Grand Total, $

3,105.29

APPROVAL

DATE 3-%- &l




£l umpaua BANK

February 2021 Statement

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 0014639460)

New Balance =~ $3,105.28
Minimum Payment Due ~ $32.00
PaymentDueDate  03/22/2021
Reward Points
Earned This Statement 3,158
Reward Center Balance 74,2486

as of 02/22/2021
For details, see your rewards summary.

Far-| Mail payment coupon
l © | witha check

Payment Options:

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

Page 10f 5
Account: 7790
Cardmernber Service (' 1-866-552-8855
BUS 30 ELN 8 3 15
Activity Summary
Previous Balance s $3,695.76
Payments - $3,695.77CR
Other Credits - $27.18cr
Purchases + $3,132.47
Balance Transfers $0.00
Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
Fees Charged $0.00
Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $3,105.28
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $32.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,894.72
Days in Billing Period : 25
Pay online at Pay by phone

1-866-562-8865

]
\,\.‘: . myaccountaccess.con (
= ¥

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to. Cardmember Service CPN 001469460
Account Number 790
Payment Due Date 3/22/2021
New Balance $3,105.28
Minimum Payment Due $32.00

(: . to pay by phone
. to change your address

000032165 01 SP 000638735144193 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

lebityrp Pl et g oD eI g g 1)

Amount Enclosed 3

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

|/



% UMPQUA BANK

February 2021 Statement 01/26/2021 - 02/23/2021 Page 2 of 5

. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service (' 1-866-552-8855

Visa Business Rewards Company Card

Rewards Center Activity as of 02/22/2021
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 74,246

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statermment to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 3,051 6,595
(Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 107 407
Total Earned 3,158 7,002

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Manday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Important Messages

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay youw new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the Mobile App or manage your account
online. Link your card to PayPal today.

We have added Mobile Authentication and Cellular Phone Contact Policy to
and made changes to the Arbitration Agreement in your account agreement.
Please visit card. myaccountaccess.com/agreementchanges to review.

If you have any questions, call the number on the back of your card.

PAY TAXES WITH YOUR CARD. It's a fast, easy and secure way to pay your federal and state taxes. FAST
- Pay instantly online. EASY - Your payment is processed right away and confirmed with an electronic
receipt. SECURE - No worries about your payment getting lost or stolen in the mail. REWARDING - You will
earn points for every net dollar you pay on your taxes with your card. Learn mare at officialpayments.com.

Transactions  PILANT,.DOUGLAS = e .  Credit Limit $5000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
. __ Other Credits
02/17 02/16 1541 ADQOBE ACROPRO SUBS 4085366000 CA $27.18cr

MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN
Purchases and Other Debits

01/27 01/27 8242 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL.COM 909-235-6245 CA $25.00
02/01 0131 7554 FACEBK EBMMLZ22V2  650-5434800 CA $38.72
02/03 02/02 6041 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK  OR $214.75
02/11 02/10 8001 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR $114.92
02/16 02/15 1576 ADOBE *800-833-6687 ADOBE LY/ENUS CA $359.88
Continued on Next Page ‘ g



UMPQUA BANK

February 2021 Statement 01/26/2021 - 02/23/2021

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Cardmember Service

Page 30of 5

( 1-866-552-8855

Transactions

PILANT DOUGLAS

Credit Limit $5000

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
Total for Account 7808 $726.09
Transactions  BOND GCATHY Credit Limit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
F Purchases and Other Debits e :
01/29 01/28 9834 |LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $126.40
02/01 01/30 4528 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
02/03 02/02 9876 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $9.95
02/04 02/03 9293 AMZN Mktp US*MY77HO1H3 Amzn.com/bill WA $529.73
02/08 02/05 4052 ADOBE ACROPRO SUBS  408-536-6000 CA $24.99
02/16 02/13 9575 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC $100.00
02/17 02/15 8065 BLUE HERON FRENCHCH TILLAMOOK OR $91.39
Total for Accouni ! 2022 $894.96
Transactions WELCH TABATHA Credit Limit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
e Purchases and Other Debits :
01/26 0952 LA PROVIDENCIA TILLAMOOK  OR $28.46
02/02 02/01 0510 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT $214.74
02/05 02/04 8137 AMZN Mkip US*OF3195X93 Amzn.com/bill WA $12.23
02/11 02/10 3032 AMZN Mktp US*Y23000183 Amzn.com/bill WA $635.70
02/12 02/11 7698 AMZN Mkip US*QJ7Z64FF3 Amzn.com/hill WA $179.75
02/16 02/15 6554 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA $24 .99
02/17 02/16 0744 Amazon Prime*IA7K94IG3 Amzn.com/bill WA $12.99
02/22 02/18 3836 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOOK OR $33.93
Total for Account 41486 $1,142.79

Transactions

Post
Date

02/02
02/04
02/16
02/18

Trans
Date

02/01
02/02
02/11
02/16

OLSON,BRENT

Ref #

2737
0115
8140
0554

Transaction Description

Purchases and Other Debits
TILLAMOOK COUNTY HEALT TILLAMOOK OR
PACIFICRESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR
NPI/RAM MOUNTS 206-763-8361 WA

TACQO BELL #29729 LINCOLN CIiTY OR
Total for Account 2649

Continued on Next Page

Credit Limit $3000

Amount

$95.00
$20.00
$102.24
$5.00
$222.24

Notation

14



@ UMPQOUA BANK

February 2021 Statement 01/26/2021 - 02/23/2021 Page 4 of 5
Cardmember Service [ 1-866-552-8855

Transactions  NORRBOM.CLAYTON | Credit Limit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
: Purchases and Other Debits

02/16 02/13 8804 COSTCO WHSE #1059 WARRENTON OR $119.21
Total for Account 5675 $119.21

Transactions BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
. R o Payments and Other Credits '
0217 02117 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $376.69cr
02/17 02/17 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $2,819.08¢cr
Total for Account 7790 $3,695.77¢cr

2021 Totals Year-to-Date

Total Fees Charged in 2021 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2021 $0.00

Interest Charge Calculation

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future transactions.

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subjectto Interest Percentage with
Balance Type 8y Type interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
*BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 12.24%
*PURCHASES $3,105.28 $0 00 YES $6.00 12 24%
ADVANCES S0.00 $0 00 YES $0.00 23.99%

Continued on Next Page 2 O



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT FEB 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE FEB FEB YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 20-21 FY 19-20 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 755 1,011 6,407 8,453 -24.2%
NW Rides 581 681 3,642 5,908 -38.4%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,336 1,692 10,049 14,361 -30.0%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,510 3,842 21,146 30,085 -29.7%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 482 906 3,589 5,566 -35.3%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 1,715 2,872 15,342 24,138 -36.4%
Rt 4. Lincoln City 715 1,316 6,242 11,664 -46.5%
Local Fixed Rt Total 5,422 8,936 46,329 71,453 -35.2%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 340 719 3,472 6,712 -48.3%
Rt 60X: Salem 538 1,018 4,494 7,939 -43.4%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 273 478 2,166 3,613 -40.0%
Inter City Total 1,151 2,215 10,132 18,264 ~44.5%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 53 117 308 882 -65.1%
Special Bus Operations 0 0 516 1,327 -61.1%
Other Services Total 53 117 824 2,209 -62.7%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 7,962 12,960 67,334 106,287 -36.6%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 3,925 214 35,843 57,323 -37.5%
Senior/Disabled 2,173 1,069 26,965 41,318 -34.7%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 528 53 4,525 7,647 -40.8%
Total 6,626 1,336 67,334 106,287 -36.6%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 55§ 473 687 -31.1%
Tillamook Bay Community College 150| 1,069 1,796 -40.5%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 40 563 1,055 -46.6%
NW Rides | 537 3,278 5,308 -38.2%
Helping Hands Shuttle 34 321 1,111 -71.1%

3/12/2021

01-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT.xIsx 9

Z.



Tillamook County Transportation District Feb 2021

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Feb-20 1.6 53.8% 77.42
Nov-20 1.5 44.9% 87.54
Dec-20 1.5 44.9% 87.54
Jan-21 1.5 47.4% 87.88
Feb-21 1.5 50.9% 86.63
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36
Deviated Fixed Routes
Feb-20 6.1 8.4% 76.91
Nov-20 4.0 4.6% 83.03
Dec-20 3.9 4.6% 88.26
Jan-21 3.9 4.5% 88.60
Feb-21 3.9 4.6% 87.16
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Feb-20 3.1 17.3% 86.61
Nov-20 1.8 9.5% 93.37
Dec-20 1.7 8.6% 100.43
Jan-21 1.7 8.3% 102.56
Feb-21 1.7 8.4% 99.36
STANDARD 29 31.5% 72.86
Other Services
Feb-20 5.4 9.6% 67.50
Nov-20 2.6 0.7% 74.37
Dec-20 2.6 0.7% 77.66
Jan-21 2.7 0.9% 75.91
Feb-21 2.7 1.1% 74.49
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 67.00

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations

L)



| ebeg % 6e IWZ'G0LL 1800 1080 ¢ JOqE | ‘OBESI [E10L
1951 zL's ¥0°0 %bLL YLz 8L68 1967202 |0vL'20S  ZHL'EL  |0L0'6LL'L 8S0°SSP  |SZL'EV®  8/56Z  98G'PZ  |pEE.9  28L'G8E | Sedlmles QLDL [E10L
280 €0 v00 %Lt ¢ vl 9%0¢tc  |98c G 968 SEavL  6vee 8Ll S (2 0re 728 552 S80IAIBS JAUI0 [E10L
000 000 €00 %070 €2 evvl 902'9F  |6e8E 679 L090r 229t 662°C 73 vee 915 0 UoReredo sng (e1o8dg
662 €80 50°0 %0y 9¢ 25Vl 65E'9 157 e €E0'Y zz9 6.8 98l g8 80¢ cterd sseddu ]
Se0IAI98 19010
I£8 Yo Z00 %v 8 IL 9666 981988 |vivOEl G90ZL  |80696C  8cLevk |0SL+0Z V969 006'S ZELOF 20067 Kiomeu] (€101
€92 891 200 %92 91 0666 GEveer  [818 0 800% 50669 0L vE  |66rer Wit 98E L T ANE =X SpUGY PUBID X0Z
€29 00°€ z0°0 %Z'9 L'z 9LL0L  |80Z'8lz  [90L'8  £62'9  |ZE¥'80L  ZULE'SS  |LlK'BL 9997 oLz |ver'y 89v'Cl waes X09
9s°€L 816 200 %6EL SL 8E6 Zvo'ezz  [6v6'08  £08'9 996°/LL  €ZE'ES  |098°SL  89GT 25e2 ziv'e 688'LE pUELOd G0
R
76¢€ ot 00 %9V 6€  9LZ8  |cvh0S0') |veC'96Z  Z6F¥E  |P6L89S  ZIZ L0Z |9/6v8C OELEl €281l  |6280b  ce6 9o SN0y potenad [E101
CES WA Z00 %07 ZCZ 856 |[2589z |b9g19  L0b8 IBEZEL  vev'99  |096€6  6IE€T 108 v 9 089°0F D UIo3UN 70
ey 9zl #00 %0°G s 0688 06E'68E  [0/2'68  699'ZL  |S20°20Z  9Zv'08  |p99'ELL 008 08e'y Zre'sL  /8S'6k euezue €0
92T Lok €00 %LZ zZz  1e68 996'9eL  [80E°LE 089 S99's.  €96'vZ  |08z'sE  SSLT 109} 665° €29’ SpISUBSIO/SUEISN Z0
9y €90 60°0 %9'G 0L 09LL 6S6'SEZ (660G 9628 |vEl'evh  bvE'e  |esv'lr 9spE L0’ oLz 29zel doo umo] 1o
30y palensg
oLy 9.°8¢ 700 %6 05 ST £998 189795 |GvLOE} GS6'8F |66 608 ¥G280L |cPBESh  oive €559 6700l £.68%¢C dva B0 L
1£69 6L 500 AW 0L Zges IBEYVE [1G6'8Z  v8OLL  |GIL18F  1Ec€Z  |96rE0l  8L0G 268 ot 785592 Sopld MN
098 59°€ €00 %S0} v’z 90728 90e'€7z  |PBL'LS 1482 §19'82L  €Z9SE  |9vE'0S  bSv'E V22 10v°9 LBE'EZ apiy-v-feid
SIAIES SPVEId
(g) InoH ($)s1800  s180D ol SINOH () uny/eInoY
s B mead oo oo e | Caer? | G 9190 | “pesen  pasen | sowas 2O omas | ¥25 snuanay
P s v $/ d xogoieq d  Apnoy jelol | waipul O | funoy  sbeewy | aix PEAAMA g ) Q2 el
YAV ALANES 120 984 iyl

1202/0202 Ad [enjoy
9OUBULIOLIdd PUE SO1IS1JB)S 3)2(Q-0}-1BdA jousig uonepodsuel | Ajunos yoouwe|ji



Z abeg
%1€ S9p's9 18€°202°T 916'L¥LZ | %E6- [01S°2- 985°vZ S60°22 %9°9¢- |€56°8¢E- vee’L9 182'901  [%0°62- 08S°ZG)- 28L'S8E  19.°Z¥S Sadla1eg Lol 1ejolL
%9'9L-  [18Gp- 990°ce 1¥9°/¢ %y v |00L- oLe oly %229 |S8EL- vZ8 602°C %Y 06- [L6EC- 74 9v9'c S80IAI8S JBUJO [B10 L
%y 0L~ [8v6°L- 90291 59'81 %8°LL-  |6F- vee €.2 %L19- |L18- 916 /eg'L %0°00i- |0¥0'c- 0 0v0' uonesadQ sng [e|oadg
%€E'62- |€€9°C- 6GE'9 £66'8 %928 |G S8 pANS %S9~ |VLG- 80¢ 288 %625~ |1GE- §sc 909 steddi |
EERIVEISEEINTe)
%LYL  |P66'VL 981'98S  LBL'LIS %00 |2 006'S 206°S %S Py- |CeL'8- ZeL0L 92’8l %Svy- |99€'6E-  200'6Y 8G£88 Apdig)uy (elo L
%9vL  |2S9'LL 9e¥'8EL  ¥8L°0CL %LV |Se- 98€°L oL %0°0p- [L¥P'L- 991L'¢ £19'¢ %v'8c- |9vP'L- ¥v9'e 060°G 9puoy puel X0L
%Lzl  |919'¢€C 80/'8LC  2E0'G6L %90 |2l 291 0sL'z %' eb- |Shb'E- 15142 6€6'L %29~ |9€9°L- 69v'clL SoL'le wales X09
%Z°LL  |999°EE Zr0'62C  9/€'G6L %¥0 |0 z5€e'e [42%4 %E8y- |0vZe- Zir'e ZLL'9 %L '8y~ |bLZ'0E- 688'LE €91°29 puejod 50
NI
%8¢l |y96'¥CL  EPPOE0’L 6.¥°G06 %0 |0S €28l €LLLL %Z'9e-  |PCL'Ge 62E'9Y esv'LL %¢e°8e-  |b0C'62- 2S6°9Y 9619/ SN0y pax|4 [ed07 [€]O 1
%BElL  |69¥CE 425'89¢  650'9¢C %0 |CL 108°¢ 68.°¢C %S9y~ |2Ch'G- ve’s ¥99°LL %6°0v- |08E°L- 089°01L 0908l ANID U[o2UIT 70
%6'€L  |S8ELY 06E'68€  500'ZvE %0 |8l 08e'y 29¢e'y %t'9e-  |96.'8- ZPe'St 8EL've %648~ |SL8'LL-  28E'6L c0z'Le ejuezuep €0
%8€L  |2EG'9L 996'9¢€lL  Se0'0Zt %¥0  |L 109°'L v65'L %E'GE-  |196'L- 665'c 995'S %9'Ly- |08G'C- £29'c €02'9 8pIsueadQ/sHeleN 20
%8EL |8.5'8C 656'GeC  18€°202 %¥'0 gL Lr0'e 820'¢ %L'62- |6£6'8 avL'le G80'0¢ %6'Ge-  |62t'L- A TA Y 169'02 doo umo] 10
30y pajernaq
%9'8L- [Cl6'6CL- 2B9'/9S 665269 %ELe- |LSv'T €469 0L0'6 %0°0e- |2leP- 670'01 L9E'vL %l'€c- |629°98- €.6'88¢  L09'GLE yva eoL
%S5'92- |6¥LpCL- LBEWKPE  0E£S B9V %EC e~ |166°L- ces’e 628°G %¥'8€- |99¢°C- r9'e 806'G %vvc- |6CL°G8-  28G'G9Z  OLE'LSE sapid MN
%G |€9.°G- 90€'eze  0.0'62¢ %SvL-  |09F- 2L L8L'e % vZ- |9¥0°Z- L0¥'9 €58 %Z'¢-  |006- LBE'ET L6Z'v2 apig-v-leig
IvIAIRg 8ply-v-elid
un

aoualaylq | soussayiq 1505 [B10] 1507 (€101 @oualaylg | sousiaylq  SINOH sinoH | eouatepiq | souseyq ETSEE ST @oualayi[ | souslaylq enusAdy  BNuBAsY H/81n0Y

Juao19d unowy U184 | Unowy  8JAeg 221088 | Jusdied junowy usolad | unowy ale4 ase4

12/0C 0c/el 12/0C 0c/el Le/oc 0ec/6l L2/0C 0c/el

uosueduwo g JedA-19AQ-1BD A

120z 994 niyL

1202 a94 iy L

120c 984 niyL

1¢0¢ Go4 niyL

12/0Z Ad 03 02/6LAd

jou3sIg uoneuodsues | AJuno ) yooweji |

24



%E 0" (1v9's) 6929cke 916 LPLT SIS03 [810 [
6585 $ %004 woud snid - SIS0 PEYIBAQ
9zes 3 ajey Alnoy yoeo) %0°CL G89'€S 0v1'205 SSY'8ry 109 9841
%¥'62 pesyianQ snid sng jlews %L b (o16'05) 0/0'6LL'L  086'6ZT'L sisoQ) paseg Aunoy
Sty $ sjey AunoH ueAUIN %81~ (zzv'e) 850'65H 18Y'E9y siso)) paseg abesyy
%€ sisog BN snid - 1youd pesyian0 |enjoy %0 LL- (662'61) SZL'er9 SZr'ees abeapy
986E  $ a)ey AUNOH [enjoy ST souasRyI]  dduLBIBKIa 12102 0z/64 uonduosaq
:uonemajey ajey Apnoy @0k SMd - gq g :uoe[nojes ajw sad 1505 Wwaoiag  junowy 12/0Z Ad 1 02/61Ad
1509 uonenajes) uoljesadQ sng |e1vadg 120Z 994 ybnoay] qiA uosuedwo)
¢ abeyq

%072L |90 LS (T8 %LLE %62 %Y LL %E ST %2 0E- - 1T 6¢ %9€L  |€L0L 8168 S0'6L S3IAIBG J8UIQ |EIOL
% vl- 6870 1£0 0cL %Y'88 | %S 8 %L1 %9'6 %205~ 2 1T ¥'G %y 0L |00L 6v'vL 0529 SAIAIBS JBUIQ [EI0 L
%0001~ |¥S1- 000 ¥S'L %0001 |%60L- %00 %60 %LTS 9z €T 67 %06 |£L'9 vyl SE'89 uonesadQ sng |erads
%502 |¥LO £9°0 690 %S 0r  |%LT- %0'Y %L'9 %l b 8'Z- 9¢ 59 %EEL  |PL8 Sy 81'69 ssaddu)
S30IM8S BYIO
%00 000 [k 8y %915 %68 %P8 %ELL %S Vh- vi- A (3 %LVl |GLTh 9€'66 19'98 AR 1oL
%Y6L  |¢0 891 v %S L |%9 }- %9 %Z ¥ %06~ 0l D 9z %99l |92Vl 0666 ¥968 Spuoy PUEID X0/
%LZL  |¥E0 00€ 997 %L (%Lt %Z'9 %80t %L Eh- 9'L- L'z re %SLL |ev 0L gL'LoL €206 wales X09
%80~ |80°0- 81’6 926 %T9G  |%6'LL- %6 %8'LE %G8y Pl gl 62 %L9L  [L6°€L 8€'26 fAa>] puelHod 50
[IEE ]
%61 [S0°0- 10t 101 %8G |%6C %97 %P8 %t GE- e 6 19 %EEL |G Ok 91’/8 16°9L 2jnoy pajeIraq [eioL
%S0L  |910 [V Sl %08 |%L € %0 ¥ %l 'L %L 9b- 02 [44 42 %EEL  |¥TLL 1856 978 AuD uoour ¥0
%2 |€00- 9z'L 6z} %P'Sr %L %06 %16 %L'9g~ 0 se §g %¥'eL  |6°0L 06'98 [R2:7) elluezuep €0
%L6  |LLO- 1oL AN %LBYr  |%SE- %L %Z'S %9 G- A 44 ge %EEL  [LOOL 1£'68 0£'6L 9pISUBBIQO/SHEIRN 20
%88 (900~ £9°0 690 %l'Er  |%Y Y %9'G %001 %0 0¢- 0'e- oL 66 %EEL |11 09°2L 6189 doojumoy Lo
3oy PAIEIASq
%66 09T 9.'9¢ G1'9¢ %SG |%6C- %6 05 %8 €5 %8'¢- 10 gl gl %61l [0Z6 £9'98 il gvaieoL
%92C |9FEL 2672 9166 %6C |%+e %l Ll %0'GL %2 9 10 0L 0 %81l |6V6 18'68 9€08 soply MN

%0'.¢  |8L0 s9'¢ 1872 %2 %0 %5 0L %904 %b - €0 2 12 %0FL  |S00L 9028 102L
S3IAISS Spig-v-eld
3 wediad | y1g unowy e aJe HIQ Jusdiad | i1g unowy oney oney g usdsd | Jig junowy NOH/ NOH/ HQ Wwaniad | yig unowy  ojey AUnoH  d1ey Anop unyeImnoy

abeiany abeiany x0qaiey xoga1e 1Busseyd 1Busseqd
Lz/oe 0z/61 1z2/0e 0z/6l 12/0Z oz/6l Lz/0e 0z/6l
120z 9ad iy L 120z gad nuy L 1202 984 Ny L 1202 984 niy L

uosuedwon aoueWIOSd 91e( O} 1B

12/02 Ad 01 02/6LAd

Jo11381q uoneodsues) Ayunos yoowej|i

25



NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee - Meeting
February 19, 2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3™ St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—12:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://usQ2web.zoom.us/{/88641922102
12532158782
Meeting iD: 886 4192 2102

Agenda
L= - Doug Pilant
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. ug Fila
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)

= January 15, 2021 Meeting Minutes (Attached)
10:05— ®  January 2021 Financial Report Doug Pilant/All
10:15a ®  Ridership Tracking

®  (Calculating Average Passenger Miles Update

= Updating NWConnector Performance Measures

3. NWOTA Standing ltems

®  |GA Distribution (Attached)

= Marketing: b Pilant/Al
10:15— —  Visitor Pass/Map update BUBIFEAR
40:30a — NWConnector Information Card

4  Website

—  Updates

10:30— 4. E-Ticketing Doug Pilant/All
10:45a = Updates
10:45— 5. RidePal Jeff Hazen/Jason
11:00a 4 SETD Information/Discussion
11:00— o o .
11:05a 6. STIF—Discretionary Application Update Arla Miller
11:05— 7. COVID-19 Transit/NW Connector Updates Doug Pilant
11:150a 4 Sanitizer System Purchase Update g
11:15— 8. Other Business and Member Updates
12:00p Al

WWW, nwoonnector.org

SERVICES




Attachments:

January 15, 2021 Meeting Minutes January Finance Report
NWOTA IGA

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities. If a

sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.397-3099 at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting.

NWConnector December 11, 2020 Agenda 2| Page

O

—



NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (via Zoom)
January 15, 2020
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees

included:

John Dreeszen—Columbia County Rider

Brad Dillingham—Benton Area Transit

Paul Lewicki—Sunset Empire Transportation District

Doug Pilant, Hailey Fields—Tillamook County Transportation District
Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transit

Arfa Miller—ODOT

Heather DeSart—NW Oregon Workforce Investment Board

Juliet Eldred, Chris Perry—Trillium Transit

Ayreann Colombo, Mary McArthur—Col-Pac EDD

Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (PL/CB)

December 11, 2020 Meeting Minutes—One typo in the last sentence of the first paragraph of
ltem 3—"important” needs to be capitalized.

December 2020 Financial Report—Only changes were expenditures for the quarterly
administrative support and for website trip planner project.

Ridership Performance Report—CCR: More than half of the working residents in Columbia
County work outside the County, and those are high risk counites where workers are working
from home. 50% of formertraffic. Dial-a-Ride and medical rides are steady now, but have
excess capacity./Inter-community routes very little ridership. BAT—Coast to Valley, across the
board struggling. One.to two passengers a trip. Adair route is a shorter distance, more
commuter oritentied, but still way down:-60—80% from before. Lincoln County—Dial-a-Ride
serves a population that doesn’t want/can’t be around people safely. When medical facilities
are open they take public transit. SETD—See impact on ridership every time county goes to
extreme risk. Were off to a great start on the Hwy 30 route before the pandemic. Trend is
going up slightly. Local routes languishing, waiting for something new to happen. TCTD has
similar trends. Dial-a-Ride is only down 25% due to using vans for overflow when buses reach
maximum capacity. The Town Loop and Route 3 are the only routes that reach capacity.

Calculating'Average Passenger Miles Progress—Still need to get average passenger miles from
the partners before Carole will be able to update.

3. NWOTA Standing [tems:

IGA—TTCD Will be getting signature page to Mary, and Mary will provide the partners with a full
IGA with all the signed signature pages.

Marketing—Waiting for an updated version of the visitor pass and map from Selena. Once get
that can put together the information card with the QR code and policy links. TCTD has started
a public feedback survey, including encouraging riders to use the Transit App which pushes
notices to users to complete the survey. Using paid Facebook ads to encourage to take the
survey. Drivers hand out a QR code for the survey download. TCTD rider survey information has
been segregated from other districts. This type of survey work can also be done system wide on

NWOTA January 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 1| P

2%



all NWConnector routes where riders are using Transit App. This technology can be used to do
brand analysis, brand awareness of the public’s understanding of the NWConnector. A lot
cleaner and a lot less work than drivers handing out paper surveys.

= Getting OXO signs off—Taken off the website. John will ook for the new fiberglass signs that
were provided to CCR. Doug may have some excess inventory he can share. Brad—Working on
BAT system signs that will eventually be coordinated with the NWConnector signs. May have
lost some signs at Chinook Winds in the last windstorm. Cynda has one OXO sign still up in
Newport. Brad will remove a large one at the hospital. Tillamook has updated all of theirs.
Sunset still has a couple remaining OXO but in the middle of taking them:down.

= Website—Ride Connection was added to the GTFS system which connects with both TCTD and
CCR.

= Bicycle—Have new policy approved, awaiting a new video to be done this Spring before posting
the policy on the website.

= Service Alerts—TCTD posted service alerts on the NWConnector website during the recent
flooding but discovered the alerts did not show up onthe Transit app. Chris said users should
use alerts through the GTFS manager rather than through the website. Chris can set-up a
tutorial to train staff.

4. Social Media Marketing/Online Ticketing

Multiple technologies to do ticketing. A couple of partners have already started looking at their own
online ticketing. (February meeting agenda item)

5. Open Street Map—Adding first/last access points to the NWConnector website. These would
include shortcuts, local paths. Chris is adding some NWConnector branding to the website report
due to ODOT, including this new way to enhance the NWConnector platform. Current website
project budget will has approximately $20,000 left to do trip planner enhancements. Partners
concurred on having Trillium adding as many new access routes/paths to the Trip Planner as can be
identified. Partners will get a list of the first/last mile providers and known pathways to bus stops.

6. STIF—Discretionary Application Update STIF Discretionary Application Update—Doug and Jeff did a
joint presentation at the NWACT meeting. Mary reviewed the NWACT write-up (attached). Arla:
Way oversubscribed. 70 applications totaling over $39 million for $19 million in funding. Will
require aminimum 20% match. Priority will likely be operations. Will try to get as many funded as
possible.

7. COVID Transit/NWConnector Updates
Sanitizer—Doug will get the new RFP out next month.

8. Other Business:and Partner Updates

= SETD—Difficult.to run the Portland route with older equipment that has malfunctions at a
distance. Have had great support at Amtrak when the equipment breaks down.

= BAT—Finalizing new stop signs, bus wraps, only a couple of weeks out of implementing. Very
exciting. Hoping to get the Coast to Valley expansion started on July 1. STIF Advisory
Committee approved projects, going to Board next week.

®  Lincoln County—Thanks to all for the partners for working to make all the days of operation
consistent across the system. Thanks for the partners flexibility. Are going to be adding a
midday run on the Coast to Valley route. Will be working with Brad on some early marketing, to
let the public know it will be coming. Expecting 5 Category C buses to be delivered soon. Buses
are currently in Portland getting set up for service. Two are designated for Coast to Valley
Express run. Working on getting STIF applications reviewed by the Committee.

NWOTA January 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 2|p



= CCR—This time of year is typically challenging due to the lack of local funding as go into budget
season. Probably will still need to do some cutbacks. Options are to surgically cut, or do
significant cutbacks and then look at a new rebuild of the operations.

= TCTD—Worked on STIF, fare analysis for July 1 implementation. IVR technology for Ecolane
adding for Dial-A-Ride notifications/prompts. Working with Tillamook County Emergency
Management to get drivers vaccinations started next week. Budget season is here and getting
organized to start the process. The District will continue all STIF funding projects. Investment
in holiday service of providing service on Memorial, Independence, and Labor days turned out to
have great ridership. This was a great return for the District.

e Arla—Thanks for moving the date of the meeting.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA January 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 3|Pa

30



STIF Discretionary and Statewide Transit Network Fund
Programs 2021-23

ACT Review Form

Instructions:

Select your ACT name from the below dropdown. Once selected, a new section will populate with a
dropdown that lists the projects assigned to your ACT for review. Select the project you wish to review. If
you have multiple projects to review, select the “Add Project” button to create another project review
section. Select “Submit” after reviewing all assigned projects. Alternatively, you may attach a copy of the
ACT’s meeting minutes where it discussed the projects relevant to its area of responsibility.

ACT Contact Name ACT Contact Email

Mary McArthur mbmcarthur@nworegon.org
ACT

Northwest ACT

STIF Discretionary Project Review

Project 1

Northwest Project List
Sunset Empire TD - Lower Columbia Connector

Do you have feedback about the reviewed project that the Oregon Transportation Commission
should consider in making their final determination? ACTs may include funding
recommendations for specific projects or prioritize projects, if desired.

NWACT supports this project. This route is the only direct transit service from Portland to Astoria along
Hwy 30. When implemented, the route was a collaborative effort of SETD and Columbia County Rider
to provide one bus transit travel through both counties. Prior to the pandemic, ridership was up over
50% on this route once it became a one bus trip. The route also interlines with both Greyhound and
Amtrak providing seamless car-free tourism travel to the Oregon Coast.

Optional Document Upload

Project 2

Northwest Project List
Tillamook County TD - Coastliner - Tillamook to Portland Intercity Service

Do you have feedback about the reviewed project that the Oregon Transportation Commission
should consider in making their final determination? ACTs may include funding
recommendations for specific projects or prioritize projects, if desired.

5|



NWACT supports this project. In addition to providing the only direct public transit from Tillamook to
Portland, this route is now providing increased service for residents in west Washington County. Public
outreach surveys indicate interest and need for an additional daily round trip. Planning is underway to
add local Washington County transit providers first/last mile access to the Coastliner to the
NWConnector website Trip Planner.

Optional Document Upload

Project 3

Northwest Project List
Tillamook County TD - TCTD Route 60X: Coastal Connector - Lincoln City-Grand Ronde-Salem

Do you have feedback about the reviewed project that the Oregon Transportation Commission
should consider in making their final determination? ACTs may include funding
recommendations for specific projects or prioritize projects, if desired.

NWACT supports this project. in addition to providing the only direct public transit from Lincoin City to
Salem, this route is a partnership with the Confederated Tribes of the Grand Ronde and the Siletz,
which provide the local match. This route provides the tribes with transportation access to work both in
their casino and workplaces in Lincoln City and Salem. This project is a partnership with Lincoln County
and ODOT, and connects with Yamhill County Transit at Grand Ronde.

Optional Document Upload

Project 4

Northwest Project List
Tillamook County TD - NWConnector Transit Access Project: Phase 2 -- Construction

Do you have feedback about the reviewed project that the Oregon Transportation Commission
should consider in making their final determination? ACTs may include funding
recommendations for specific projects or prioritize projects, if desired.

NWACT supports this project. These stops are three top-ranked ready-to-proceed projects from the
Phase 1 Design and Engineering Transit Access Study. Each represents a central hub within their
respective county for transit travel to work, medical appointments, retail shopping and/or recreation.
Increasing safe access to the NWConnector transit system is critical for addressing long-term traffic
congestion on the Coast and foundational for sustaining the North Coast’s public transportation.

Optional Document Upload

Byl



| a8y

AUBLIBA 3 133png (LLA/M Modsy qog AIuol

%Ll0T LPL989C] 00000861  Eczellr IT6eLZl 000
%000  000STSk 00°0ST°<h 000 000 000 B
%0070 00°0ST'Cr 00°0STTh 000 000 000
%000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 000 000
%E69C LELI9LT 00°0SL'ZS | ESTEL LY LI6TLTI 000
%000 000006 00000¢< 000 L991p 0070
%00°0 (£8°285°T) 000 £8°L8P'T 000 000
%LTLE 00°SFO'LY 00700075, 00°SS6°LT 00°05T°9 000
%0070 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 000 L9916T 0070
%000 00005, 00°00S°L 000 00°579 000
%8 1t 0SLES P 00°000°ST 0S°29F°01 £C°ER0'T 000
%ZEh 08°220°s 0070z 0TLTT 0S'LEP 000
%L6TC (0005PS) 00000861 0000 — 00— 0000501
%000 0000099 00000%9 000 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°Z1 00°000°1 000 00°0
%00°SL (00°00s°01) 00°000°Ck 00°00S° 1€ 000 0000501
%00°0 (00°000°08) 00°000°08 000 000 000

949G duBLIB A 198png (10 femoy 123png poLIv jemoy porag

128png] [e10],

183 L juanm) JjaaLny JuaLmyy

[20T/1€/1 UBNOIYL [Z0T/1/1 woiy

Jusuiaie1s [eldueury

pLosKq uoneytodsur | Ayunoy) yooweyy |,

8l6t
1 tob
oAy
ooce

Wd TTEFED T2/11/T 2mg

sasuadxy w0,
SI9Jsuety [B10]
led pun,[ Suipur parendosddeun
pumj [RIaUaD) 0 Jajsuwi |,
SiaJsuel]
SADIAIRS pUR S[BLIDIBIA [B10 .
Sururel] W |9ABL,
19901 $5000Y Nsuel]
ugIsaC[-2y Wsqom
Junayepy
DUBUDUIBI SNSG2
toddng sapensiujwpy
SAOIAIOS [BUOISSAJOL ]
SODIAIIS PUB S|RLIDIBIN
sasuadxy]

S20UN0SAY (110,
PUDT JLLS wWoly apsues .
PUN[ |BISUDD) WO, ISJSURL]
U2IBIN 00D daulied v OMN
ende) Suiyiom
$22IN083Y

33



C5-2019

AMENDED AND RESTATED
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE

This Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement, Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance is
between Columbia County (“Agreement”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon by and through
Columbia County Rider Transportation, Benton County, Lincoln County Transportation Service District,
Sunset Empire Transportation District, and Tillamook County Transportation District, all public entities
organized and operating under Oregon law (collectively, “Parties™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, under the authority of ORS 190.010, the Parties entered into an intergovernmental
agreement in April, 2011 (“Original Agreement”), establishing a regional transit consortium known as the
NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) to increase coordination of services, create opportunities to
collectively apply for grant funding, and operate public transit services within and connecting to each
party's service areas; and

WHEREAS, working under the Original Agreement, the Parties obtained a grant from the US
Department of Energy (DOE) for the purpose of establishing connections and transportation links to each
other’s transit service areas, and providing a more coordinated service; and

WHEREAS, the Original Agreement identified Columbia County as the recipient of the DOE
grant on behalf of NWOTA, for purposes of administering the grant and serving as fiscal agent for
NWOTA during the life of the grant; and

WHEREAS, in August 2013, the DOE grant concluded, and Columbia County fulfilled its
obligations to NWOTA and to DOE for the grant; and

WHEREAS, as contemplated in Section 3 of the Original Agreement, the Parties desire to secure
additional funding to continue to further develop the regional transit system and to amend the Original
Agreement to redefine relationships; and

WHEREAS, other NWOTA members are willing to serve as the fiscal agent for NWOTA grants;
and

WHEREAS, accordingly, the Parties intend to amend the Original Agreement to remove
references to the concluded DOE grant, establish a procedure for designating fiscal agents for future
funding, and redefine other roles and responsibilities to reflect changes in the Alliance.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree, as follows:
1. NWOTA Established.
The Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) is established as a regional committee, and
each party is a member. NWOTA is not an entity and therefore has no authority to employ staff or enter

into contracts.

2. Definitions.
For the purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions apply:

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page1of7

3K



3.

4.

“Coordinating Committee” means a subcommittee of the NWOTA that is composed of the
transit director or other representative of each of the Parties.

“Coordinating Fiscal Entity” means the Fiscal Entity for this Agreement whose duties and
responsibilities are described in Section 4, below.

“Fiscal Entity” means the party that is established through a Memorandum of Agreement
between the Parties to receive funds for a specific grant or NWOTA Project. A Fiscal Entity
is the party that is ultimately responsible for the procurement of goods and services for the
NWOTA Project as well as meeting any grant required terms and conditions.

“NWOTA Project” means a good, service, program or activity that is funded to carry out the
purpose of this Agreement. Each NWOTA Project must have a Fiscal Entity.

“Parties” means the parties to this Agreement, specifically: Columbia County, Benton
County, Lincoln County Transportation Service District, Sunset Empire Transportation
District, and Tillamook County Transportation District.

Purpose.
NWOTA is formed to foster collaboration between the Parties for the coordination of public

transit services, connection of transit service areas and the provision of cost effective transit services
within the territory served by the NWOTA Parties. These collaborative efforts include:

A,

B.

€:

D.

Promoting public transportation and the Connector system throughout NWOTA service
areas;

Working cooperatively with the other NWOTA Parties to pursue grant funding, coordinate
services and generally increase the visibility and viability of public transportation throughout
the region through collaborative grant writing and marketing efforts;

Coordinating equipment and services associated with the interconnection of party service
areas; and

Developing intemal expertise, including personnel, to share among the Parties.

Coordinating Fiscal Entity.

Through this Agreement, a Fiscal Entity shall be established to provide for the general
coordination of NWOTA Parties and NWOTA Projects. This Fiscal Entity shall be called the
Coordinating Fiscal Entity (CFE). Tillamook County Transportation District shall serve as the CFE for

this Agreement.

A. Authority of the CFE. The CFE shall have the authority to perform the following functions,

B.

provided such functions serve the Purpose of this Agreement and receive unanimous approval
of the NWOTA Parties:

1) Employ staff and enter into contracts;

2) Apply for grant funding and enter into grant agreements;

3) Manage the administrative budget and other fiscal matters relating to NWOTA

Project administration and coordination;
4) Rent office space; and
5} Purchase officc equipment and supplies.

Funding the CFE. The CFE shall be funded, as follows:

1) Each party shall contribute financially to support the general administrative needs of
the CFE in carrying out its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement, as
follows:

a. Each party shall pay a proportional share of the CFE’s adopted administrative
budget for NWOTA coordination, as well as any special assessment, as approved
by the Parties.

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page 2 of 7

3D



b. A party may contribute less than a proportional share if approved by all Parties to
this Agreement.

2) This Agreement is subject to the appropriation of funds by each party, and/or the
receipt of funds from state and federal sources. In the event sufficient funds shall not
be appropriated, and/or received, by a party for payment required to be paid under
this Agreement, then that party may withdraw from NWOTA in accordance with
Section 1 of this Agreement.

3) The CFE shall also be funded through grants received for NWOTA Projects. The
Parties agree that all significant decisions regarding grants, funding, or administration
for NWOTA Projects shall be discussed and decided upon unanimously by all
affected Parties prior to any action by the CFE.

C. Administrative Budget. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by all Parties (such as through
a Memorandum of Agreement, as described in Section 5, below), the CFE shall be the
recipient for all funding for NWOTA Projects and shall be responsible for administering the
funds. The CFE shall administer the funds for NWOTA Projects, as follows:

1) The CFE shall propose an annual administrative budget, which shall be approved by
unanimous vote of the NWOTA Parties. The administrative budget must be
submitted to the Parties for approval no later than February for the following budget
year.

2) The CFE may make minor budget changes for administrative purposes to grants and
other funds, as well as adjusting the NWOTA administrative budget to reflect those
changes, up to an amount not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the total grant budget or
ten percent (10%) of a service contract. The CFE shall communicate those changes
to all other Parties at the next meeting of the Parties through a monthly budget report.
Changes in excess of ten percent (10%) must be approved in advance by unanimous
vote of all Parties.

3) All requests for reimbursement from NWOTA grant awards or other funds shall be
sent to the CFE. The CFE will respond to such requests by issuing reimbursements
in accordance with approved budgets, schedules and other applicable requirements
associated with NWOTA’s receipt of the funds.

4) If disbursed grant funds must be returned to a grantor, the Parties who received those
funds must pay such funds to the CFE within 30 days of written notice for return to
the grantor.

D. Compliance with Agreements and Regulations. The CFE shall perform its duties and
responsibilities in compliance with all applicable terms and conditions of NWOTA Project-
related grant agreements and applicable state and local laws, including without limitation,
public records law, local budget law, public contracting laws, Oregon government ethics law,
and workers’ compensation law.

5. Funding and Administration of NWOTA Projects.
The procedure for establishing the Parties’ dutics and obligations with respect to any funding
received for NWOTA Projects shall be as follows:
A. For a project to qualify as an NWOTA Project, it must have the unanimous support of the
Parties;
B. Prior to seeking grant funding for an NWOTA Project, the Parties shall, by unanimous vote of
the full Coordinating Committee:
1) Identify a Fiscal Entity for the project; and
2) Develop a project budget.

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page 3 of 7

S



C. Oncec a grant is awarded for an NWOTA Project, the Parties shall use a Memorandum of
Agreement to formally establish the Fiscal Entity for the particular NWOTA Project and set
forth each party’s duties and obligations; and

D. The Fiscal Entity shall only change the budget for an NWOTA Project following a unanimous
vote in support of such change from all Parties.

6. Coordinating Committee (CC)

A Coordinating Committee (CC) shall be established to oversee NWOTA Projects, as follows:
A. The CC shall consist of the transit director or other representative of each of the Parties.
B. The CC shall be responsible for:

1) Determining the Parties’ duties and obligations for each grant awarded, which shall be
memorialized in a Memorandum of Agreement approved by the Parties.

2) Reviewing and coordinating the tasks associated with grant agreements;

3) Reviewing grant budgets and making recommendations to the CFE and Parties’
governing bodies regarding an annual budget and other fiscal documents relating to
NWOTA Projects;

4) Overseeing operations relating to NWOTA Projects, including:

a. Overseeing the management of grant budgets and other fiscal matters relating to
NWOTA Projects.

b. Reviewing updates regarding operations of NWOTA Project administration.

c. Advising the CFE on the hiring and management of administrative staff funded under
a grant or annual administrative contribution.

d. Ensuring that all procurements and contracts comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and regulations and with all terms and conditions associated with grant
funding.

e. Ensuring that contracts and other documents creating liability for NWOTA Parties
are reviewed by legal counsel, which shall be the legal counsel for the CFE, as
described above, unless the Parties determine a wider review is necessary.

f.  Ensuring that no actions take place within or affecting a party’s jurisdiction without
that party’s consent.

A majority of the CC members constitutes a quorum at any special or regular meeting.

The CC may adopt rules governing its procedures, including the time and place of its regular

meetings, and a procedure for calling special meetings.

E. Any decisions of the CC that create legally binding duties or obligations for the NWOTA
Parties must be approved by the Parties.

F. The CC shall comply with the requirements of Oregon laws, including without limitation, the
Public Meetings Law, Public Records Law, Local Budget Law, public contracting laws, the
Oregon Government Ethics laws, and workers’ compensation laws of the State of Oregon.

SO

7. Administrative Reimbursement

In the event that grants received for NWOTA Projects include an allowable administrative
expense component, the CFE or other Fiscal Entity as established by Mcmorandum of Agreement by the
Parties shall be entitled to receive said administrative reimbursement to offset its cost of administering the
grant(s). Any administrative reimbursement shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total grant amount.

8. Remedies

If there is a legal action to enforce this Agreement, every party is responsible for its own costs
and fees, including attorney fees. No party is entitled to recover attorney fees from another party,
including any fees and costs incurred in an appeal.

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page 4 of 7
277
Do



9. Liability and Indemnification

To the extent allowed by Oregon law, each party is responsible for the consequences of any
wrongful acts of their employees or agents that affect any other party or a person not a party to this
Agreement. Each party will release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless each other party, including its
officers, employees and agents against all claims, demands, legal actions (including all attorney fees and
costs) arising from this Agreement where the loss or claim is attributable to the acts or omissions of the
indemnifying party.

10. Amendments
This Agreement may be amended at any time upon the written agreement of all Parties. New
parties to NWOTA will join through an amendment to this Agreement.

11. Ownership, Duration, Withdrawal and Termination
A. Ownership. Each item purchased with NWOTA grant funding becomes the property of the
party who made the purchase. Each partner owns the NWOTA website code in its entirety
jointly and severally.
B. Duration. This Agreement will continue until Junc 30, 2019, and automatically renew
annually thereafter, unless terminated as set forth below.
C. Withdrawal.

1) A party may withdraw from the NWOTA by giving at least 120 days written notice of its
intent to withdraw to the CC Chair. The written notification (not email) must include a
transition plan developed by the withdrawing party. The transition plan must include: 1)
an inventory listing each NWOTA related interconnection to address prior to withdrawal,
2) a written summary of a meeting with the CFE to review withdrawal requirements
including compliance with grant and financial requirements, and 3) a timeline for
withdrawing based on that meeting.

2) A party may withdraw while still a party to an NWOTA funding contract or grant;
however, obligations incurred under this Agreement or any subsequent amendment or
Memorandum of Agreement, shall survive termination. The withdrawing party will not
be liable for any liabilities, including grant and other fiscal responsibilities, occurring
after the withdrawal letter is accepted in writing by the Parties.

3) Upon approval of a transition plan and a party’s withdrawal, the former party has no
financial obligations to NWOTA Parties, but must return any disbursed grant funds
required to be returned by a grant agreement.

4) A party may withdraw from the NWOTA without 120-day written notice as provided
above only with the consent of all remaining Parties.

D. Termination. The NWOTA and this Agreement may be terminated with the written consent
of all Parties.

12. Severability

The terms of this Agreement are severable and a determination by an appropriate body having
Jurisdiction over the subject matter that results in the invalidity of any part does not affect the remainder
of the Agreement.

13. Interpretation

The terms and conditions of this Agreement will be liberally construed under Oregon law in
accordance with the general purposes of the Agreement.

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page 5 of 7

38



14. No Third Party Beneficiaries

The Parties are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its
terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any
benefit or right, whether directly, or indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of
this Agreement.

15. Effective Date
This Agreement takes effect upon its approval by the governing bodies of all Parties and the

authorized signatures of party officials.

16. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each is deemed an original, and
they are all the same Agreement.

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018) Page 6 of 7



APPROVED AND SIGNED by the appropriate officers authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf

of the governing body of each party:

COLUMBLA COUJ\JT?-

SW“"““/V(’\Q\A/

Couly “?‘“’mr

Commissioner

BENTON COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

LINCOLN COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Comrmnissioner

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATON
DISTRICT:

Board Chair

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT:

Board Chair

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018)

Dated: / ‘Xg_;/ &

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Page 7 of 7

4o



APPROVED AND SIGNED by the appropriate officers authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf

of the governing body of each party:

COLUMBLA COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

BENTON COUNTY:

Var Taeee.

Xanthippe Augerot, Comymissioner,
— Wﬂﬁc{&g@zm%
Annabelle Jaramillo, Cofimissioner

LINCOLN COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATON
DISTRICT:

Board Chair

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT:

Board Chair

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018)

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated: July 21. 2020

Ll oy

Vance M. Croney, CountyCounsel
APPROVED AS TO F@RM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Page7of 7

41



APPROVED AND SIGNED by the appropriate officers authorized to execute this
agreement on behalf of the governing body of each party:

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

COLUMBIA COUNTY: Dated:

Commissioner County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Commissioner

Commissioner

BENTON COUNTY: Dated:

Commissioner County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Commissioner

Commissioner

Assistant County Couns
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Commissioner

- - L]
Commxssxf!ncr

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION
DISTRICT:

Board Chair

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT:

General Manager

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA ( April 2018) Page 7 of 7

Hl



APPROVED AND SIGNED by the appropriate officers authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf

of the governing body of each party:

COLUMBLA COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

BENTON COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

LINCOLN COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATON
DISTRICT:

Board Chair

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT:

Board Chair

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018)

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated: 1/24/19

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Page 7 of 7

43



APPROVED AND SIGNED by the appropriate officers authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf

of the governing body of each party:

COLUMBLA COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

BENTON COUNTY:

Commissioner

Comumissioner

Commussioner

LINCOLN COUNTY:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATON
DISTRICT:

Board Chair

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT:

NWOTA Amended and Restated IGA (August 2018)

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counse]l
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

County Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Dated:

District Counsel
APPROVED AS TO FORM

Page 7 of v

Hy



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
Tillamook County Transportation District e
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, February 18, 2021 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at 6:03pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors (all Directors attended by telephone/web)
Jim Huffman, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Judy Riggs, Director
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Secretary

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager (via web)

Brent Olson, Superintendent (via web)

Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor (via web)

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk (in person)

Absent

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator (via web)
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options (via web)
Chris Kell, TAC Committee Chair (via web)

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.

5. Public & Guest Comments: Chris Kell shared that Board Chair Huffman could receive
current information about what is happening at the District by liking “The WAVE”
Facebook page. Board Chair Huffman said he thinks communication should be
directly between the GM and the Board Chair for District happenings.

Arla Miller said ODOT is working on next biennium grant applications and should be
getting them out to agencies soon.

These minules contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

1 L5



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
Kathy Kleczek shared that NW Transportation Options is working on videos to
promote “car-free” traveling throughout the region. Kathy also said she'll be on
Facebook Live tomorrow morning at 10:00 am and everyone is welcome to join.

Public Hearing — First Reading of a revision to Ordinance #3: Conduct on District
Property 6:10-6:11pm

Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond read the 15 reading of the revision of
Ordinance #3 into the record.

REPORTS
7.

Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the January 2021 financial reports. The
District has completed 58% of the Fiscal Year. He reported the Fare Revenue is only
at 37%, which is trending with the lower year-to-date ridership. He noted that for the
2" year in a row, YTD property taxes received has exceeded 100% and explained
that Prior Year Taxes, Mass Transit Payroll, and STIF revenues are trending higher
than expected.

Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of the
operations performance measures through January 2021. YTD Ridership is -36.4%
below the previous year; YTD passengers per hour are -29%; the cost per trip was
+62% while the cost per hour was +16% and the fare box recovery was -35%. The
ridership statistics results are as expected, due to the impact that COVID has had on
operations. Board Chair Huffman asked how the District compares to Tri-Met in
regard to COVID and ridership. GM Doug Pilant said TCTD trends are consistent with
other agencies of similar size in Oregon and vary depending on service type.

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the January 2021
NWOTA meeting agenda, minutes, finance report. The NWOTA packet is the same
packet that was presented last month because the Coordinating Committee hasn’t
met since the last board meeting. The February NWOTA meeting is Friday, February
19™. The meeting schedule was changed for 2021 to the 3 Friday so that Arla Miller
of ODOT could attend. GM Doug Pilant stated she is a vital part of NWOTA. Board
Chair Huffman thanked Arla Miller for participating.

10.Planning & Development:

a. Deviated Fixed Route/ADA Policy — No report

b. STIF/STF Consolidation — No report

c. STIF Service Alternatives Plan — No report.

d. TCTD Fare Policy Analysis: GM Doug Pilant reported public outreach survey
was completed. The survey was pushed out to riders using Transit App and
then followed up with a campaign on Facebook. There were 71 responses. A
random prize selection was made of all riders who participated in the survey
and a picture of the winner was posted on Facebook. The survey results were
as expected, with only a few areas of concern that need further discussion. A
stakeholder meeting was scheduled for last week. However, participation was
low, so they are rescheduling another meeting on March 2" or 3. Planning
to bring a report with fare policy recommendations to the March board meeting.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

Z U,



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
11.Grant Funding:

a. FY2021-23 STF/Section 5310 Formula — Completed the project development
planning process for both grant funding programs. TAC completed their review
and prioritization of projects and voted to recommend the board approve the
projects. Grant deadline is March 15!,

b. 5310 Discretionary — Last month Board approved the sole source purchase of
Ecolane Interactive Voice Response technology and there’s a resolution on the
meeting agenda for the board to approve amendment to the Ecolane license
agreement.

c. Section 5311 — Procurement process completed to purchase 1 intercity bus, 1
dial-a-ride bus, and 2 dial-a-ride vans are on the agenda for approval.

d. Section 5339 — Procurement process completed to purchase 1 intercity bus; 2
dial-a-ride vans are on the agenda for approval.

e. Section 5304 and Section 5311 applications are due to be submitted to ODOT
by March 1, 2021

12. Facility/Property Management

a. Downtown Transit Center — The purchase is still in escrow. There was a need
to amend the reversion language of the title report. Needed clarifying language
on how the property would be returned to the City in the event the District
decides to move out of the transit center. Hopeful this transaction will be
completed by the end of March.

b. Alternative Fuel Facility — Blue Star Gas conducted a site review to prepare a
contract for planning, construction, conversion and the supply of propane.
Hopefully there will be a contract to present for approval at the March board
meeting. Board Chair Huffman asked if they were onsite. GM Doug Pilant
confirmed they were onsite. GM Doug Pilant is going to check with TPUD to
see if the project qualifies for energy tax credits. Board Chair Huffman asked
if Director Holm had any input. Director Holm said GM Doug Pilant Finance
Supervisor Tabatha Welch know the PUD contacts and can get questions
answered. GM Doug Pilant said the District received a good amount of energy
credits with our HVAC system and hopefully there might be an opportunity for
portions of this project to receive credits.

13.NW Ride Brokerage

a. GM Doug Pilant reported that work is continuing with the District’s legal counsel
to finalize the revisions of the BPA and are planning to notify providers after
April 18,

b. Care Oregon has asked the District to update the Criminal Background Policy
to include NW Rides. The request has been sent to the District’s legal counsel
for review. Expect to bring a revised policy to the board for approval in March.

c. Tillamook County Veterans Service Officer Nick Torres and Brokerage
Manager Cathy Bond are working together on rolling out the Veterans Rural
Healthcare Transportation Grant. They are scheduled to talk about the
program on the Tillamook Today radio show at 9:30am on Tuesday 2/23 to
share information to the community and veterans.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

} HT



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
d. There is a resolution to facilitate gainshare transactions on the agenda for
approval.

14.Miscellaneous
a. GM Doug Pilant explained there is a budget committee vacancy due to a
member resigning due to health reasons. Board Chair Huffman asked how
people would get this information. GM Doug Pilant said the position in being
advertised on the District's website, the Tillamook County Pioneer and
Headlight Herald. Applications will be presented at the March Board meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR
15.Motion to Approve the Minutes of the January 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting
16.Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: January 2021

Board Chair Huffman asked if board members had any corrections to the minutes. Board
Chair Huffman said he wanted a statement added to the minutes that said when the email
was sent out by staff about setting up District emails that he called Director Hanenkrat
who stated he did not want a District email account. Board Chair Huffman said he also
wanted to add a statement to the minutes that he said he sent a reply to that email sayingt
he and Director Hanenkrat did not want District email accounts.

Motion by Director Adler to adopt the Consent Calendar, with noted changes to the

minutes. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

ACTION ITEMS

17.Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-02 In the Matter of Accepting the TAC FY2021-23
STF Funding Plan Recommendation

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. GM Doug Pilant asked TAC
Committee Chair Chris Kell is she had any further comments. Chris reported the
committee was very happy with and supportive of how the projects were laid out.

Motion by Director Riggs to Approve Resolution # 21-02 In the Matter of Accepting the

TAC FY2021-23 STF Funding Plan Recommendation. Motion Seconded by Director

Holm. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for
the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

18. Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-03 In the Matter of Accepting the TAC FY2021-23
Section 5310 Funding Plan Recommendation

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4 19



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution # 21-03 In the Matter of Accepting the

TAC FY2021-23 Section 5310 Funding Plan Recommendation. Motion Seconded by

Director Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none,
he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

19. Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute
a Contract with Schetky NW Bus Sales to Purchase 2 Category B Intercity Buses

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Holm asked if the total
was for both buses combined. GM Doug Pilant stated the total is for both buses.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution # 21-04 In the Matter of Authorizing the

GM to Execute a Contract with Schetky NW Bus Sales to Purchase 2 Category B Intercity

Buses. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

20. Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-05 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute
a Contract with NW Bus Sales to Purchase 1 Category D Dial-a-Ride Bus

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Hanenkrat asked if this
is a gasoline powered bus. GM Doug Pilant explained the bus was being ordered as a
gasoline bus but would be converted to propane prior to delivery. NW Bus Sales has a
contract agreement with Blue Star Gas to convert vehicles from gasoline to propane.
Director Hanenkrat asked if there would be an additional cost for that conversion. GM
Doug Pilant said the conversion is included in the price.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve Resolution # 21-05 In the Matter of Authorizing

the GM to Execute a Contract with NW Bus Sales to Purchase 1 Category D Dial-a-Ride

Bus. Motion Seconded by Director Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote. _

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

21.Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-06 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute
a Contract with Schetky NW Bus Sales to Purchase 4 Category E Dial-a-Ride Vans

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

5 e



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. These vans will also be converted
to propane prior to delivery. Director Adler asked if the vans were for Central and North
Counties or will they be used in South County as well. GM Doug Pilant states they will
serve the entire County. Director Adler asked if they would be used for Dial-A-Ride and
not for NW Rides. GM Doug Pilant stated they will be used interchangeably for all
services throughout the District. Board Chair Huffman asked if a van will be placed in
Cloverdale or anywhere down South. GM Doug Pilant said he was working with hospital
about parking a vehicle at Bay Shore Medical Clinic near Pacific City but COVID slowed
down the process. Board Chair Huffman wants to help push it through if GM Doug Pilant
would let him help.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve Resolution # 21-06 In the Matter of Authorizing

the GM to Execute a Contract with Schetky NW Bus Sales to Purchase 4 Category E

Dial-a-Ride Vans. Motion Seconded by Director Riggs. Board Chair Huffman called for
further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

22.Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-07 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute
a Amendment #5 to the Ecolane USA License Agreement to Purchase Interactive
Voice Response Module

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Adler asked if the District
is paying for it or is NW Rides. GM Doug Pilant said this was being purchased with a
Section 5310 as a mobility management grant.

Motion by Director Carlson-Swanson to Approve Resolution # 21-07 In the Matter of

Authorizing the GM to Execute an Amendment to the Ecolane USA License Agreement

to Purchase Interactive Voice Response Module. Motion Seconded by Director Riggs.

Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the
vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

23.Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-08 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute
a Service Agreement with Carson Oil Company for the Purchase of Fuels and
Lubricants

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution # 21-08 In the Matter of Authorizing the
GM to Execute a Service Agreement with Carson Oil Company for the Purchase of Fuels
and Lubricants. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for
further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words,

-



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

24.Motion to Approve Resolution # 21-09 In the Matter of Appropriating Monies Between
NW Rides FY2020-2021 Budget Line Items to Facility CPCCO Gainshare Payments

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Hanenkrat said he thinks
Brokerage Manger Cathy Bond is spending a lot of time on TCTD work and wants to know
if the District is paying a portion of her wages. GM Doug Pilant said he wasn’t sure if
Cathy’s time working on District business is material. He said it would be easy to record
her time and have the District pay the portion of her time working on District business.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve Resolution # 21-09 In the Matter of Appropriating
Monies Between NW Rides FY2020-2021 Budget Line ltems to Facilty CPCCO
Gainshare Payments. Motion Seconded by Director Carlson-Swanson. Board Chair
Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED
By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs,
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

25. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: He shared his gift for his birthday from his daughter Hannah. Turns
out his gift was news that a grandchild is coming! He was congratulated by the board
and staff. He shared his other gift of a photo taken by dispatcher Daniell Amaya that
was printed onto a canvas as a gift from District staff. The original picture is on The
WAVE Facebook page.
Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch: Doug shared that Tabatha had a birthday.
Operations Superintendent Brent Olson: He shared how the drivers did a great job
during the inclement weather event. Some intercity trips had to be cancelled on
Saturday due to highway closures. He is very proud of the drivers. Board Chair
Huffman said to tell all the drivers’ “good job”.
NWR Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: None.

26.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

Jim Huffman — Ditto to Marty and Judy’s comments about treacherous conditions. He
asked that Doug and Brent let the drivers know that the Board appreciates them. He
would like the Board to sign a thank you card. GM Doug Pilant said staff can make
that happen.

Judy Riggs — She was in Salem where her son lost power. The damage has resulted
in the possibility of his house being without power for 3 or 4 weeks. While driving over
and back, she was thinking about TCTD drivers and what they go through, especially
Salem.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

7 —



Regular Meeting 2/18/2021
Marty Holm — He also acknowledged the District and their continued service during
inclement weather. As a rider, he knows how valuable the services are and it is nice
to hear how the drivers rise to the occasion year in and year out. He asked that Doug
and Brent be sure to thank the drivers.
Jackie Edwards — Noticed there was no executive session. The Board may consider
having the meetings live or taped by Jane Scott similar to the Tillamook County Board
of Commissioners’ meetings. This will ensure we know what is being planned from
one meeting to the next, like the promise of the GM’s review. Board Chair Huffman
said he spoke with GM Doug Pilant and is postponing to March. She does not want it
to be like last year where it kept get putting off. She is concerned about accountability.
Board Chair Huffman assured her it will be on the March board meeting agenda.
Gary Hanenkrat — None, wished everyone to have a good evening.
Linda Adler — Not tonight, have a good evening.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — Great to hear that Doug got time with family and sharing
his picture. Thanked the crew for all the safe driving. Thanked everyone for the
smooth meeting and being mindful so everyone could be allowed to talk and hear.
Board Chair Huffman attended a meeting that Mis presented called Prevention and
said he was really impressed.

Adjournment: Board Chair Huffman adjourned the meeting at 7:18pm.

These minutes approved this 18" day of March, 2020.
ATTEST:

James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

8 Vi



Tillamook County Transportation District

“Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”

TCTD BUDGET COMMITTEE
MEMBER APPLICATION

Name
Deborah Jane Vaan Wickle

Address

City Bay City State Oregon Zip97107
! Home/Cell Phone Work Phone

Email

Occupation (if applicable)
retired BS Social Work Concordia 2009 Portland, Oregon

Community Affiliations / Interests
Bay City United Methodist Church  sewing, gardening, VFW Auxiliary-post recently closed;

volunteer driver, dog sitter and domestic help

The TCTD Budget Committee is required to meet to evaluate and approve an annual
budget in accordance to Oregon’s Public Budget Law. Your appointment to the
committee is for a 3-year term. Meetings are held at the TCTD Administrative Office.

Signature Date

M (/ o LU/CAQQ 02/25/2021

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 « (503)815-8283 * FAX (503) 815-2834

WWW . TILLAMOOKBUS.COM %5



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

An Ordinance Establishing )
Regulations Governing Conduct )
on District Property ) ORDINANCE NO. 3

The Board of Directors of Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) does
hereby ordain and decree the following Ordinance:

1.05 To facilitate the purposes set forth in ORS Chapter 267, and for the safety,
convenience, and comfort of District Passengers and for the protection and preservation
of District property, it is necessary to establish the following rules and regulations
governing use of District facilities and providing remedies for violations thereof.

1.10 Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, unless the context requires otherwise:

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

(6)

(7)

“District” means the Tillamook County Transportation District.

“District Appeals Officer’” means any person designated by the District
General Manager to hear appeals to Notices of Exclusion.

"District Facility” includes the District Administrative Facility, the Transit
Center any other District transit bus stop, any bus passenger shelter, any
District-operated parking lot or park-and-ride lot, covered areas of any bus
stop, and any lands and rights of way that are owned, leased, held, or
used for the purposes of providing public transportation services.

“District Transit System” means the property, equipment and
improvements of whatever nature owned, leased or controlled by the
District to provide public transportation for passengers or to provide for
movement of people, and includes any District Vehicle and any District
Facility.

The “Boarding Platform Areas” of the Transit Center are designated on the
attached Map. Boarding Platform Areas at bus stops within public rights-
of-way are limited to eight feet from bus doors while buses are
loading/unloading. Boarding Platform Areas at other locations
owned/controlled by the District shall be eight feet from the curb where
buses load/unload passengers.

A “shelter” is the area within the drip line of any structure located at a
District bus stop that is designed or used to protect District customers from
adverse weather conditions.

“District Vehicle” includes a bus, van or other vehicle used to transport
passengers or a Vehicle owned or operated by or on behalf of the District.



1.15

(8)

(10)

(11)

“‘Emergency” includes, but is not limited to, a fire on a District Vehicle or
Facility, or serious physical injury to person, or threat thereof, or any
apparently urgent medical need.

“Operator” means a District employee responsible for operating any
District Vehicle.

“Passenger’ means a person who holds a valid fare, or is otherwise
authorized a free or reduced fare, and is en route on a District Vehicle, or
waiting for the next available District Vehicle, to such person’s destination,
or a person who enters a District Facility with the intent to purchase a valid
fare for transportation on the next available District Vehicle to such
person's destination.

“Police Officer” shall have the meaning as defined in ORS 181.610.

(12) “Safety and Inspector Officer’” means a person other than a “Police
Officer” authorized by the General Manager to demand proof of fare
payment and to issue citations as provided in this ordinance.

(13) “Supervisor’ means any District employee responsible for the supervision
of any District transit operation.

(14) “Service Animal” means any animal used by a person who requires the
assistance of such animal to facilitate that person'’s life functions, including
but not limited to seeing and hearing.

Requlations:

(1)

Elderly and Disabled Seating. The seats at the front of buses are
reserved for the use of disabled and senior Passengers. Non-qualifying
passengers must vacate such seating upon request of any District Vehicle
operator or employee.

Smoking Prohibited. No person shall smoke tobacco or any other

substance, or carry any burning or smoldering substance, in any form,
aboard a District vehicle or within the boundaries of any District Facility;
except smoking may be permitted at a District Facility within any posted
area designated as a “SMOKING AREA.” The General Manager or her/his
designee may designate appropriate areas where smoking is permitted.

Alcohol and Drugs. No person shall use or possess alcohol or illegal
drugs on a District Vehicle or Facility, except for lawfully possessed and
unopened alcoholic beverages.

Criminal Activity. No person shall engage in any activity prohibited by
State, County or Municipal Law of Oregon while on a District Vehicle, or
within any District Facility or the District Transit System.

Disorderly Conduct. No person shall intentionally or recklessly cause
inconvenience, annoyance or alarm to another by:

(a)  Engaging in fighting, or violent, tumultuous or threatening behavior
(physical or verbal), within any District Vehicle or District Facility;

~A

—,



(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(b)  Making unreasonable noise within any District Vehicle or in any
District Facilities;

(c) Obstructing the free movement of passengers within any District
Vehicle or District Facility;

(d)  Creating a hazardous or physically offensive condition within a
District Vehicle or District Facility;

(e)  Otherwise violate ORS 166.025 as now in effect or hereafter
amended.

Harassment. No person shall intentionally or recklessly harass or annoy
another person by:

(a)  Subjecting such other person to offensive physical contact;

(b)  Publicly insulting such other person by abusive words or gestures
in a manner intended and likely to provoke a violent response; or

(c)  Otherwise violate ORS 166.065 as now in effect or hereafter
amended.

Threatening or Offensive Language. No person shall intentionally or
recklessly disturb, harass, or intimidate another person by means of
threatening or offensive language, or obscenities in a District Vehicle or in
a District Facility in such a manner as to interfere with a passenger’s use
and enjoyment of the transit system.

Food and Beverages. For the protection of public safety, no person shall

bring aboard a District Vehicle any food or beverage in open containers.
No person shall consume food or alcohol on any District Vehicle.
Passengers on District Vehicles may consume non-alcoholic beverages
only from containers with snap-on or screw-on lids.

Littering, Spitting. No person shall discard or deposit, other than into a
trash receptacle provided for that purpose, any rubbish, trash, debris,
cigarette butts, or offensive substance in or upon a District Vehicle or
District Facility. No person shall spit, defecate, or urinate in or upon any
District Vehicle or District Facility except in a toilet.

Interfering with Public Transportation. No person shall:

(a) Intentionally or knowingly enter unlawfully or remain unlawfully in or
on a District Vehicle or District Facility;

(b) Intentionally or knowingly interfere with the provision or use of
public transportation services by, among other things, interfering
with the movement of, or access to, District Vehicles;

(c) While in or on a District Vehicle or District Facility, engage in
disorderly conduct in the second degree as defined in ORS
166.025;

(d)  Subject a District passenger, employee, agent or Police Officer to
offensive physical contact; or



(11)

(12)

(13)

(e)

Otherwise violate ORS 166.116 as now in effect or hereafter
amended.

Safety.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

All passengers (except infants who are held) must wear shoes,
pants/shorts and shirt, a dress, or comparable clothing on District
Vehicles and in District Facilities. In addition, all passengers must
cover any exposed skin that may transmit communicable disease.

No person shall in any manner hang onto, or attach himself or
herself onto any exterior part of a District Vehicle at any time. In
addition, no person shall extend any portion of his or her body
through any door or window of a District Vehicle.

No person shall ride a skateboard, roller skates or in-line skates in
a District Vehicle or District Facility. Passengers with in-line skates
will be allowed in a District Vehicle or District Facility so long as the
wheels are rendered inoperable by a device (“skate guard”)
designed to provide stability and traction to the user and to permit
the user to walk while wearing the skates.

No person shall discharge any weapon or throw, or cause to be
thrown or projected, any object at or within a District Vehicle or
District Facility, or at any person on a District Vehicle or in any part
of a District Facility.

No person shall interfere, in any manner, with the safe operation or
movement of any District Vehicle.

No person shall impede or block the free movement of passengers,
or otherwise disrupt the functions of the District in any District
Facility Boarding Platform Area, or in any District Vehicle.

Damaging or Defacing District Property. No person shall:

(a)

(b)

Draw graffiti or any other writing on any District Vehicle or any other
District Property; or

In any manner damage, destroy, interfere with, or obstruct in any
manner, the property, services, or facilities of the District.

District Property.

(a)

(b)

Use of the District Transit System. The Transit System is
intended for the use of the District's passengers. To ensure the
safety, comfort, and convenience of such passengers, no person
shall impede or block the free movement of passengers, interfere
with ingress and egress from District Facilities and Vehicles,
intimidate or harass other passengers, or in any manner interfere
with the principal transportation purpose to which the Transit
System is dedicated.

Limited Access Areas. To ensure the safety, comfort, and
convenience of District passengers and the safe and efficient
operation of the Transit System, only passengers, District




(14)

(15)

(16)

personnel, and those transacting District business shall be
permitted within any District administrative facility, customer service
center, shelter, District vehicle, and on any District boarding
platform area.

(c) Off-hours Closure. All District Facilities shall be closed during
non-operating hours. No person other than Police Officers, District
personnel, or persons authorized by the District shall be in or about
any District Facility during hours in which that District Facility is
closed to the general public.

(d) District’s Right of Closure. The District expressly reserves the
right to close any District facilities and exclude all access at a time
and for a duration to be determined by the District Board or General
Manager. Such closure may be necessary for reasons that include,
but are not limited to, an emergency, natural disaster, cleaning, or
repairs.

(e) Damaging District Property. No person shall damage, destroy,
interfere with, or obstruct in any manner the property, services, or
facilities of the District.

(f) Exclusion of Non-District Vehicles. Unless otherwise allowed by
posted sign, all non-District vehicles are excluded from District
Facilities. Emergency vehicles and other vehicles authorized by the
District are exempt from this exclusion.

(9) Free Movement of District Vehicles. No person or vehicle shall
obstruct the free movement of District Vehicles while loading or
unloading passengers, or while entering or exiting District Facilities.

(h)  Skateboards, In-line Skates, Bicycles. No person shall ride a
bicycle, skateboard or in-line skates at District facilities. Bicycles
shall only be parked at a District Facility in designated areas.

Animals. No person shall bring or carry aboard a District Vehicle, or take
into a District Facility, any animal not housed in an enclosed carrying
container, except for a person who requires a service animal, or a person
training a service animal. In no event, however, shall any animal be
allowed on a District Vehicle or at a District Facility if such animal creates
a hazard to any passenger or District employee.

Carriages and Strollers. No person shall bring or carry aboard a District
Vehicle a carriage or stroller unless such item is folded and unoccupied.
carriages and strollers must remain folded while aboard the District
Vehicle.

Packages. Any packages or parcels brought aboard a District Vehicle
must be able to be stored on and/or below one seat (if available), and
must be secured so as to prevent their displacement should the vehicle be
required to make a sudden stop or sharp turn. In no event shall any
package or parcel be allowed to block access to any aisle or stairway.




(17)

(18)

(22)

(23)

(24)

Radios. No person shall play radios, or other audio devices or musical
instruments on a District Vehicle or in a District Facility, unless the sound
produced thereby is only audible through earphones to the person
carrying the device.

Repulsive Odors. No person shall board or remain on a District Vehicle
or enter or remain in a District Facility if the person, the person’s clothing,
or anything in the person’s possession, emits a grossly repulsive or
noxious odor that is unavoidable by other District passengers on the
vehicle or in the facility and which causes extreme discomfort to District
passengers or employees.

Emergency Exit. No person shall activate the “Emergency Exit” or alarm
device of a District Vehicle or Facility in the absence of an emergency.

District Seats. No person shall place his or her feet on seat cushions on
any District Vehicle or in any District Facility.

Posting Notices. Except as otherwise allowed by District regulation, no
person shall place, permit or cause to be placed any notice or
advertisement upon any District Vehicle, or on any District Facility or upon
any non-District Vehicle without the owner's consent while the vehicle is
parked at a District Facility.

Flammable Substances. No person shall bring aboard District Vehicles,
or take into District Facilities flammable substances, except for matches
and cigarette lighters.

Weapons. No person, except a Police Officer, shall bring into or carry
aboard a District Vehicle, or bring into a District Facility, any knife, (except
a folding knife with a blade less than 3 %% inches in length), ice pick, bow,
arrow, crossbow, any explosive device or material, any instrument or
weapon commonly known as a blackjack, sling shot, sand club, sandbag,
sap glove or metal knuckles, etc., or any other illegal or unlawfully
possessed weapon of any kind.

Non-payment of Fare; Misuse of Bus Pass or Group Pass.

(a) Non-payment of Fare. No person shall occupy, ride in or use, any
District Vehicle unless the person has paid the applicable fare; has
a valid and lawfully acquired transfer, bus pass, or group pass; or is
otherwise authorized a free or reduced fare.

(b) Misuse of Bus Pass. No person shall use or attempt to use a
District bus pass to board or ride in a District Vehicle unless the bus
pass was lawfully acquired at an authorized District outlet by or on
behalf of the person. Unless otherwise transferable by the express
terms of the bus pass, only the person identified on the bus pass
may use such pass.

(c) Misuse of Group Pass. No person shall use or attempt to use a
District group pass to board or ride in a District Vehicle unless:

(i) The group pass was lawfully acquired at an authorized
District outlet by or on behalf of the person; and
6

oL



(ii) The group passes is used according to the terms of the
applicable group pass agreement; and

(iii)  The person is a current member of the group to whom group
pass were issued pursuant to the applicable group pass
agreement.

(d)  Confiscation of Misused Bus Pass or Group Bus Pass. Any
District Vehicle operator or any Police Officer may confiscate a bus
pass or group bus pass used or presented for use in violation of
subsections (b) or (c) of this section.

(e) Nonpayment of Fare, Misuse of Bus Pass or Group Bus Pass
is Theft. Any person who violates subsection (a), (b) or (c) above,
in addition to any penalties described herein, may be subject to
criminal prosecution for theft of services.

1.20 Exclusion.

(1)

(2)

In addition to any penalties provided herein for the violation of this
Ordinance, and to any penalties for the violation of the laws of the State of
Oregon, any Police Officer, Safety and Inspector Officer and other
persons as may be designated by the District's General Manager, may
issue a Notice of Exclusion from the District Transit System to any person
who violates this Ordinance. The maximum period for exclusion shall not
exceed ninety (90) days.

(a) Except as provided in (b) below, written Notice signed by the
issuing authority shall be given to a person who has been excluded
from all or part of the District Transit System. The written Notice
shall specify the particular violation or reason for exclusion, places
and duration of exclusion, and the consequences for failure to
comply with the notice.

(b) In order to ensure the safety, convenience, and comfort of all
passengers, a District Vehicle operator may, without giving written
Notice of Exclusion, direct a passenger to leave a District Vehicle,
or direct a prospective passenger not to board a District Vehicle, if
the operator has probable cause to conclude that such passenger
is in violation of any provision of the Ordinance. Without written
Notice of Exclusion, such exclusion shall be effective only for the
route in progress at the time of the exclusion.

A Notice of Exclusion shall be effective immediately upon issuance and
shall remain in effect until the exclusion expires, is terminated by the
District, or is rendered ineffective upon appeal. Any person receiving a
Notice of Exclusion may appeal in writing under the foliowing procedures:

(a)  Appeals must be in writing and delivered to the District Appeals
Manager within ten (10) days of receipt of the Notice of Exclusion.
For appeals sent by mail, timeliness shall be determined by the
date postmarked.

(w0



(3)

(4)

(b)  The District Appeals Officer shall review the appeal and issue a
decision within ten (10) days after receipt of the appeal. He or she
shall notify appellant, in writing, of the decision. The exclusion shall
remain in effect during the pendency of the appeal.

(c) If the decision on appeal is in favor of the excluded person, the
period of exclusion set forth in the Notice of Exclusion shall be
terminated immediately. If the appellant is dissatisfied with the
ruling of the District Appeals Officer, he or she may appeal to the
District General Manager.

(d)  Appeals to the District General Manager must be made within ten
(10) days of the District Appeals Officer’s decision. Appellants shall
have the right to present information at a meeting open to the
public, if desired, and will be notified of the date, time, and location.

(e)  The District General Manager shall render a decision within fifteen
(15) days after receiving the appeal. The decision by the District
General Manager shall be final.

Notwithstanding (2) above, at any time during the period of exclusion, a
person who has received a Notice of Exclusion may apply to the District
Appeals Officer for a variance to allow the person to enter upon the
District Transit System. The District Appeals Officer may, at his or her
sole discretion, grant a variance if the person establishes a need to enter
upon the District Transit System for reasons of employment, medical
treatment or similar good cause. A variance may include such conditions
as the District Appeals Officer determines will prevent future offenses.

A person excluded under this section may not enter or remain upon any
part of the District Transit System from which the person is excluded
during the stated period of exclusion. [n addition to penalties imposed by
this Ordinance, an excluded person who enters or remains upon any
District Vehicle or part of the District Transit System from which the person
has been excluded, may be charged with Criminal Trespass in the Second
Degree, ORS 164.245, or as amended hereafter, and subjected to the
penalties thereto.

1.25 Violations and Enforcement.

(1)

Any Police Officer, Safety and Inspector Officer, or Operator has the
authority to refuse entrance on a District Vehicle or District Facility, require
departure from a District Vehicle or District Facility, or to require a seating
change, of any person who violates this ordinance, regardless of location
and regardless of pass, transfer, ticket, or valid fare.

In addition to being excluded from the system pursuant to §1.20 of this
Ordinance, any person who violates this Ordinance commits a violation as
defined in ORS 153.008 to 153.025 and, upon conviction, may be
punished by a fine of not more than $250, in addition to other penalties
provide by law.

[l



(3)  Any Police Officer as well as Safety and Inspector Officer is authorized to
issue citations to any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance.
Safety and Inspector Officers are not Police Officers and only have the
powers to arrest afforded a private person under ORS 133.225.

(4)  Refusal of service. Refusal of service may occur only in situations where
a rider engages in violent, seriously disruptive, or illegal conduct; or
represents a direct threat to the health or safety of others. The District
shall not refuse to provide service to an individual with disabilities solely
because the individual's disability results in involuntary behavior that may
offend, annoy, or inconvenience others.

1.30 Jurisdiction. The laws of the State of Oregon, and all local laws of the
jurisdiction where any infraction occurs, apply with equal force and effect to the District
Transit System. Police Officers are expressly authorized to enforce all applicable State
and local laws, and this Ordinance, upon the District Transit System.

1.35 Severability. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of Tillamook
County Transportation District that the provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if
any provision, clause, section, or part is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or
inapplicable to any person or circumstance, the remaining provisions shall continue to
be in force and such partial illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall
not affect or impair the application of the remaining provisions to other persons and
circumstances.

2.0 Effective Date. These amendments to Ordinance No. 3 shall become effective
thirty (30) days after their adoption.

Passed and adopted by the District Board this 18" day of March, 2021 and signed by
the Board Chair and Board Clerk in authentication of its passage.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

First Reading: Board Chair

Second Reading:

Effective Date: Attest:

Board Clerk

L1



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Adopting the Template Blanket
Purchase Agreement and Authorizing
the General Manager to Execute
Individual Agreements

s e e

RESOLUTION NO. 21-10

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) has the power to act
as a broker for non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) services under ORS
Chapter 267; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization
(CPCCO) recognize that such a brokerage arrangement for NEMT services creates
efficiencies for and is in the best interest of both parties; and

WHEREAS, TCTD desires to act as a broker for NEMT services for CPCCO; and

WHEREAS, TCTD desires to engage various subcontractors to provide NEMT
services through TCTD’s brokerage; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has developed a Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) through
which it will engage subcontractors to provide NEMT services; and

WHEREAS, TCTD recognizes that time is of the essence in contracting with
subcontractors for NEMT services; and

WHEREAS, TCTD desires to approve the form of the template BPA in a form
substantially similar to the document attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

The form of the template Blanket Purchase Agreement is approved; the General
Manager is authorized to work with the District’'s attorney to make such changes
as are required to finalize the Blanket Purchase Agreement; and the General
Manager is authorized to execute individual Blanket Purchase Agreements on
behalf of the Tillamook County Transportation District with its NEMT
subcontractors without further approval.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18t day of March, 2021.
ATTEST:
By: By:

James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager
45039-76820 4819-7499-1794.1

s



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Blanket Purchase Agreement (“BPA”) is entered into between Tillamook
County Transportation District (“TCTD”) and
(“Contractor”) to provide Non-Emergent Medical Transportation (“NEMT”) services
through the NW Rides Brokerage (“NWR”) under the terms and conditions that follow.

1. BPA Terms and Conditions

This BPA consists of every provision of the documents listed below that are
incorporated into and made a part hereof. Any conflict between or among any
term or condition of the listed documents shall be resolved in the following order
of precedence, unless otherwise specifically indicated:

1.1 Wiritten contract modifications executed by the parties after execution of
the BPA;

1.2  This BPA signatures form;
1.3  Section I, “General Program Description;"
1.4  Section I, “General Provisions;”

1.5  Attachment A, “Required Contractor Information and Pricing,” completed
by Contractor and approved by TCTD;

1.6  Attachment B, “Brokerage Transportation Provider Standards;”
1.7  Attachment C, “Criminal Records History Review Criteria;”

1.8 Attachment D, “Special Federal Requirements;”

1.9  Attachment E, “Code of Professional Conduct for Drivers;”

1.10 Attachment F, “HIPAA Compliance and Fraud, Waste & Abuse;”

1.11 Appendix 1 to Attachment F, “TCTD-CPCCO Business Associate
Agreement”;

1.12 Attachment G, “Mileage Reimbursement Policy”; and

1.13 Attachment H, “NEMT Rider’'s Guide”.

Page 1 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (p)_(



2. Term of BPA

This BPA is effective upon the date signed below by both authorized parties. The
BPA will automatically renew annually on July 1, unless terminated earlier under
the provisions of this BPA, or unless notice is given by either party no more than
ninety (90) days and no less than thirty (30) days prior to the renewal date.

3. Project Managers

The parties shall provide a Project Manager who shall be responsible for
coordination, direction and notices under this BPA. The TCTD Project Manager
is:

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3rd Street, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141

(503) 354-8083

cbond@tillamookbus.com

Contractor’s Project Manager shall be the individual identified in Attachment A,
paragraph 11, entitled “Key Contact Information,” under subparagraph A
(Management/Operations). [f either party changes its Project Manager, the party
making the change shall promptly provide written notice to the other party.

4. Authority

The parties signing below represent that they have authority to bind the parties
for whom they sign.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Page 2 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (OE)

S



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this agreement on the
dates set forth below.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Date: Date:
By: By:
(SIGNATURE) (SIGNATURE)
Name: Name:
(PRINT NAME) (PRINT NAME)
Title: Title:
Address:
Phone:
Page 3 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (_0 (D



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

SECTION |

GENERAL PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

This Blanket Purchase Agreement (“BPA”) has been established for Contractor to
provide non-emergent medical transportation (“NEMT”) services for Columbia Pacific
Coordinated Care Organization (“CPCCQO”) members to and from Medicaid-covered
medical services and other authorized destinations. Rides will be authorized by a
centralized scheduling service operated by Tillamook County Transportation District
(“TCTD"), referred to hereafter as the NW Rides Brokerage.

1. Program Description

CPCCO NEMT services are designed to transport CPCCO members of all ages
to and from approved non-emergent medical services so such services will be
accessible to eligible individuals who have no other means of transportation or
are unable to use existing public transportation. TCTD operates the NW Rides
Brokerage (“NWR”) that screens NEMT ride requests from CPCCO members
and schedules contractors to provide suitable transportation services.

2. Definitions

2.1

2.2

23

2.4
2.5

2.6

After Hours: Any time outside of Regular Business Hours.

Assistant: An individual provided by Contractor to assist with client
transports. Also referred to as a Service Technician.

Attendant: An individual provided by the client to accompany client during
transport.

Regular Business Hours: Monday through Friday, 8 A.M. to 5 P.M.

Service Area: Clatsop, Columbia, and Tillamook Counties. NWR provides
NEMT services to CPCCO members residing in the Service Area. NEMT
services may also be provided to eligible OHP recipients from outside the
Service Area or to return them home from the Service Area. Rides may
also be authorized to and from destinations outside the Service Area when
the required services are not available within the Service Area but are
available in another area of the State, or in adjacent states. Attachment A,
paragraph 9 identifies Contractor’s service area for purposes of providing
NEMT services under this BPA.

Service Technician: An individual provided by Contractor to assist with
client transports. Also referred to as an Assistant.

Page 4 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



2.7 Target Population:

2.7.1 CPCCO members of all ages who need NEMT to and from
approved medical services and who have no other transportation
resources available to them or cannot access existing public
transportation; and

2.7.2 CPCCO members authorized for other transportation services by
TCTD under this BPA.

2.8 TCTD: Tillamook County Transportation District and its assignees and
subsidiaries.

2.9 Work: The required activities, obligations, tasks, deliverables, reporting,
and invoicing requirements described in this BPA and the documents
incorporated by reference and made a part hereof.

3. Types of Transportation

3.1 This BPA provides for the following types of transportation which are
offered through NWR:

3.1.1 Van transportation including wheelchair lift-equipped vans;
3.1.2 Sedan service, including taxicabs;
3.1.3 Stretcher van service;
3.1.4 Secure transport; and
3.1.5 Non-Emergent Ambulance.
4. Brokerage Management

TCTD provides overall management of NWR for the Service Area. NWR screens
requests for transportation assistance to ensure that individuals requesting
services are eligible to receive NEMT services. If eligible, NWR arranges
transportation by one of the contractors holding a BPA with TCTD. Selection of a
contractor to provide services under the BPA is at the sole discretion of TCTD as
the operator of NWR and is not negotiable.

5. Contractor Responsibilities

5.1  Contractors are responsible for meeting the provisions of this BPA
including the attached:

5.1.1 Required Contractor Information and Pricing (Attachment A);
Page 5 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 { %



5.1.2 Brokerage Transportation Provider Standards (Attachment B);
5.1.3 Criminal Records History Review Criteria (Attachment C);
5.1.4 Special Federal Requirements (Attachment D);

5.1.5 Code of Professional Conduct for Drivers (Attachment E);

5.1.6 HIPAA Compliance and Fraud, Waste & Abuse (Attachment F,
including Appendix 1);

5.1.7 Mileage Reimbursement Policy (Attachment G); and
5.1.8 NEMT Rider’'s Guide (Attachment H).

Attachments A, B, C, D, E, F, G and H and their Appendices are herein
incorporated by reference. One or more violations of any of the requirements in
this BPA, including the Brokerage Transportation Provider Standards, as
determined by TCTD may be grounds for termination or suspension in TCTD’s
sole discretion.

Page 6 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (Oq



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
SECTION I
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Description of Agreement

This Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) is for the purchase of transportation to
and from services in the Service Area as described in Section |, paragraph 3,
General Program Description. Purchase of the services required by this BPA
shall be made if and when TCTD’s Project Manager, or their designee, places at
their discretion a call against this BPA. This is not an exclusive agreement. TCTD
does not warrant or guarantee Contractor a minimum or maximum amount of
calls or purchases against this BPA.

2, Extent of Obligation

TCTD is obligated only to the extent of authorized purchases actually made by
NWR and performed by Contractor as required under this BPA.

3. Pricing and Profile Forms

Contractor shall complete the pricing forms to be supplied separately. These
forms shall be completed to the satisfaction of TCTD prior to the placement of
any call against this BPA. Contractor is authorized to change its pricing no more
than once every three months.

4. Pricing

4.1 Contractor is authorized to set its own prices within the following
parameters:

4.1.1 Payment for mileage will be calculated pursuant to the mileage
reimbursement policy set forth in Attachment G.

4.1.2 No payment will be made for duplicate mileage. When two NEMT
clients are transported at the same time, only one mileage charge
will be allowed.

4.1.3 Shared NEMT ride rates shall be no more than half the base rate for
each mode of transportation in accordance with OAR 410-136-3220.

4.1.4 Wait time may be included in the contracted rate but will be paid
only in the case of a medical interval in route (vomiting, nausea, or
other medically necessary episode) and only as authorized by NWR.

Page 7 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3

/0



4.1.5 No payment will be made for any services other than those listed on
the Contractor’s pricing proposal without prior approval by NWR.
Contractor may not charge additional fees for transports to or from
specific facilities or for pharmacy stops without prior authorization.

4.1.6 No repair fee for vehicles damaged by NEMT clients during
transport is allowed.

4.1.7 No cleanup fee for vehicles is allowed without prior approval.

4.1.8 No charges for assistance or “waiting time” prior to the time the
NEMT client enters the vehicle or for assistance after the NEMT
client exits the vehicle are allowed.

4.1.9 No additional charge may be made for an authorized escort or
attendant accompanying the NEMT client.

4.1.10 No payment will be made for no-show or late-cancel trips.
4.1.11 Trips may be offered to Contractor on a case-by-case “bid” basis.

4.2  Contractor is expected to determine its pricing structure based on the
actual costs incurred by the individual company, not on what similar
companies are charging. Agreement among competitors to raise, fix or
otherwise maintain the price at which their services are sold is prohibited
and is grounds for suspension or termination of this BPA in TCTD'’s sole
discretion.

5. Purchase Limitations

5.1  Alltransport, with the exception of after-hours urgent transports, must
receive prior authorization by NWR.

5.2  Authorization for after-hours transport will be determined by NWR. No
retroactive authorization or payment will be made for after-hours transport
claims if supporting information is not submitted to NWR within 24 hours
or by the end of the next business day after the service was provided.

After 7 days, Trip assignments are no longer accessible in the Ecolane web
interface and cannot be marked as completed. Contractor shall not bill for trip
assignments that are not marked as completed in Ecolane without prior approval
from NWR.

Page 8 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 H l
|



6. Reimbursement

6.1  Reimbursement will be made for the route and mileage selected from
point of origin to the destination by Ecolane.

6.2 Reimbursement will be made only when transport of a NEMT client has
occurred.

6.3 Reimbursement is based on the condition that the NEMT service was
provided as authorized by NWR, including shared ride status, escort
requirements, assigned pick-up and drop-off locations, and any other
directions provided by NWR with the trip assignment.

6.4 Reimbursement by NWR is considered to be payment in full.
7. Billing

7.1 Allbilling is generated automatically in Ecolane based on completed trip
assignments. Contractor is responsible for reviewing billing in Ecolane.
With the exception of ambulance and secured transport providers,
Contractor must equip vehicles with tablets running Ecolane in order to
receive and complete trip assignments. All providers must submit the
following information for all billing using the Ecolane web interface:

7.1.1 Trip authorization number;
7.1.2 Client name;

7.1.3 Mode of transportation, i.e., sedan, wheelchair vehicle, stretcher,
secured, etc.

7.1.4 Date and time of transport;
7.1.5 Pick-up and drop off locations;
7.1.6 Scheduled time of pickup;
7.1.7 Actual time of pickup;

7.1.8 Actual time of drop-off;

7.1.9 Trip charge;

7.1.10 Trip mileage;

7.1.11 Driver name;

Page 9 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 / /:)



7.1.12 Vehicle number or other identification.

7.2  One or more incidents of inappropriate billing practices for NEMT services
provided under this BPA shall be deemed a material breach of the BPA
and subject to immediate suspension or termination of the BPA for cause
in TCTD's sole discretion. Inappropriate billing practices include, but are
not limited to, the following:

7.2.1 Overbilling for transportation services, including billing for additional
mileage in violation of the Mileage Reimbursement Policy set forth in
Attachment G.

7.2.2 Billing for individual rides where shared rides were provided.
7.2.3 Billing for services not provided.

7.2.4 Billing Medicare or other federal, state or private insurance for
services authorized under this BPA.

7.2.5 Billing NEMT clients for services authorized under this BPA.
7.2.6 Billing for service animals.

7.3 Invoices for services under this BPA shall be submitted only for trips
authorized by NWR. Contractor shall submit weekly invoices to NWR.
Invoices for trips shall be submitted no later than fifteen (15) days after the
date of service. Invoices must be submitted electronically using Ecolane
web interface.

7.4  Contractor shall not bill clients directly for NEMT services authorized
under this BPA. Contractor shall not bill clients or NWR for no-shows or
canceled trips.

8. Payment

8.1  Payment for services under this BPA shall be made only for trips
authorized by NWR. TCTD shall pay Contractor for all undisputed invoices
within thirty (30) days after TCTD receives approval to pay the invoice
from NWR for calls placed against this BPA.

8.2 TCTD may dispute any charges invoiced by Contractor by identifying the
specific charge(s) and requesting additional documentation or other
information from the Contractor within fifteen (15) days of receiving the
invoice. If TCTD rejects an invoiced charge it will notify the Contractor in
writing. Contractor will have seven (7) days after receipt of the rejection to
appeal the rejection to TCTD's Project Manager in writing. TCTD’s Project

Page 10 of 66

A
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 7 P

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021



Manager shall consider the appeal and shall provide a final decision in
writing to Contractor within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the appeal.

8.3  If an audit or billing review by TCTD identifies overbilling or other
excessive charges, Contractor will be required to reimburse TCTD for the
amount of the overpayment (without limitation of TCTD’s other rights and
remedies, including, but not limited to, TCTD's right to terminate or
suspend Contractor). Audit and review may take place any time after
payment for NEMT services has been made.

9. Insurance

9.1  During the term of this BPA, Contractor shall purchase and maintain all
insurance required by this BPA. Contractor shall furnish acceptable
certificates of insurance and copies of applicable insurance policies,
binders and addenda to TCTD within ten (10) days prior to the award of
this BPA and prior to commencement of any work under this BPA.
Contractor shall also furnish acceptable certificates of insurance and
copies of applicable insurance policies, binders and addenda to TCTD
within ten (10) days prior to policy renewal, change, or change of the
insurance carrier.

9.2 Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all premiums and
deductibles. Contractor shall maintain insurance of the types and in the
amounts described below:

9.2.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance

Covers bodily injury, death and property damage in a form and with coverages
that are satisfactory to TCTD. This insurance shall include personal injury liability,
advertising liability, products and completed operations, contractual liability
coverage for the indemnity provided under this BPA, and have no limitation of
coverage to designated premises, project or operation. Coverage shall be
written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,500,000.00 for
any single claimant, and $3,000,000.00 for multiple claimants. Annual aggregate
limit shall not be less than $5,000,000.00.

9.2.2 Automobile Liability Insurance

Insurance covering all business use in the State of Oregon including coverage of
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles. Coverage shall be written on an
occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,500,000.00 for any single
claimant, and $3,000,000.00 for multiple claimants. This coverage may be
written in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with
separate limits for “Commercial General Liability” and “Automobile Liability”).
Use of personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable at

Page 11 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

4503976820 4813-8415-2265.3 | /|
[LL



TCTD’s sole discretion if such coverage is written for a minimum of
$1,000,000.00 and Contractor submits evidence that the policy includes a
business use endorsement.

9.2.3 Worker's Compensation Insurance

All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in
ORS 656.027, shall comply with ORS 656.017, and shall provide worker's
compensation insurance coverage for those workers, unless they meet the
requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). If Contractor is a subject
employer, as defined in ORS 656.023, Contractor shall obtain employers’ liability
insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 each accident. If
Contractor is an employer subject to any other state's workers' compensation
law, Contractor shall provide workers’ compensation insurance coverage for its
employees as required by applicable workers’ compensation laws including
employers’ liability insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 and
shall require and ensure that each of its out-of-state subcontractors complies with
these requirements. Contractor shall require and ensure that each of its
Subcontractors complies with these requirements.

The certificates of insurance provided by Contractor shall be executed by a duly
authorized representative of each insurer showing compliance with the insurance
requirements set forth above.

Failure of TCTD to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance
with these insurance requirements or failure of TCTD to identify a deficiency from
evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor's
obligation to maintain such insurance.

In the event of cancellation or restriction by the Contractor's insurance company
of any insurance coverage required herein, the Contractor shall notify TCTD
orally and in writing before the cancellation takes effect or no later than two (2)
days from notification by the insurance company. Failure to notify TCTD as
stated is cause for termination of this BPA.

9.3 The insurance required under this Paragraph shall:

9.3.1 Beissued by an insurance company licensed to do business in the
State of Oregon;

9.3.2 Be issued by an insurance company with an A.M. Best rating of
Excellent or better;

9.3.3 Include TCTD dba NWR and each of its respective directors,
officers, representatives, agents, and employees as additional
insureds with respect to work or operations connected with the BPA

Page 12 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



for the Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability
insurance. Also include the State of Oregon, Oregon Health
Authority, CPCCO, and each of their respective directors, officers,
representatives, agents, and employees as additional insureds with
respect to work or operations connected with the BPA for the
Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance.

Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and
self-insurance. The Additional Insured endorsement with respect to liability
arising out of Contractor's ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 10 07
04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect to
completed operations must be on ISO form CG 20 37 04 13 or equivalent.

9.4  Contractor’s insurance shall apply as primary and neither Contractor nor
its insurer(s) will seek contribution from any insurance maintained by or
provided to the additional insureds listed above. This limitation must be
stated on the insurance certificate.

9.5 Where permitted by law, Contractor will cause their underwriters of
insurance policies to waive their rights of subrogation arising from the
work performed under this contact. This waiver must be stated on the
certificate and endorsements attached to the insurance certificate.

9.6 In addition to Contractor’s other requirements of indemnity under this BPA,
Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify TCTD, its officers,
directors, employees and agents from and against any loss, expenses,
assessments, penalties, costs, claims or liability, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, resulting from Contractor's failure to provide the insurance
required by this BPA, including but not limited to a finding or determination
by a court, regulatory agency or other entity with governing legal authority
that Contractor is subject to the requirements of the worker’s
compensation statutes.

9.7  Notice of Cancellation or Change: Contractor shall assure that no
cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits or
non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) occurs without 30 days’ prior written
notice from Contractor or its insurer(s) to TCTD. Any failure to comply
with this clause constitutes a material breach of this BPA and is grounds
for immediate termination of this BPA by TCTD.

9.8 Proof of Insurance: Contractor shall provide to TCTD Certificate(s) of
Insurance for all required insurance before performing any NEMT services
required under this BPA. The Certificate(s) shall list the following as a
Certificate holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured: TCTD and each
of its respective directors, officers, representatives, agents, and

Page 13 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 ‘7 L)
]



employees; the State of Oregon and each of its respective directors,
officers, representatives, agents, and employees; CPCCO and each of its
respective directors, officers, representatives, agents, and employees. If
excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet the minimum insurance
requirement, the Certificate of Insurance must include a list of all policies
that fall under the excess/umbrella insurance. As proof of insurance,
TCTD has the right to request copies of insurance policies and
endorsements relating to the insurance requirements in this Contract.

9.9 “Tail" Coverage: If any of the required liability insurance is on a “claims
made” basis, Contractor shall maintain either “tail” coverage or continuous
“claims made” liability coverage, provided the effective date of the
continuous “claims made” coverage is on or before the effective date of
this BPA, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of (i) Contractor's
completion and TCTD’s acceptance of all services required under this
Contract, or (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this
Contract.

10. Contractor’s Status and General Responsibilities

10.1 Contractor is an independent contractor for all purposes and is entitled to
no compensation from TCTD other than that provided by this BPA.
Neither Contractor, nor Contractor's employees, agents or subcontractors,
if any, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of TCTD, Oregon
Health Authority or CPCCO as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or
otherwise. Nothing in this BPA shall be construed to create a partnership,
joint venture or agency relationship between Contractor and TCTD.
Contractor shall inform TCTD of Contractor's Federal Internal Revenue
Service Employer Identification Number, or, if Contractor is an individual
with no employer identification number, Contractor's Social Security
Number.

10.2 Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment,
utilities, and other goods or services necessary for full performance of this
BPA, unless this BPA specifically provides otherwise. TCTD requires
Contractor to use tablets to interface with Ecolane in order to receive and
process trip assignments. Contractor is required to purchase and maintain
such tablets, chargers, and mounting gear as are necessary for
Contractor’s safe and reliable access to Ecolane. Contractor shall
supervise and direct performance of this BPA using its best skill and shall
be responsible for selecting the means of BPA performance. If, during or
after the term of this BPA, Contractor learns of any actual or potential
defect in the services provided under this BPA, or any problem associated
with the results of BPA performance, or of any nonconformance with a
provision of this BPA or of federal, state, or local law, Contractor shall

Page 14 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 7

—



inform TCTD at the earliest possible time (and in no event later than the
next day) in writing with a full description of the defect, problems, or
nonconformance. Failure to so notify TCTD will be deemed a material
breach of this BPA and will subject Contractor to immediate suspension or
termination for default in TCTD’s sole discretion.

11.  Service Availability

Contractor shall have adequate driver, vehicle and dispatch resources available
to provide the volume of NEMT service requested by NWR pursuant to this BPA.
Contractor shall immediately contact NWR regarding any instance in which
Contractor is unable to perform an assigned ride. NWR will document the reason
the trip cannot be performed. A pattern of inability to perform assigned trips or
excessive non-performance of assigned trips shall subject Contractor to a
reduction in rides offered, or immediate suspension or termination for default in
TCTD'’s sole discretion.

12. Notices and Communications

All notices and other communications concerning this BPA shall be written in
English. Notices and other communications may be delivered personally, by e-
mail, by fax or by regular, certified, or registered mail, unless a specific method of
delivery is required under this BPA.

13. Subcontract and Assignment

Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract, including any subcontracts with
drivers or dispatchers, nor assign or transfer any of its rights or delegate any of
its responsibilities for performance of this BPA without the prior written consent of
TCTD. Any subcontract, assignment or transfer of interests is subject to such
conditions and provisions as TCTD, CPCCO and/or Oregon Health Authority may
deem necessary. No assignment, transfer of interest or subcontract shall be
deemed to create any obligation of TCTD, Oregon Health Authority, or CPCCO in
addition to those set forth in this BPA. Any purported subcontract, assignment, or
transfer of interests in violation of this section shall be null and void.

TCTD’s consent to any subcontract shall not relieve Contractor of any of its
duties or obligations under this BPA. In addition, Contractor shall ensure that
subcontractor(s) fulfill(s) all duties and obligations and meet(s) all standards and
requirements of Contractor under this BPA.

TCTD may, in its sole discretion, assign or transfer any of its rights or delegate

any of its responsibilities under this BPA. No assignment, transfer of interest, or
delegation of authority shall relieve Contractor of any of its duties or obligations
under this BPA.

Page 15 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 7 8



14.

15.

16.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Indemnification

Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend TCTD, its officers,
directors, employees, representatives and agents from any loss, expense, liability
or claim including but not limited to legal fees and costs of defending actions or
suits, resulting directly or indirectly from the negligence or other fault of
Contractor, or its respective employees, representatives or subcontractors in the
performance or nonperformance of this BPA. Approval by TCTD of insurance
contracts required under this BPA shall not reduce or relieve Contractor of
liability under this BPA. Contractor’'s obligations hereunder shall survive
termination or expiration of this BPA.

Subcontract Provisions

Contractor may, with TCTD’s prior written approval, subcontract the delivery of
any service provided under this BPA. Contractor shall include in any subcontract
authorized by TCTD, any provisions necessary to make all of the provisions of
this BPA fully effective. Contractor shall provide all necessary plans,
specifications and instructions with suppliers and subcontractors to enable them
to properly perform its work. Contractors shall provide copies of all
subcontracts for delivery of service under this agreement to TCTD for
review and approval. A driver could be a subcontractor under certain
circumstances; in these cases, the subcontract would need to meet IRS and
Workers Compensation guidelines to be considered a subcontractor and not an
employee. Sub-contractors are required to carry the same amount of vehicle and
liability insurance as TCTD requires of Contractor under this BPA. In addition to
any other provisions TCTD may require, Contractor shall include in any permitted
subcontract under this BPA, provisions to ensure that TCTD, Oregon Health
Authority, or CPCCO will receive the benefit of the subcontractor’'s performance
as if the subcontractor were the Contractor. Contractor shall provide all
necessary instructions and information to any suppliers and subcontractors
(including subcontracted drivers and dispatchers) to enable them to properly
perform their work.

Computation of Time

Time periods measured in days shall be computed by excluding the day upon
which the period begins to run and including the last day of the period unless the
last day is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday as defined in ORS 187.010 or
187.020. Such period shall run until, and shall include, the next day that is not a
Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday as defined in ORS 187.010 or 187.020. All
time periods measured in days shall be based upon calendar days.

Page 16 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 7q



17. Termination

17.1 For Convenience. This BPA may be terminated for convenience by TCTD
or Contractor upon 30 days’ notice in writing, and delivered by certified
mail or in person. This BPA may be terminated for convenience
immediately upon mutual written consent of TCTD and Contractor or at
such other time as the parties may agree in the written consent.
Contractor shall be compensated for all services performed under this
BPA up to the effective termination date, minus any offsets by TCTD for
overpayments or any other costs or damages suffered by TCTD. Any such
termination of this BPA shall be without prejudice to any obligations or
liabilities of either party already accrued prior to such termination.

17.2 For Cause. TCTD may immediately terminate this BPA for cause upon
written notice to Contractor. A termination for cause may occur for any
reason deemed sufficient by TCTD in its sole discretion, including but not
limited to the following: (1) one or more breaches of the terms of this
BPA, including any failure by Contractor to comply with the Brokerage
Transportation Provider Standards; or (2) if Contractor institutes or has
instituted against it insolvency, receivership or bankruptcy proceedings,
makes an assignment for benefit of creditors, or ceases doing business on
a regular basis. Unless otherwise stated by TCTD at the time of
termination or thereafter, termination shall mean that Contractor and its
principals shall not reapply for services under this BPA.

17.3 Upon TCTD’s termination of the BPA for convenience or for cause,
Contractor has 15 days from the date of notification in which to bill all
outstanding ride charges.

17.4 Non-Waiver of Suspension/Termination Rights. TCTD’s failure to suspend
or terminate Contractor for past violations of this BPA, including the
Brokerage Transportation Provider Standards, shall in no way waive, limit
or abrogate TCTD’s right in its sole discretion to suspend or terminate
Contractor for such past or subsequent violation or violations. Similarly,
TCTD'’s limited degree or duration of a suspension or termination of
Contractor for past violations of this BPA, including the Brokerage
Transportation Provider Standards, shall in no way waive, limit or abrogate
the degree or duration of suspension or termination that TCTD in its sole
discretion may issue for such past or subsequent violation or violations.

18. Suspension

TCTD, at its sole discretion, may discontinue ride assignment or suspend this
BPA at any time and for any length of time pending investigation of any concerns
about NEMT service provision or compliance under this BPA. NEMT service shall

Page 17 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

~
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 80



be reinstated at TCTD’s sole discretion once Contractor demonstrates to TCTD's
satisfaction that it is complying with the terms and conditions of this BPA or that

NEMT service delivery concerns have been resolved.

19. Retirement System Status

Contractor is responsible for all benefit program contributions for its employees
and subcontractors, agents and officers that arise out of or under this BPA.
These programs may include, but are not limited to: Federal Social Security,
Unemployment Insurance, Workers Compensation, and Public Employees’

Retirement System.

20. Effective Date and Duration

Expiration of the BPA shall not extinguish either party’s right to enforce this BPA
with respect to any default or defect in performance that has not been cured.

21.  Government Employment Status

The funds to pay the Contractor will be charged against federal funds. Contractor
certifies that it is not currently employed by the Federal Government for the work

being performed under this BPA.

22. Dual Payment

Contractor shall not be compensated for work performed under this BPA by any
other Department or Agency of the State of Oregon or the Federal Government.

23. Records Maintenance and Access

Contractor shall maintain all financial records relating to this BPA in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, Contractor shall
maintain any other records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of
shipments and payments and writings of Contractor, whether in paper, electronic
or other form, that are pertinent to this BPA in such a manner as to clearly
document Contractor's performance. All financial records, other records, books,
documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and payments and writings of
Contractor whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this
BPA, are collectively referred to as “Records.” Contractor acknowledges and
agrees that TCTD, CPCCO, Oregon Health Authority and the Oregon Secretary
of State’s Office and the federal government and all of their duly authorized
representatives shall have access to all Records to perform examinations and
audits and make excerpts and transcripts. Contractor shall retain and keep
accessible all Records for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as
may be required by applicable law, following final payment and termination of this
BPA, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or

Page 18 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



24,

related to this BPA, whichever date is later. Contractor shall maintain Records in
accordance with the records retention schedules set forth in OAR Chapter 166.

Compliance with Applicable Law

241

24.2

24.3

244

Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, county, and local laws,
ordinances and regulations applicable to work performed under this BPA.

Without limitation of other applicable laws, Contractor shall comply with
the provisions required in every public contract entered into in the State of
Oregon, including but not limited to the requirements of ORS 279B.020
and ORS 279B.220 through 279B.235, the terms and conditions of which
are incorporated into and made a part of this BPA, including but not limited
to the following:

24.2.1 Make payments promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to
Contractor labor or materials for the prosecution of the work
provided for in this BPA.

24.2.2 Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund
from such agency or subcontractor incurred in performance of this
BPA.

24.2.3 Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against TCTD
on account of any labor or material furnished.

24.2.4 Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from
employees pursuant to ORS 316.167.

If Contractor fails, neglects, or refuses to make prompt payment of any
claim for labor or services furnished to Contractor or a subcontractor by
any person in connection with this BPA as such claim becomes due, the
proper officer representing TCTD may pay such claim to the person
furnishing the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment
against funds due or to become due Contractor by reason of this BPA.

Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-
partnership, association, or corporation furnishing medical, surgical, and
hospital care services or other needed care and attention incident to
sickness or injury to the employees of Contractor, of all sums that
Contractor agrees to pay for the services and all monies and sums that
Contractor collected or deducted from the wages of its employees under
any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for
the services.

Page 19 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 % 2



25.

26.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Nondiscrimination

The parties agree to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, with
Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and with all applicable regulations of
federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. The
parties shall also comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, ORS
Chapter 659A, and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant
to those laws.

Confidentiality

Contractor shall comply and require its employees and all other persons
performing services for Contractor under this BPA, to comply with the following
confidentiality provisions:

26.1 Contractor and all of its employees shall treat all information and, in
particular, information relating to recipients and providers, which is
obtained by and through its performance under this BPA, as confidential
information to the extent that confidential treatment of that information is
provided for under Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996 (HIPAA) or other State and Federal law. Contractor shall safeguard
such information and shall not use any information so obtained in any
manner except as necessary to the proper discharge of its obligations
hereunder.

26.2 Client Information

26.2.1 All information as to personal facts and circumstances obtained by
the Contractor about a client shall be treated as privileged
communications, shall be held confidential, and shall not be divulged
without the written consent of the client, the responsible parent of a
minor child, or the client’s legal guardian or personal representative
except as required by other terms of this contract. Nothing prohibits
the disclosure of information in summaries, statistical, or other form,
which does not identify particular individuals.

26.2.2 The use or disclosure of information concerning clients shall be
limited to persons directly connected with the administration of this
BPA. Confidentiality policies shall be applied to all requests from
outside sources.

26.2.3 CPCCO, Contractor and any subcontractor will share information as
necessary to effectively provide NEMT services to CPCCO
members.

Page 20 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 % ’2)



26.3 Information Privacy/Security/Access

If the work performed under this BPA requires Contractor or, when allowed, its
subcontractor(s), to have access to or use of any Oregon Health Authority
computer system or other Oregon Health Authority Information Asset for which
Oregon Health Authority or CPCCO imposes security requirements, and Oregon
Health Authority grants Contractor access to such Oregon Health Authority or
CPCCO Information Assets or Network and Information Systems, Contractor
shall comply and require any subcontractor(s) to which such access has been
granted to comply with OAR 407-014-0300 through OAR 407-014-0320, as such
rules may be revised from time to time. For purposes of this section, “Information
Asset” and “Network and Information System” have the meaning set forth in OAR
407-014-0305, as such rule may be revised from time to time.

27. Requirements to Report Abuse of Certain Classes of Persons

27.1 Contractor shall immediately report any evidence of Child Abuse, neglect
or threat of harm to DHS Child Protective Services or law enforcement
officials in full accordance with the mandatory Child Abuse Reporting law
(ORS 419B.005 to 419B.045). If law enforcement is notified, Contractor
shall notify the referring case worker within 24 hours. Contractor shall
immediately contact the local DHS child Protective Services office if
questions arise whether an incident meets the definition of Child Abuse or
neglect.

27.2 Contractor shall comply, and require its employees and subcontractors to
comply, with all protective services, investigation and reporting
requirements described in any of the following laws:

27.2.1 OAR 407-045-0000 through 407-045-0370 (abuse investigations by
the Office of Investigations and Training);

27.2.2 ORS 430.735 through 430.765 (persons with mental iliness or
developmental disabilities);

27.2.3 ORS 124.005 to 124.040 (elderly persons and persons with
disabilities); and

27.2.4 ORS 441.650 to 441.680 (residents of long-term care facilities).

27.3 Contractor shall notify TCTD immediately of any incident, evidence or
concerns involving abuse of persons belonging to any of the classes set
forth in this Paragraph.

Page 21 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 % )__]I



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Severability

The parties agree that if any term or provision of this BPA is declared by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the
remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the BPA did not
contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

Additional Special Federal Requirements

Contractor agrees to be bound by the federal terms and conditions set forth in
Attachment D to this BPA.

Recycling

As required by Oregon Statute, in the performance of this BPA Contractor shall
use, to the maximum extent economically feasible, recycled paper.

Mediation

Should any dispute arise between the parties concerning this BPA, which is not
resolved by mutual agreement, it is agreed that the dispute will be submitted to
mediated negotiation as a condition precedent to any party commencing
litigation. In such an event, the parties to this BPA agree to participate in good
faith in a non-binding mediation process. The mediator shall be selected by
mutual agreement of the parties, but in the absence of such agreement, each
party shall select a temporary mediator and those mediators shall jointly select
the permanent mediator. All cost of mediation shall be borne equally by the
parties.

Applicable Law and Jurisdiction

This BPA shall be governed by Oregon law without regard to any jurisdiction's
conflict of laws, rules or doctrines. Any suit or action arising from this BPA shall
be commenced and prosecuted in the courts of Tillamook County, Oregon, or the
U.S. District Court for the District of Oregon as applicable. The parties agree to
submit to the jurisdiction and venue of these courts.

Remedies Cumulative

The remedies exercisable by TCTD under this BPA shall be cumulative and in no
way affect any other remedy available under the law to TCTD.

Page 22 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 % 5



34.

35.

36.

37.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Compliance with Tax Laws
ORS 305.385(6) states:

“No contract or other agreement for the purpose of providing goods, services or
real estate space to any agency shall be entered into, renewed or extended with
any person, unless the person certifies in writing, under penalty of perjury, that
the person is, to the best of the person’s knowledge, not in violation of any tax
laws described in ORS 305.380(4)."

By signature on this BPA, Contractor hereby swears/affirms, under penalty of
perjury as provided in ORS 305.385(6), that to the best of their knowledge they
are not in violation of any of the tax laws described in ORS 305.380(4).

Amendment

No amendment or modification to the terms of this BPA are valid unless made in
writing and signed by each of the parties hereto. The Parties may mutually
amend this BPA. TCTD may amend this BPA to comply with any changes that
oceur in federal or state statute or regulations, or changes in Covered Services or
Payments under ORS 414.735, such that failure to amend this BPA may place
TCTD at risk of non-compliance with Federal or state statute or regulations or at
risk of breach of the CPCCO-TCTD Delegate Agreement for NEMT services; to
address any changes needed in the event that the CPCCO-TCTD Delegate
Agreement is amended; or, to address any changes needed in the event that
CPCCO’s service area is expanded or reduced. Whenever feasible, TCTD
commits to providing advance notice to Contractor of any such anticipated
changes, engaging Contractor in the development of these amendments and to
the extent possible will provide Contractor with a preview of proposed
amendments as soon as possible.

Grievances, Feedback and Denials

Contractor shall notify TCTD of any known grievances or complaints from
members within 48 hours of becoming aware that a grievance or complaint may
exist. The members’ rights in regards to grievances, feedback and denials is
detailed in the NEMT Rider’'s Guide (Attachment H).

Third-Party Beneficiaries

TCTD and Contractor are the only parties to this BPA and are the only parties
entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this BPA gives, is intended to give, or
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly,
indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are individually
identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of
the terms of this BPA.

Page 23 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 % (0



38. Merger Clause

THIS BPA CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
PARTIES. NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE OF TERMS
OF THIS BPA SHALL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING AND
SIGNED BY BOTH PARTIES. SUCH WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR
CHANGE, IF MADE, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC
INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN. THERE ARE NO
UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS, OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR
WRITTEN, NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS BPA. CONTRACTOR,
BY THE SIGNATURE BELOW OR ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE,
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS READ THIS BPA, UNDERSTANDS
IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

Page 24 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (g 7



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
ATTACHMENT A
REQUIRED CONTRACTOR INFORMATION AND PRICING

*MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED BY CONTRACTOR™*
*SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY TCTD**

1. BUSINESS NAME:

LEGAL NAME (if different):

STREET ADDRESS:

MAILING ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

2. TYPE OF BUSINESS (Mark One)

PUBLIC AGENCY: __

PRIVATE NON-PROFIT: OTHER: ___

PRIVATE FOR-PROFIT: ____

SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP: _ PARTNERSHIP: __ CORPORATION: ___

3. IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS

STATE OF OREGON CORPORATION ID NUMBER:

FEDERAL TAX NUMBER:

OTHER: (Specify):

Page 25 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3  ( )/ %



4, BUSINESS OWNERSHIP

NAME OF OWNER:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

NAME OF OWNER:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

5. KEY CONTACT INFORMATION

Identify the key contact person for Management/Operations
(will serve as the «Contractor’s Project Manager” for purposes of the BPA):

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS.

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL:

Page 26 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 %q



Identify the key contact person for Scheduling and Dispatch:

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL:

Identify the key contact person for Billing:

NAME:

TITLE:

ADDRESS:

CITY/STATE/ZIP:

PHONE NUMBER:

FAX NUMBER:

E-MAIL:

6. ERVICES PROVIDED

Describe the relevant services provided by your business, specifically any
specialized service, specialized training your staff has received, or any limitations
with regard to the transportation you could provide under this BPA.

Page 27 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (;I O



Check all the service types that apply:
Sedan Wheelchair Stretcher
Secure BLS/ALS

7. SERVICE AVAILABILITY

List the specific hours and days your business is available to provide NEMT
services described in this BPA. If your business is capable of providing
transportation outside of your normal operating hours, please indicate hours of
availability.

Days of Week Hours of Normal Operation Hours of Operation for
After-Hours Service (if
applicable)

Begin End Begin End

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

8. SERVICE AREA

Describe in detail the boundaries of your service area and any exceptions
regarding provision of transportation in your service area under this BPA. List by
County. If not by County, attach a map indicating your service area.

Page 28 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 q l



9. VEHICLE INVENTORY

List each vehicle to be used in the performance of transportation service under
this BPA. Use additional sheets or attach your company list if needed.
Submission of a company-maintained spreadsheet is acceptable provided all

requested information is included. TCTD must be notified within 48 hours of any
changes to this vehicle inventory.

—

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Vehicle # Year Make Model Passenger | Lift/Ramp | Number of
seating Equipped? oversize
capacity (YIN) wheelchair
(do not spaces

count If Yes, (if none,
seats that indicate | write N/A)
would number of
never be usable
used, i.e., | wheelchair
the hump spaces
seatin a
passenger
car)
L
Page 29 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 q (2_




10.

List each driver to be used in the performance of transportation service under this BPA.

DRIVER INFORMATION

Use additional sheets or attach your company list if needed. TCTD must be notified
within 48 hours of any changes to driver information, including but not limited to driver
employment status. Submission of a company-maintained spreadsheet is acceptable if

it includes all information requested in the table below.

Driver Full Date of Driver’s Driver’s Criminal Driving | CPR/1st Defensive Passengel
Legal Name | Birth License License Background | Record | Aid Exp. Driving Assistanc
Number Exp. Date Check Date | Check Date Exp. Date Exp. Date

Date

Page 30 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 q 3



11. DRIVER AND VEHICLE INFORMATION

INITIALS OF BUSINESS OWNER

Drivers used in the performance of this BPA are skilled in
passenger assistance, defensive driving, first aid, CPR and blood-
borne pathogen techniques. If applicable, they are trained to use
any specialized equipment, such as wheelchair lifts and stretcher
gurneys that are required to assist in loading and unloading
passengers.

The company/organization maintains records and evidence
verifying that all drivers operating under this BPA have received all
training required in this BPA.

The company/organization has conducted training of Attachment F,
HIPAA Compliance and Fraud, Waste and Abuse.

Vehicles used by the company/organization meet passenger safety
and comfort standards. They are properly equipped, accessible,
and maintained. They comply with federal motor vehicle safety
standards and, when applicable, they have: seat belts as required
by state, county, and/or city laws and regulations; wheelchair
loading and securing devices as required, and; restraining devices,
padding and blankets as needed.

| certify that the driver and vehicle information provided in
Attachment A is accurate. | have the authority to make contractual
commitments for this company.

SIGNATURE OF BUSINESS OWNER / AUTHORIZED AGENT

PRINT FULL NAME

TITLE

DATE

Page 31 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 q -
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 L]L



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT B

BROKERAGE TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER STANDARDS

1. Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licenses and
certifications. Contractor shall possess current appropriate local, state and
federal licenses and certifications required by respective jurisdictions, and copies
of such licenses and certifications shall be provided to TCTD prior to the
commencement of services under this BPA.

2. Contractor shall comply with appropriate local, state, and federal transportation
safety standards regarding passenger safety and comfort. This includes, but is
not limited to, proper equipment, accessibility, maintenance, seat belts and all
equipment necessary to transport clients using wheelchairs or stretchers.

3. Contractor must not be under sanction by the Oregon Health Authority.

4. Without limitation of any other applicable provision of this BPA, Contractor shall
treat, and shall require any person performing services under this BPA to treat,
every aspect of a transport as confidential, including the fact of client’s program
eligibility and any or all information pertaining to a client’s physical or mental
health status or condition.

5. TCTD coordinates all NEMT ride assignments, billing, and related
communications via Ecolane. Contractor must meet the following minimum
technology requirements:

5.1

5.2

5.3
54
5.5

5.6

5.7

Internet access

Computer capable of running current version of internet browser such as
Firefox, Chrome, or Safari (Ecolane does not work with Internet Explorer)

E-mail, including ability to send, receive, and open attachments
Printer
Document scanner

Tablet with data plan from a cellular service provider for each vehicle that
will provide NEMT service under this BPA

Vehicle mounts for tablets

Page 32 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 q5
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



6. Contractor must communicate in English with TCTD, both orally and in writing.
Contractor must have computer skills sufficient to complete scheduling,
dispatching and billing processes in Ecolane.

7. All employees or subcontracted personnel of Contractor who may have one-on-
one contact with a client must complete a background record check in
accordance with ORS 181A.195, ORS 181A.200, and OAR chapter 257,
division 10. Criminal background checks must include the criteria set forth in
Attachment C. If Contractor requests an exception to the standards set forth in
Attachment C, TCTD will forward the request to CPCCO for its review and action.

8. Contractor shall collect all data required by TCTD to be used in preparing reports
and passenger surveys.

9. Contractor shall provide TCTD quarterly with a list of all employees and owners
for the purpose of exclusion checks.

10.  Contractor must provide written response to TCTD within two (2) business days
of any complaint or incident.

11. Vehicle Standards

11.1 Contractor shall assure the comfort and safety of clients by proper
maintenance of their vehicles. This includes, but is not limited to:

11.1.1  The interior shall be clean and free from any debris impeding a
passenger’s ability to ride comfortably.

11.1.2  Smoking is prohibited in the vehicle at all times in accordance
with ORS 433.835 to 433.990 and OAR 333-015-0025 to 333-
015-0090. The Contractor shall not smoke, aerosolize or
vaporize an inhalant consisting of nicotine, a cannabinoid or a
substance to be delivered into a person’s respiratory system or
permit smoking, aerosolizing or vaporizing of an inhalant in or
within ten (10) feet of the vehicle at any time.

11.1.3  Appropriate safety equipment must be present and operable,
including but not limited to:

11.1.3.1. First aid kit

11.1.3.2. UL-approved fire extinguisher with current inspection
tag

11.1.3.3. Roadside reflective devices or flares

11.1.3.4. Flashlight

11.1.3.5. Chains or traction tires (when appropriate)

11.1.3.6. Disposable gloves

Page 33 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 q LO



11.1.3.7. Blood-borne pathogen kit
11.1.3.8. Accident report form

11.1.4  Vehicles in good operating condition, including but not limited to:

11.1.4.1. Seatbelts and seatbelt extenders

11.1.4.2. Side and rear-view mirrors

11.1.4.3. Horn

11.1.4.4. Turn signals, headlights, taillights, and windshield
wipers

11.1.4.5. Heater and air conditioner maintained in good working
order for the climatic conditions of the area.

11.1.5  Vehicles shall be equipped with two-way radios and/or phones.
Every vehicle must be equipped with a tablet device. CB radios
and pagers are not acceptable. Contractor shall have the ability
to communicate concurrently with their drivers and TCTD.

11.1.6  Wheelchair vehicles shall at a minimum meet ADA requirements
as defined in 49 CFR Part 38, 49 CFR Part 571.403 and 49
CFR Part 571.404. Wheelchair vehicles require at a minimum
an annual inspection and documentation of ADA lift/'ramp
compliance and proper working order by a certified lift
mechanic. An annual ADA lift/ramp inspection must be
performed within 90 days prior to TCTD’s annual vehicle
inspection.

11.1.7  Wheelchair securement location within a vehicle must be
designed to limit movement of an occupied wheelchair when the
vehicle is in normal operation, using a four-point tie down
system. Separate from the wheelchair securement system, an
occupant securement system consisting of a lap and shoulder
belt shall be provided.

11.1.8  Lifts and other installed accessories including radios shall be
maintained in accordance with the recommendations of the
respective manufacturer and records of the maintenance shall
be maintained.

11.1.9  Vehicle exteriors shall be washed on a regular basis to maintain
a reasonably clean appearance in all seasons.

11.1.10 Vehicle interiors shall be swept/vacuumed and cleaned up each
day before the start of service, and thoroughly cleaned
(scrubbed) on a regular basis. Interior cleaning agents shall be

Page 34 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 (_/'\ _‘[
L]



11.1.11

11.1.12

11.1.13

11.1.14

11.1.15

11.1.16

11.1.17

11.1.18

fragrance free and shall not be offensive or injurious to
individuals with heightened sensitivity to environmental toxins or
fragrances.

All vehicles shall have exteriors free of broken mirrors, broken
windows, excessive grime, rust, chipped paint or major dents or
body damage that detracts from the overall appearance of the
vehicle. Vehicles with major body damage must be removed
from service until the damage is completely repaired.

Passenger compartment shall be free from torn upholstery or
torn or excessively worn floor covering. Seats shall not be
broken, damaged or have protruding sharp edges.

Each vehicle shall have sufficient functioning interior lights
within the interior compartment.

Each vehicle shall be weather-tight and free of leaks.

Vans or buses shall carry and use a portable step, retractable
boarding step, or running board to assist in boarding. Said
portable step must be a commercially manufactured item
designed for this purpose and must have a base broader than
the step area.

Neither drivers nor passengers shall be allowed to play loud
music in the vehicle. Passengers may use mobile electronic
devices, personal radios, CD players and other audio storage
devices if they use headphones. Drivers shall be in compliance
with ORS 811.507 which addresses the use of a mobile
electronic device while driving.

Any fines incurred in the operation of the vehicle, including, but
not limited to parking violations, shall be the sole responsibility
of the Contractor. Contractor shall hold TCTD harmless for any
fines, penalties or citations imposed on account of operation of
the vehicle and any expense incurred.

An individual file containing the following information shall be
maintained for all vehicles owned, non-owned, hired, and sub-
contracted under this BPA:

11.1.18.1 Vehicle identification number (VIN).

11.1.18.2 Complete vehicle maintenance records. Such
records shall be available for inspection by TCTD
during business hours. Contractor shall prepare and

Page 35 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 OI
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 g



submit to TCTD such vehicle maintenance reports as
TCTD may require.

11.1.18.3 Vehicle loss control record listing incident description,
date, mileage and driver.

11.1.18.4 Vehicle equipment check log verifying that special
equipment, including lift equipment, has been
checked according to the suggested schedule of the
manufacturer or at least semi-annually.

11.1.18.5 Vehicle operational and safety check log recorded at
the beginning of each work day and indicating that
tires, brakes, lights, seat belts and other relevant
equipment are operational and the vehicle has not
been damaged.

11.1.19 Vehicles shall display permanently affixed company
identification with the company name and telephone number on
the outside of the doors or windows on both sides of the
vehicles. All required signage must be in lettering at least three
(3) inches in height with proportional width. Signage must be
clearly visible at all times. Agencies transporting their own
clients and secure transport providers are exempt from this
requirement.

11.1.20 All vehicles require title or vehicle registration documentation.

11.2 Contractors shall maintain a preventative maintenance schedule, which
incorporates, at a minimum, the schedule recommended by the vehicle
manufacturer. Contractors shall maintain records documenting repairs and
preventive maintenance and make such records available to TCTD for
inspection. All vehicles involved in an auto accident or theft must be
re-inspected and recertified to be eligible to provide service under
this BPA.

11.3 TCTD requires that a vehicle be inspected prior to placing the vehicle in
service. Contractor may have that inspection done by an ASE certified
mechanic and provide a copy of that inspection to TCTD prior to placing
the vehicle in service. If the Contractor is a public transit provider and has
conducted a new vehicle acceptance inspection for the state Department
of Transportation, the provision of a copy of that form may be acceptable
to TCTD.

TCTD requires an annual inspection of each vehicle used under this BPA
and reserves the right to conduct an inspection at any time throughout the
term of the BPA. Such inspections may either be conducted at the
Contractor’s facility or another location with prior approval of TCTD.
Contractor shall make the vehicle available for inspection at no cost to

Page 36 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 q q



TCTD. Any inspection is solely for TCTD’s own purpose and shall in no
way diminish the sole responsibility of the Contractor to operate and
maintain a safe fleet of vehicles.

11.4 All vehicles used in the performance of this BPA shall meet the following
vehicle age requirements:

No vehicle shall be older than 15 years, including sedans, wheelchair
vans, stretcher vehicles and secured transport vehicles, without prior
written authorization of TCTD.

Notwithstanding the above age limits, TCTD may, at its sole discretion and
after inspection of vehicles, determine which vehicles may be used in the
performance of services under this BPA. Any vehicle that does not meet
or exceed the vehicle standards set forth in this BPA shall be removed
from service immediately and must be re-inspected and approved by
TCTD before the vehicle may be reinstated for use under this BPA.

11.5 No vehicles shall be substituted for vehicles in use under this BPA or
added to a Contractor’s fleet without prior inspection and approval of
TCTD.

11.6 Contractor shall maintain a minimum vehicle fleet of two (2) operational
vehicles at all times.

11.7 TCTD's review and approval of Contractor’s vehicles shall in no way
create liability in TCTD or relieve Contractor of its sole responsibility for
proper maintenance and use of its vehicles or any other equipment.

11.8 One or more violations of any of the above requirements as determined by
TCTD may be grounds for termination or suspension of Contractor in
TCTD'’s sole discretion.

12. Driver Standards

12.1 Contractors shall inform drivers of their duties and responsibilities and
provide training for the safe use of all equipment related to their vehicles.
This shall include, but not be limited to:

121.1 Briefing about the NEMT program, reporting forms, vehicle
operation, requirements for fraud, waste and abuse reporting,
and the geographic area in which they shall be providing
service.

12.1.2 Road testing and training to competence with the type of vehicle
and equipment that the driver shall be operating.

Page 37 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 [ OO



12.1.3  Completion of the National Safety Council Defensive Driving
online course, or an equivalent, prior to performance under this
BPA and at least every three years thereafter.

12.1.4  Completion of an approved First Aid, Cardiopulmonary
Resuscitation (CPR) and bloodborne pathogens course prior to
performance under this BPA and maintain current certification.

12.1.5  Completion of an approved Passenger Assistance training
course prior to performance under this BPA and maintain
current certification. Passenger Assistance training must
include wheelchair securement training in a wheelchair vehicle
for all drivers transporting clients in wheelchairs.

121.6  Understanding NWR procedures for responding to a
passenger’s needs for emergency care should they arise during
the ride.

12.2 Drivers must be prequalified by TCTD prior to performing service under
this BPA. Prequalification includes but is not limited to:

12.21 A criminal history background check and DMV record check.
Contractor will conduct the criminal history background check
and is responsible for obtaining the DMV record. The DMV
record check shall consist of a three-year personal driving
record check and a three-year commercial or business driving
record check or a three year-year combined check. The driver
shall not have any at-fault accidents within the past three years.

12.2.2  Driver qualifications include but are not limited to:

12.2.2.1. Driver has an appropriate and valid Oregon driver's
license.

12.2.2.2. Driver is 21 years of age or older.

12.2.2.3. Driver has not been convicted of any crimes against
people or any drug or alcohol related offenses, except
as provided in Attachment C. Any exceptions to this
policy shall be made with approval of CPCCO.

12.2.2.4. Driver is reliable and able to drive safely. Drivers
must maintain a courteous and polite manner in all
dealings with the public and must be sensitive to the
needs of people using NEMT services including

Page 38 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l O[



people with disabilities, people of all sexual
orientations and gender identities, people of color,
people of all ages, and people with major illnesses
and/or who are medically fragile. Drivers shall not
develop or maintain romantic or sexual relationships
with any individual transported.

12.2.2.5. Diriver is trained to use and secure any special
equipment installed on their vehicles including but not
limited to wheelchair lifts, mobility devices, child car
seats, tablet computers and two-way radios.
Verification shall consist of records maintained for all
drivers that verify training was received and
completed to competence.

12.2.2.6. Driver is familiar with the geographic area in which
they shall be providing service.

12.2.2.7. Driver communicates effectively in English (written
and verbal).

12.3 Contractor shall maintain driver documentation which includes copies of
driver licenses, photo IDs, signed drug- and alcohol-free workplace policy,
signed Code of Professional Conduct for Drivers, results of driving record
checks, criminal history background checks, verification of dates and
types of training completed, and, as applicable, signed copy of driver
subcontract, if any. Contractor shall provide copies of such records to
TCTD upon request.

12.4 Driver shall not stop for lunch or convenience items of any kind during the
transport of a client, except with the prior authorization of TCTD. Stops
may be made only for restroom breaks, refueling, and medical
emergencies. Drivers and clients may not smoke or vape in the vehicle or
within 10 feet of the vehicle at any time and may not eat in the vehicle,
except for prior documented medical purposes. Drivers may not provide
clients with food, beverages, tobacco products or gifts of any kind at any
time.

12.5 Drivers shall comply with all terms of the Code of Professional Conduct for
Drivers, as found in Attachment A.

12.6 Drivers shall wear company uniforms when provided. At all times and
regardiess of availability of company uniforms, Drivers shall wear neat and
clean clothing and generally be neat in appearance. Open toe shoes and
unsafe clothing are prohibited. Unsafe clothing is any clothing that may

Page 39 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l D7



impede the driver's ability to drive or operate mechanisms on the vehicle,
such as the wheelchair lift and wheelchair tie down systems.

12.7 Drivers shall address and treat passengers courteously at all times.
Drivers shall assist with opening and closing vehicle doors for the
passenger(s) when they board/deboard, providing reasonable assistance
to or from the main entrance of both the origin and destination locations.
In so doing, drivers should not lose sight of their vehicles if other
passengers are on board. A driver should avoid leaving passengers on
board the vehicle unattended except while assisting other passengers.

Drivers shall not engage in inappropriate conversations during transports
that may offend passengers, such as but not limited to politics, religion
and publicly sensitive issues. Drivers shall keep personal views of people
and companies to themselves. Drivers shall not discuss other clients’
names and trips with their dispatcher while other clients are in the vehicle.

12.8 Drivers shall require all passengers to wear seatbelts during transports.
Children shall be required to ride in a child safety seat appropriate to their
age and weight as required by Oregon Law. Clients under the age of
eighteen (18) years of age must ride in the back seat of transportation
vehicles. All clients should routinely ride in the back seat.

Drivers shall not, at any time while providing service under this BPA,
possess or use any weapon. Weapons include, but are not limited to,
guns, knives or swords with blades over four inches in length, explosives
and any chemical whose purpose is to cause harm to another person.

Regardless of whether a driver possesses a concealed weapon permit
or is allowed by law to possess a weapon, weapons are prohibited
during any service provided under the BPA or at any location in which
the driver represents the NEMT program for business purposes. Said
prohibition includes carrying the weapon on one’s person and/or in the
vehicle providing service under this BPA.

12.9 Contractor has the sole responsibility for proper selection and training of
its drivers.

12.10 TCTD may, at its sole discretion, determine which drivers may be used in
the performance of services under this BPA. Any driver that does not
meet or exceed the driver standards set forth in this BPA shall be removed
from service immediately and must be approved by TCTD before
reinstatement for service under this BPA.

Page 40 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3

03



13.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

12.11 One or more violations of any of the above requirements in paragraph 12

as determined by TCTD may be grounds for termination or suspension of
Contractor in TCTD's sole discretion.

Service Standards

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Will calls: Pickup shall occur no more than sixty (60) minutes after
request. Actual call time and actual pickup times shall be recorded by the
Contractor and submitted as part of the billing.

Maximum on-time performance window: The on-time window shall not
exceed fifteen (15) minutes before or fifteen (15) minutes after scheduled
pickup time. Actual pickup times shall be recorded by the Contractor and
submitted as part of the billing.

Travel times: Travel time shall be no more than two (2) times drive time,
as measured by Google driving direction or similar. Actual pickup and
drop off times shall be recorded by the Contractor and submitted as part of
the billing.

Late or missed trips and/or performance issues related to on-time pickups
as determined by TCTD are considered grounds for termination or
suspension of this BPA in TCTD's sole discretion. Unusual weather or
unusual traffic conditions affecting all vehicular traffic which prevent the
Contractor from meeting the scheduled pickup time shall not constitute
non-compliance with this service standard.

Contractor shall provide all transportation services under this BPA only as
authorized by TCTD as operator of NWR.

Contractor shall only pick up and deliver clients to locations assigned by
TCTD as operator of NWR and shall not use routes other than the most
reasonable direct route. In the event of any deviation from the most
reasonable direct route, Contractor shall notify TCTD no later than the
next business day.

Contractor shall report suspected fraudulent use of NEMT services to
TCTD.

Contractor shall provide NEMT services without regard to race, creed,
ethnicity, national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, gender, age,
health status, or disability. Confidentiality regarding persons transported,
their respective medical condition or diagnosis, and transportation
services provided shall be maintained at all times. (Confidentiality
statements must be signed by all employees and are provided with this
BPA))

Page 41 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 ] D 4



13.9 If Contractor arrives to provide transportation and an emergency exists
that requires transportation by an ambulance, Contractor shall refer the
client for emergency transportation by calling 911 for the client if
necessary. Contractor shall inform TCTD no later than the first hour of the
next business day.

13.10 Contractor shall not change the pick-up or drop-off times or negotiate pick-
up or drop-off times with clients. Clients shall be referred to NWR if they
require additional transport or if a change in the authorized transport is
desired or needed. With the exception of after-hours medical trips, all
requests for medical trips received directly by Contractor must be referred
to NWR prior to service delivery. All retroactive authorization requests for
after-hours service must be submitted within 24 hours or the end of the
next business day following the date of transportation. Non-medical after-
hours trips shall not be retroactively authorized for payment.

13.11 Contractor shall not make any changes to the rides as authorized
including, but not limited to, any changes resulting in (1) combined or
shared rides, (2) indirect routes of any kind, or (3) alternate pick-up or
drop-off locations. If a change is needed Contractor must receive prior
approval for such change from NWR. Trips not provided as authorized
shall not be reimbursed. One or more incidents of Contractor changing an
authorized ride may result in suspension or termination of this BPA at
TCTD'’s sole discretion.

13.12 Contractor shall provide transportation service as assigned, unless it is
certain that the means to do so are unavailable to the Contractor. If the
Contractor is unable to provide a transportation service assigned by NWR,
it shall notify NWR Dispatch immediately. NWR Dispatch shall assess the
ride and reassign it, if appropriate.

13.13 Contractor shall ensure that no unauthorized passengers are transported
while providing any trip under this BPA without NWR's prior authorization.
This includes relatives, friends, and/or children of the client or the driver.

13.14 Contractor shall accept and perform shared rides as assigned by NWR.

13.15 Contractor shall leave return slips with passengers that include the name
of the company, the local telephone number to call for the return pick up,
and the name and contact number of NWR.

13.16 Contractor shall establish written procedures for drivers to follow regarding
situations in which emergency care is needed for clients they are assigned
to transport. Contractor shall have a written accident/incident investigation

Page 42 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 \ b L)



procedure and shall follow that procedure to respond to and review all
accidents/incidents.

13.17 Contractor shall inform TCTD within one hour or the first hour of the next
business day of all injuries and accidents occurring while transporting
clients. A written injury/accident report shall be submitted by the end of
the business day following the accident. A formal report, detailing the
accident, complete with copies of motor vehicle and law enforcement
reports, actions taken and scheduled follow-up, shall be submitted to
TCTD within five (5) business days of the date of the event.

13.18 Contractor shall notify TCTD within 24 hours or no later than the next
business day, of any and all non-injury accidents and incidents related to
transporting an NWR client. Contractor shall notify TCTD within 24 hours
of any non-injury accident or incident that affects the client’s health or well-
being or relates in any way to a client complaint. The report shall include
the date of the event, vehicle, and driver description of the accident or
incident, and names of all parties involved. A written report of the accident
or incident shall be submitted to TCTD within two (2) business days of the
date of the event.

13.19 Contractor shall respond to TCTD in writing to address all Complaint
notifications within five (5) days of receipt of notice of the incident.

13.20 Contractor shall notify TCTD immediately of any event that affects the
client’s timely arrival for the appointment or the client's destination.

13.21 Contractor’s drivers shall not perform NEMT services under this BPA while
consuming or under the influence of alcohol or drugs. Contractor is
encouraged to enroll all its drivers in a drug and alcohol consortium, and
to encourage its subcontractors to register all of subcontractor’s drivers in
a drug and alcohol consortium. Contractor must immediately refer drivers
suspected of being under the influence of alcohol or drugs for testing at
Contractor's expense. Refusal to test or positive test results shall
disqualify a driver from providing service under this BPA.

13.22 Contractor shall provide door-to-door service. It is understood that at
times clients may require pick up or drop off inside a facility. Drivers are
not to enter a private dwelling. It is also understood that it may be
necessary to check a client in with nurses, doctors, or caretakers rather
than leave a client unattended at the door.

13.23 Contractor’s drivers shall not perform personal care services for clients,
such as dressing or feeding. Contractor’s drivers shall not transfer a client

Page 43 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l D ﬂO



into or out of a wheelchair or bed, or provide full-weight support while
walking, except as authorized by TCTD.

13.24 Driver may assist a client in a wheelchair up or down one (1) step where a
ramp is not available.

13.25 A wheelchair accessible vehicle must be used when assigned by NWR for
clients in wheelchairs who require transportation while remaining in their
mobility device. Transferring/carrying individuals from wheelchairs to the
seat of a vehicle is prohibited, except for a rider who can transfer without
assistance.

13.26 Children under eighteen (18) years of age shall not be transported in the
front seat of the vehicle.

13.27 Contractor shall notify TCTD immediately upon any no-show passengers
at the scheduled pick-up time.

13.28 Passengers are permitted to travel with service animals.

13.29 One or more violations of any of the above requirements in paragraph 13
as determined by TCTD may be grounds for termination or suspension of
Contractor in TCTD’s sole discretion.

14.  Stretcher Transport Standards

Any stretcher transport provided shail comply with OAR 333-255-0072, regarding
stretcher equipment standards for ambulances. In addition, stretcher transport
shall comply with the following requirements.

14.1  All stretcher transports shall have an assistant provided by the Contractor,
in addition to the driver, to assist with loading, unloading, and lifting the
stretcher. A minimum of two (2) individuals are required to accompany a
stretcher car passenger during the duration of the trip.

14.2 Stretcher Gurney — In addition to the standards stated in OAR 333-255-
0072, the stretcher gurney shall have brakes installed on a minimum of
one wheel. Stretcher gurney shall have a minimum weight load capacity
of 500 pounds. Stretcher gurney shall have folding base legs that retract
when loading. Stretcher gurney shall have a safety bar and hook (for
mounting in vehicle) to prevent accidental drop when unloading. Annual
maintenance shall be performed on the stretcher gurney according to the
manufacturer's recommendations.

14.3 Vehicle — Vehicle shall have an approved antler bracket and rear rail
clamp (that fastens directly to the stretcher) mounted to the floor of the

Page 44 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 ( D’/,



vehicle. Vehicle shall have a safety hook mounted by the rear door to
prevent accidental stretcher drop. Wheelchair lift equipment shall not be
used to load/unload stretcher clients.

14.4  Training — All persons engaged in stretcher transports shall at a minimum
be trained in proper loading, unloading, lifting, and securement techniques
in addition to the training required in OAR 333-250-0270. Proof of training
is required.

15. Secure Transport Standards

15.1  Secure Transport Contractors must comply with all provisions of this BPA.
Secure Transport Contractors must also comply with all Oregon Health
Authority requirements for Secure Transport providers as found in
OAR 309-033-0200 through 309-033-0440.

Page 45 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 \ D%



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT C

CRIMINAL RECORDS HISTORY REVIEW CRITERIA

General Guidelines
Crimes Affecting Fitness for Employment

Time Frame
Type of Offense Class of Offense to Consider

Class A felony forever
Offenses against persons* Class B or C felony 15 years
Class A, B or C misdemeanor 10 years
Class A felony 15 years
Offenses against property Class B or C felony 10 years
Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5 years
. . . Class C felony 10 years
Offenses involving fraud or deception Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5.years
. . oz Class A felony 15 years
' Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5 years
. . Class A felony 15 years
Sefi:eennsceys :gzlgitirg:gic health, Class C felony 10 years
' Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5 years
Offenses involving controlled Class A felony 15 years
substances, illegal drug cleanup, Class B or C felony 10 years
paraphernalia, precursors Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5 years
Class C felony 10 years

All other crime categories Class A, B or C misdemeanor 5 years

Traffic Crime

1. Failure to disclose a conviction of a criminal offense or crime will result in
disqualification from employment. Disqualification resulting from failure to disclose may

not be appealed.

2. For offenses marked by an asterisk, TCTD will not make exceptions to the General

Guidelines set forth above.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 267.237, 181A.200.
This section specifically overrides any inconsistent provisions.

Page 46 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3

09




BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
ATTACHMENT D

SPECIAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

General Applicability and Compliance. Unless exempt under 45 CFR Part 87 for Faith-
Based Organizations (Federal Register, July 16, 2004, Volume 69, Number 136), or
other federal provisions, Contractor shall comply and, as indicated, cause all
subcontractors to comply with the following federal requirements to the extent that they
are applicable to this Contract, to Contractor, or to the Work, or to any combination of
the foregoing. For purposes of this Contract, all references to federal and state laws are
references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from time to time. The
term “Contract” shall mean “BPA.”

1.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Miscellaneous Federal Provisions

Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with all federal
laws, regulations, and executive orders applicable to the Contract or to the
delivery of Services. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor
expressly agrees to comply and require all subcontractors to comply with the
following laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable
to the Contract: (a) Title VI and VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,
(b) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, (c) the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, (d) Executive Order 112486,
as amended, (e) the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
(f) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, and the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (g) the Vietham Era Veterans'
Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, (h) all regulations and
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws, (i) all other
applicable requirements of federal civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules
and regulations, (j) all federal law governing operation of Community Mental
Health Programs, including without limitation, all federal laws requiring reporting
of Client abuse. These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated
by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the Contract and
required by law to be so incorporated. No federal funds may be used to provide
Services in violation of 42 USC 14402.

Equal Employment Opportunity

If this Contract, including amendments, is for more than $10,000, then Contractor
shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with Executive Order
11248, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive
Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR
Part 60).

Page 47 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 1 lO



3. Clean Air, Clean Water, EPA Regulations

If this Contract, including amendments, exceeds $100,000 then Contractor shall
comply and require all subcontractors to comply with all applicable standards,
orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.
1857(h)), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (commonly known
as the Clean Water Act) (33 U.S.C. 1251 to 1387), specifically including, but not
limited to Section 508 (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and
Environmental Protection Agency regulations for grants and agreements (2 CFR
Part 1532), which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or
loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. Violations shall
be reported to OHA, United States Department of Health and Human Services
and the appropriate Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Contractor.
Contractor shall include and require all subcontractors to include in all contracts
with subcontractors receiving more than $100,000, language requiring the
subcontractor to comply with the federal laws identified in this section.

4. Energy Efficiency

Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with applicable
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained
in the Oregon energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy
Policy and Conservation Act 42 U.S.C. 6201 et. Seq. (Pub. L. 94 163).

5. Truth in Lobbying

By signing this Contract, the Contractor certifies, to the best of the Contractor’s
knowledge and belief that:

5.1 No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on
behalf of Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the
making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative Contract, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or
cooperative Contract.

5.2 If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will
be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer
or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative Contract,

Page 48 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l l \



the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.

5.3  The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative Contracts) and that all subrecipients and subcontractors shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

5.4  This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when this Contract was made or entered into. Submission of
this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this Contract
imposed by section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

5.5  No part of any federal funds paid to the Contractor under this Contract
shall be used other than for normal and recognized executive legislative
relationships, for publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation,
distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic
communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to
support or defeat the enactment of legislation before the United States
Congress or any State or local legislature itself, or designed to support or
defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order
issued by the executive branch of any State or local government itself.

5.6 No part of any federal funds paid to Contractor under this Contract shall
be used to pay the salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or
agent acting for such recipient, related to any activity designed to
influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation,
administrative action, or Executive order proposed or pending before the
United State Congress or any State government, State legislature or local
legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and recognized
executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer
of a State, local or tribal government in policymaking or administrative
processes within the executive branch of that government.

5.7 The prohibitions in subsections (E) and (F) of this section shall include any
activity to advocate or promote any proposed, pending or future Federal,
State or local tax increase, or any proposed, pending, or future
requirement or restriction on any legal consumer product, including its sale
or marketing, including but not limited to the advocacy or promotion of gun
control.

Page 49 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 l 1 /L
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



5.8  No part of any federal funds paid to Contractor under this Contract may be
used for any activity that promotes the legalization of any drug or
substance included in schedule 1 of the schedules of controlled
substances established under Section 202 of the Controlled Substances
Act except for normal and recognized executive congressional
communications. This limitation shall not apply when there is significant
medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use of such drug or
other substance or that federally sponsored clinical trials are being
conducted to determine therapeutic advantage.

6. Resource Conservation and Recovery

Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with all
mandatory standards and policies that relate to resource conservation and
recovery pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (codified at
42 USC 6901 et. seq.). Section 6002 of that Act (codified at 42 USC 6962)
requires that preference be given in procurement programs to the purchase of
specific products containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed
by the Environmental Protection Contractor. Current guidelines are set forth in
40 CFR Part 247.

7. Audits

7.1 Contractor shall comply, and require all subcontractors to comply, with
applicable audit requirements and responsibilities set forth in this Contract
and applicable state or federal law.

7.2 If Contractor expends $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources)
in a federal fiscal year, Contractor shall have a single organization-wide
audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Subtitle B with
guidance at 2 CFR Part 200. Copies of all audits must be submitted to
TCTD within 30 days of completion. If Contractor expends less than
$750,000 in a federal fiscal year, Contractor is exempt from Federal audit
requirements for that year. Records must be available as requested.

8. Debarment and Suspension

Contractor shall not permit any person or entity to be a subcontractor if the
person or entity is listed in the Governmentwide System for Award Management
Exclusions list (“SAM Exclusions”), currently at https://www.sam.gov, in
accordance with Executive Orders No. 12549 and No. 12689, “Debarment and
Suspension.” See 2 CFR Part 180. This list contains the names of parties
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, and contractors
declared ineligible under statutory authority other than Executive Order

No. 12549. Subcontractors with awards that exceed the simplified acquisition

Page 50 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 \ 13



threshold shall provide the required certification regarding their exclusion status
and that of their principals prior to award. Contractor shall cooperate with TCTD
conducting such checks by providing a current list of owners and employees on a
monthly basis with sufficient identifying information to allow TCTD to conduct a
debarment and suspension check.

Drug-Free Workplace

Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with the
following provisions to maintain a drug-free workplace:

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Contractor certifies that it will provide a drug-free workplace by publishing
a statement notifying its employees that the unlawful manufacture,
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance,
except as may be present in lawfully prescribed or over-the-counter
medications, is prohibited in Contractor’s workplace or while providing
services to OHA and CPCCO Clients. Contractor’s notice shall specify the
actions that will be taken by Contractor against its employees for violation
of such prohibitions;

Establish a drug-free awareness program to inform its employees about:
The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, Contractor’s policy of
maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling,
rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that
may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations:

Provide each employee to be engaged in the performance of Work under
this Contract a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (A) above;

Notify each employee in the statement required by paragraph (A) that, as
a condition of employment to perform Work under this Contract, the
employee will: abide by the terms of the statement, and notify the
employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in
the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction:

Notify TCTD within ten (10) days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (D) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice
of such conviction;

Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug
abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so
convicted as required by Section 5154 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of
1988;

Make a good-faith effort to continue a drug-free workplace through
implementation of subparagraphs (A) through (F);

Page 51 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 {' l 4



10.

11.

9.8
9.9

9.10

Require any subcontractor to comply with subparagraphs (A) through (G);

Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor's employees, officers, agents or
subcontractors may perform any work required under this Contract while
under the influence of drugs. For purposes of this provision, “under the
influence” means: observed abnormal behavior or impairments in mental
or physical performance leading a reasonable person to believe the
Contractor or Contractor’'s employee, officer, agent or subcontractor has
used a controlled substance, prescription or non-prescription medication
that impairs the Contractor or Contractor's employee, officer, agent or
subcontractor’'s performance of essential job function or creates a direct
threat to Clients or others. Examples of abnormal behavior include, but
are not limited to: hallucinations, paranoia or violent outbursts. Examples
of impairments in physical or mental performance include, but are not
limited to: slurred speech, difficulty walking or performing job activities;

Violation of any provision of this subsection may result in termination of
the Contract.

Pro-Children Act

Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with the Pro-
Children Act of 1994 (codified at 20 USC Section 6081 et. seq.).

Medicaid Services

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations
pertaining to the provision of Medicaid Services under the Medicaid Act, Title
XIX, 42 USC Section 1396 et seq., including without limitation:

11.1

11.2

11.3

Keep such records as are necessary to fully disclose the extent of the
services provided to individuals receiving Medicaid assistance and shall
furnish such information to any state or federal agency responsible for
administering the Medicaid program regarding any payments claimed by
such person or institution for providing Medicaid Services as the state or
federal agency may from time to time request. 42 USC Section 1396a
(a)(27); 42 CFR 431.107(b)}(1) & (2).

Comply with all disclosure requirements of 42 CFR 1002.3(a) and 42 CFR
455 Subpart (B).

Maintain written notices and procedures respecting advance directives in
compliance with 42 USC Section 1396(a)(57) and (w), 42 CFR
431.107(b)(4), and 42 CFR 489 subpart I.

Page 52 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 , l 6



12.

13.

11.4

11.5

Certify when submitting any claim for the provision of Medicaid Services
that the information submitted is true, accurate and complete. Contractor
shall acknowledge Contractor’s understanding that payment of the claim
will be from federal and state funds and that any falsification or
concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under federal and state
laws.

Entities receiving $5 million or more annually (under this Contract and any
other Medicaid contract) for furnishing Medicaid health care items or
services shall, as a condition of receiving such payments, adopt written
fraud, waste and abuse policies and procedures and inform employees,
contractors and agents about the policies and procedures in compliance
with Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, 42 USC § 1396a
(a)(68).

Agency-Based Voter Registration

If applicable, Contractor shall comply with the Agency-based Voter Registration
sections of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 that require voter
registration opportunities be offered to applicants for services.

Disclosure

13.1

42 CFR Part 455.104 requires the state Medicaid agency to obtain the
following information from any provider of Medicaid or CHIP services,
including fiscal agents of providers and managed care entities:

13.1.1  The name and address (including the primary business address,
every business location and P.O. Box address) of any person
(individual or corporation) with an ownership or control interest
in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity;

13.1.2  Inthe case of an individual, the date of birth and Social Security
Number, or, in the case of a corporation, the tax identification
number of the entity, with an ownership interest in the provider,
fiscal agent or managed care entity or of any subcontractor in
which the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has a
5% or more interest;

13.1.3  Whether the person (individual or corporation) with an
ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child or sibling, or
whether the person (individual or corporation) with an ownership
or control interest in any subcontractor in which the provider,
fiscal agent or managed care entity has a 5% or more interest is
related to another person with ownership or control interest in

Page 53 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Bianket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 \ \LO



14.

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

13.2

13.3

13.4

the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as a spouse,
parent, child or sibling;

13.1.4  The name of any other provider, fiscal agent or managed care
entity in which an owner of the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity has an ownership or control interest; and

13.1.5  The name, address, date of birth and Social Security Number of
any managing employee of the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity.

42 CFR Part 455.434 requires as a condition of enrollment as a Medicaid
or CHIP provider, to consent to criminal background checks, including
fingerprinting when required to do so under state law, or by the category of
the provider based on risk of fraud, waste and abuse under federal law.

As such, a provider must disclose any person with a 5% or greater direct
or indirect ownership interest in the provider who has been convicted or a
criminal offense related to that person’s involvement with the Medicare,
Medicaid, or title XXI program in the last 10 years.

Contractor shall make the disclosures required by this Section 13 to TCTD
who will, in turn provide these disclosures to OHA. OHA reserves the right
to take such action as required by law, or where OHA has discretion, it
deems appropriate, based on the information received (or the failure to
receive information) from the provider, fiscal agent or managed care
entity.

Federal Intellectual Property Rights Notice.

The federal funding agency, as the awarding agency of the funds used, at least
in part, for the Work under this Contract, may have certain rights as set forth in
the federal requirements pertinent to these funds. For purposes of this
subsection, the terms “grant” and “award” refer to funding issued by the federal
funding agency to the State of Oregon. The Contractor agrees that it has been
provided the following notice:

14.1

The federal funding agency reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the Work, and to
authorize others to do so, for Federal Government purposes with respect
to:

14.1.1 The copyright in any Work developed under a grant, subgrant or
contract under a grant or subgrant; and

Page 54 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l ‘ .7



14.1.2  Any rights of copyright to which a grantee, subgrantee or a
contractor purchases ownership with grant support.

14.2  The parties are subject to applicable federal regulations governing patents
and inventions, including government-wide regulations issued by the
Department of Commerce at 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made
by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements.”

14.3 The parties are subject to applicable requirements and regulations of the
federal funding agency regarding rights in data first produced under a
grant, subgrant or contract under a grant or subgrant.

Page 55 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l 1 %



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
ATTACHMENT E
CODE OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT FOR DRIVERS

1. Safety Compliance:

Drivers shall drive safely, comply with all transportation laws and follow all
vehicle/client securement and safety procedures while performing transportation
services under the Contractor's BPA with TCTD.

2. Professional Demeanor:

Drivers shall be punctual, prepared, and dressed in a professional manner
appropriate for the situation. Drivers shall not use alcohol, narcotics, or controlled
substances while on duty. Drivers shall not use any legal or illegal substance or
prescribed or over the counter medication that affects their ability to safely
operate a motor vehicle. Drivers shall not smoke or vape in the vehicle or within
10 feet of the vehicle at any time. Drivers shall not eat in the vehicle, except for
prior documented medical purposes. Drivers shall not solicit or accept alcohol,
prescriptions, controlled substances, tobacco products, food, or gifts of any kind
from clients.

3. Cultural Sensitivity — Courtesy — Respect:

Drivers shall maintain a courteous, polite and professional manner in all dealings
with the public and shall be sensitive to the needs of people using NEMT,
including people with disabilities, people of all cultural and racial backgrounds,
people of all sexual orientations and gender identities, people of all ages, and
people with major illnesses and/or who are medically fragile. Drivers shall be
culturally sensitive and respectful to the individuals they serve. Drivers shall
provide support, assistance, and direction to clients as needed. Drivers shall not
make sexually explicit comments, solicit sexual favors, or engage in sexual
activities with clients. Drivers shall not develop or maintain romantic or sexual
relationships with clients.

4. Scope of Duties:

Drivers shall not counsel, refer, give advice, or express personal opinions to
clients, or engage in any other activities that may be construed to constitute a
service other than transportation. Drivers shall not market their services to clients
or arrange services for clients in order to create business for themselves. Driver
shall not provide clients with food, beverages, tobacco products or gifts of any

Page 56 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 [ lq



10.

kind. Drivers shall not stop for lunch, fuel or convenience items of any kind during
the transport of a client, except as authorized in advance by TCTD.

Confidentiality:

Drivers shall take all reasonable measures to safeguard and protect client
information. Drivers shall only use or disclose personal information to TCTD, or
appropriate authorities for purposes directly connected with the services provided
to the client.

Proficiency:

Drivers shall meet the minimum training standards required by TCTD and pass
all required trainings. Driver shall be trained to proficiency for use and
securement of any special equipment installed on their vehicles, including but not
limited to wheelchair lifts, stretcher gurneys, mobility devices, child car seats, and
two-way communication devices. Driver shall be familiar with the geographic
area in which they provide service. Driver shall communicate effectively in
English, verbally and in writing.

Compensation:

Drivers shall not accept additional money, considerations, gifts, or favors from
clients.

Non-discrimination:

Drivers shall not discriminate on the basis of gender, disability, race, color,
national origin, age, socioeconomic or educational status, religion, political,
sexual orientation, or medical condition.

Self-evaluation:

Drivers shall accurately and completely represent their personal history, driving
records, training and experience.

Ethical Standards:

Drivers shall be neutral, impartial, and unbiased. Drivers shall disclose any real
or perceived conflict of interest that would affect their ability to legally and
ethically provide services. Drivers shall immediately withdraw from encounters
they perceive as violations of this Code. Drivers shall assess at all times their
ability to drive. Should drivers have any reservations about their ability to safely
provide service, they must immediately notify the Contractor, who will in turn
notify TCTD. The driver will withdraw from service and will remain with the client
until an appropriate driver can be secured.

Page 57 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l 2 O



11.  Conduct Requirements:

Drivers will comply with all driver conduct requirements listed in the BPA,
Attachment B, Brokerage Transportation Provider Standards, Paragraph 12,
Driver Standards. Any violations of the Brokerage Transportation Provider Driver
Standards or the Code of Professional Conduct for Drivers may result in
suspension or termination.

THIS CODE APPLIES TO ALL PERSONS PROVIDING TRANSPORTATION
SERVICES UNDER THE CONTRACTOR’S BPA WITH TCTD
AND MUST BE COMPLIED WITH AT ALL TIMES.

Date

Signature of Contractor Representative

Contractor Representative Printed Name

Company

Page 58 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l ) l



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
ATTACHMENT F
HIPAA COMPLIANCE AND FRAUD, WASTE & ABUSE

TCTD maintains Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA")
compliance and Fraud, Waste & Abuse (“FWA”) standards to prevent, detect and
correct noncompliance and FWA activities.

What is FWA? “FWA” stands for fraud, waste and abuse. In summary, it refers
to anything that may compromise the safety, integrity, protection, and financial
well-being of health care programs. It does not matter who committed the FWA
act, or whether it was intentional or unintentional. If you suspect that an
employee, a provider, a beneficiary or a broker has violated the FWA rule, you
have an obligation to report it.

What is the difference between “compliance” and “FWA”? Compliance is a
broad term used to describe activities and behaviors that must be consistent with
Federal, HIPAA, and State laws, regulations, mandates and operational
requirements. FWA, on the other hand, is more specific and tends to focus on the
financial, safety and utilization impact to the health care programs. In general,
FWA focuses on claims, appropriate use of services, financial reimbursement,
and certain illegal acts. FWA is no more or less severe than non-compliance. The
severity of the issue will depend on facts and circumstances.

How you can help to prevent, detect and correct HIPAA noncompliance and
FWA? You should be familiar with relevant Federal and State laws, and TCTD's
compliance program and its policies and procedures. This will allow you to know
when to recognize incidents of noncompliance and FWA and be able to report
them. Should an issue require further action, you should assist in the
investigation and resolution to ensure that the issue is corrected and does not
reoccur. You can report incidents of noncompliance or FWA to the Oregon
Department of Human Services Office of Payment Accuracy and Recovery Fraud
Hotline at 1-888-FRAUDO1(1-888-372-8301) or online at:

https://sharedsystems.dhsoha.state.or.us/opr_fra ud_ref/index.cfm?act=evt.subm
_web.

EXAMPLES OF NON-COMPLIANCE OR FWA
5.1  Intentionally providing clients with inaccurate information.
5.2 Submitting claims for services never rendered.

5.3 Making Personal Health Information accessible to the public.

Page 59 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 l 22
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



6. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS

TCTD, our employees and providers must comply with certain Federal and State
Laws, statutes and requirements, such as:

6.1  Anti-Kickback Statute: This statute prohibits anyone from knowingly and
willingly receiving or paying anything of value to influence the referral of
federally funded health care program business. This can take many forms,
such as cash payments, entertainment, credits, gifts, free goods or
services, the forgiveness of debt, or the sale or purchase of items at a
price that is not consistent with fair market value.

The offense is classified as a felony and is punishable by fines of up to $25,000,
imprisonment for up to five years, civil money penalties of up to $50,000, and
exclusion from participation in health care programs.

6.2 Contractual Commitments: TCTD contracts with the Oregon Health
Authority (OHA) and provides services for Columbia Pacific Coordinated
Care Organization (CPCCO). We are bound by the terms and conditions
of our contracts. Non-compliance with contractual obligations may result in
the suspension or termination of our contracts with OHA and CPCCO.

6.3 HIPAA & HITECH Act: HIPAA and the Health Information Technology for
Economic and Clinical Health (“HITECH”) Act protect the confidentiality
and integrity of protected health information. The HIPAA Privacy Rule
provides federal protections for personal health information held by TCTD
and its providers and gives clients an array of rights with respect to that
information.

6.4  The Security Rule specifies a series of administrative, physical and
technical safeguards for TCTD and its providers to use to assure
confidentiality, integrity and availability of electronic protected health
information.

7. HIPAA PRIVACY, 42 CFR PROTECTIONS AND PHI SECURITY

The parties’ activities pursuant to the Agreement sometimes may involve (i) the
disclosure of PHI by the TCTD (or another business associate of the TCTD) to
Contracted Provider, (ii) the use or disclosure by Contracted Provider of PHi
received from the TCTD and (iii) the transmission by Electronic Media or the
maintenance in Electronic Media of Individually Identifiable Health Information by
Contracted Provider. Accordingly, the relationship between TCTD and
Contracted Provider is subject to provisions of the HIPAA Rules and 42 CFR Part
2 protections. TCTD and Contracted Provider intend to protect the privacy of PHI
and the security of electronic PHI held by Contracted Provider in connection with

Page 60 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 ]/B
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3



the Agreement in compliance with this BPA, the HIPAA Rules and other
applicable laws. You should:

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5
7.6

7.7

Use and disclose the minimum necessary PHI to perform the job

Disclose PHI to any third party only with appropriate written authorization
from the individual, unless the law authorizes or requires the disclosure.

Dispose of unneeded copies of documents containing PHI in a secure
manner.

Never leave PHI lying on desks, in fax machines, on dashboards, on seats
or in any other area generally accessible to the public.

Take special care to secure PHI when transmitting or transporting it.
Password- or PIN-protect any computer or portable device containing PHI.

Report all inappropriate disclosure of PHI to TCTD.

The unauthorized use or release of confidential or privileged medical information

by a provider may be considered a breach of contract.

No PHI' may be disclosed or discussed with anyone beyond your organization

except as required to fulfill your job responsibilities and in accordance with
federal and state laws. A breach of confidentiality occurs when PHI is passed
purposely or accidentally to anyone who does not have a business need to know.
Such breaches of confidentiality are strictly prohibited.

10. CONSEQUENCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE

10.1

10.2

Failure to act with integrity or comply with applicable laws and regulations
can have a severe adverse impact on TCTD as a medical transportation
broker and your organization as a medical transportation provider through
exclusion or debarment from government programs. TCTD will review the
registers once a month for the names of all owners and employees of the
Contractor.

TCTD is bound by the terms and conditions of its contracts.
Noncompliance with contractual provisions may result in the termination of
such contracts and/or penalties under state and/or federal laws.

11.  Contractor acknowledges that Contractor has reviewed TCTD’s Business
Associate Agreement with Columbia Pacific CCO, attached hereto and
incorporated as Appendix 1 to this Attachment F, which outlines TCTD's
obligations under state and federal law with regard to protected health

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

Page 61 of 66

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3

4



information. Contractor warrants that Contractor has read that agreement and

agrees to be bound by and comply with its terms and conditions to the extent
applicable.

Page 62 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l ? 5



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
APPENDIX 1 TO ATTACHMENT F

TCTD-CPCCO BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Page 63 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 [ 2 lo



BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
ATTACHMENT G
MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY

The Tillamook County Transportation District's NW Rides Brokerage (“NWR”)
uses Ecolane software (“Ecolane”) to schedule and assign non-emergent medical
transport (NEMT) trips to contracted transportation providers. Ecolane generates trip
assignments based on the least-cost trip by automatically calculating the shortest
direct route between the first pickup point and the final destination. TCTD will
reimburse contractors for mileage based on the shortest direct route as selected by
Ecolane.

In the event of a contractor’'s deviation from or extension to the shortest direct
route associated with a trip assignment, this policy shall govern mileage reimbursement.

1. Deviations

For purposes of this policy, a deviation occurs when a contractor incurs mileage
in excess of the shortest direct route as a result of leaving the shortest direct
route for any purpose prior to reaching the final destination of the trip

assignment, including for purposes of picking up or dropping off a shared ride
client. It is the responsibility of the contractor to absorb the additional mileage
incurred as a result of a deviation. No additional mileage will be reimbursed in
excess of the distance of the shortest direct route as selected and assigned by
Ecolane. All invoices submitted to TCTD must reflect only the trip mileage
assigned by Ecolane. Any discrepancy in the invoiced mileage will be grounds for
rejection of the invoice.

2. Extensions

For purposes of this policy, an extension occurs when a contractor incurs
mileage in excess of the shortest direct route for the sole purpose of dropping off
a shared ride client at a final destination beyond the original client’s final
destination. Extensions must be approved in advance by NWR. All invoices
submitted to TCTD must identify trip assignments that involve an extension.
Contractors will be reimbursed for mileage for approved extensions based on the
shortest direct route between the original client’s final destination and the shared
ride client's final destination.

This policy is consistent with the provisions of Oregon Administrative Rules 410-
136-3220, which govern payments to third-party NEMT contractors.

Page 64 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021

45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 ‘ 2’7



This policy is also consistent with the terms of the Blanket Purchase Agreement
(BPA) governing performance of NEMT services through NWR by TCTD and
each of its contractors:

2.1 Contractor shall accept and perform rides as assigned by NWR.

2.2 Contractor shall not make any changes to the rides as authorized by NWR
including, but not limited to, any changes resulting in (1) combined or
shared rides, (2) indirect routes of any kind, or (3) alternate pick-up or
drop-off locations. If a change is needed Contractor must receive prior
approval for such change from NWR. Trips not provided as authorized
shall not be reimbursed.

2.3 Reimbursement will be made for the route and mileage selected from
point of origin to the destination by Ecolane.

2.4  Reimbursement is based on the condition that the NEMT service was
provided as authorized by NWR, including shared ride status, escort
requirements, assigned pick-up and drop-off locations, and any other
directions provided by NWR with the trip assignment.

2.5 No payment will be made for duplicate mileage. When two NEMT clients
are transported at the same time, only one mileage charge will be allowed.

2.6 Shared NEMT ride rates shall be no more than half the base rate for each
mode of transportation in accordance with OAR 410-136-3220.

3. Submission Requirements:

In order to be reimbursed for any trips, the following information must be included
in the billing:

3.1.1 Trip authorization number;
3.1.2 Client name;

3.1.3 Mode of transportation, i.e., sedan, wheelchair vehicle, stretcher,
secured, etc.

3.1.4 Date and time of transport;
3.1.5 Pick-up and drop off locations;
3.1.6 Scheduled time of pickup;

3.1.7 Actual time of pickup;

Page 65 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021 ~
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 1 2%



3.1.8 Actual time of drop-off;
3.1.9 Trip charge;

3.1.10 Trip mileage;

3.1.11 Driver name;

3.1.12 Vehicle number or other identification.

Page 66 of 66

CPCCO-TCTD NEMT Blanket Purchase Agreement July 2021
45039-76820 4813-8415-2265.3 l /)q‘



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE96

COLUMBIA PACIFIC CCO
NON-EMERGENT MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
DELEGATION AGREEMENT

This agreement (“Agreement”) is between Columbia Pacific CCO, LLC (hereinafter “CCO”) acting byand
through its agreement with the Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) to operate as a Coordinated Care
Organization, and

Name: Tillamook County Transportation District
Address: 3600 Third Street, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141
Contact name: Doug Pilant, General Manager
Telephone: (503) 815-8283
Email address: dpilant@tillamookbus.com

hereinafter referred to as “Delegate.”

General Provisions
1. Effective Date and Duration

The Agreement, effective as of January 1, 2020, is hereby amended and restated in its entirety
effective as of January 1, 2021, “Effective Date”. The amendment and restatement of this Agreement
does not affect its terms and conditions for Work prior to January 1, 2021. Unless extended or
terminated earlier in accordance with terms provided for in this Agreement, this Agreement shall
expire on December 31, 2021. Agreement termination shall not extinguish orprejudice CCO’s right to
enforce this Agreement with respect to any default by Delegate that has not been cured.

2. Entire Agreement/Merger Clause and Amendment

a. This Agreement consists of these General Provisions, and includes the followinglisted
exhibits which are incorporated into this Agreement:

Exhibit A, Part 1: Definitions

Exhibit A, Part 2: Statement of Work

Exhibit A, Part 3: Payment and Financial Reporting
Exhibit A, Part 4: Insurance

Exhibit B: Standard Terms and Conditions

Exhibit C: Required Federal Terms and Conditions
Exhibit D: Business Associate Agreement

b.  This Agreement and its exhibits represent the complete and entire understanding
between the parties and supersede all prior agreements, understandings, or
representations, oral or written, between the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any representations,
promises, warranties, or statements that differ in any way from the terms of this
Agreement have no force or effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be

General Provisions
Page 1 of 56

130



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

3.

binding upon the parties, their respective successors, heirs, legal representatives or
personal representatives.

c. Noamendment or modification to the terms of this Agreement are valid unless made in
writing and signed by each of the parties hereto. All exhibits and schedules, some of
which in turn have attachments, which are attached hereto, are incorporated by
reference into this Agreement.

Enrollment Limits and Service Area

For the purposes of this Agreement, Delegate’s Service Area is all zip codes contained in the CCO
service area as outlined in the CCO Contract.

Delegate agrees to provide non-emergent medical transportation services to all of CCO’s
Members, without an Enrollment Limit.

Administration and Interpretation of Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that this
Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions of the CCO Contract between CCO andthe Oregon
Health Authority (“OHA”). The parties shall interpret and administer this Agreement in accordance
with the CCO Contract, Section 4.2 titled “Administration of Contract” and Section

4.3 titled “Interpretation of Contract” which shall be incorporated herein by reference.

The parties further acknowledge and agree that in the event that any provision, clause or application
of this Agreement is ambiguous with respect to the delegation of CCO Contract provisions by CCO to
Delegate due to drafting, technical or similar issues, the partiesshall interpret this Agreement in a
manner consistent with the original intention of the parties, to allow CCO to delegate duties and
obligations related to providing Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services that are Covered
Services, as outlined in the Statement of Work, to Members under the CCO Contract to Delegate as
CCO deems reasonably possible and appropriate in light of Delegate’s mission and objectives.
Provided any conflict orinconsistency exists between any term or condition in this Agreement with
the terms and conditions in the CCO Contract, this Agreement shall control.

Nothing in this Agreement shall terminate or limit CCO’s legal responsibilities to OHA for the timely
and effective performance of CCO’s duties and responsibilities under the CCO Contract.

. Performance of Agreement. Delegate agrees to perform its duties and obligations under this

Agreement in accordance with the CCO Contract, applicable federal, state, and local laws, the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, and all applicable policies and procedures adopted by CCO and its
affiliates. CCO will make best efforts to provide Delegate with copies of all such policies and
procedures. If Delegate fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement orwith the policies and
procedures of CCO and its affiliates, CCO may terminate this Agreement as outlined in the
Termination provisions to this Agreement.

General Provisions
Page 2 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBESS

6. Signatures. This Agreement and any subsequent amendments may be executed in several
counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all
parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Eachcopy of
the Agreement and any amendments so executed shall constitute an original. By signatures below,
the parties agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Delegate

By: 1@&11}3.9 Q&i G&«lvwl Mumo&e\r [~22-2)
Authorized Siénature Title Date

CCO DocuSigned by:

By: Miw thale | Executive Director 1/27/2021
Authorize ignature Title Date

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

General Provisions
Page 3 of 56

32



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBES6

EXHIBIT A-PART 1

Definitions

Capitalized terms used in this Agreement, but not otherwise defined in this Agreement, shall havethe
same meaning as those terms in the CCO Contract, including definitions incorporated herein by
reference. Where capitalized terms are not defined in this Agreement, in the CCO Contract, or inthe
OARs cited in this Part, the terms shall have their commonly understood meaning and usage, including
as applicable, the meaning as understood within the health care field and community.

The order of preference for interpreting conflicting definitions in this Agreement is (in descendingorder
of priority):

A. Express definitions in this Exhibit A, Part 1,
B. Express definitions elsewhere in this Agreement or in the CCO Contract,
C. Definitions in the OARs cited in Sections 1 and 2 below, in the order of those Sections.

For purposes of this Agreement, in addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the terms
below shall have the following meanings when capitalized. If a term below is used without capitalization
in this Agreement, then the context determines whether the term is intended to be used with the
defined meaning.

1. Terms Defined in OAR 410-120-0000

This Agreement incorporates all of the definitions in OAR 410-120-0000, including but not [imitedto
the definitions of:

Abuse Dental Services
Acute Dentist
Ambulance Emergency Department

American Indian/Alaska Native {Al/AN)
Ancillary Services

Benefit Package
Citizen/Alien-Waived Emergency
Medical (CAWEM)

Claimant

Client

Clinical Record

Contested Case Hearing
Co-Payments

Community Mental Health Program
(CMHP)

Condition/Treatment Pair

Cost Effective

Covered Services

Date of Receipt of a Claim

Date of Service

EXHIBIT A —-PART 1
Page 4 of 56

Emergency Medical Transportation
False Claim

Fraud

Fully Dual Eligible

Hospice

Hospital

Indian Health Care Provider (IHCP)
Indian Health Service (IHS)
Individual Adjustment Request Form
(DMAP 1036)

Institutionalized

Liability Insurance

Managed Care Organization (MCO)
Medicaid

Medical Assistance Eligibility
Confirmation

Medical Assistance Program



DocuSign Envelope (D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

Medical Services

Medical Transportation

Medically Appropriate

Medicare

Medicare Advantage

Medicheck for Children and Teens
Non-Covered Services
Non-Emergent Medical Transportation
Services (NEMT)

Nursing Facility

Out-of-State Providers
Overpayment

Overuse

Payment Authorization
Post-Payment Review

Prepaid Health Plan (PHP)
Primary Care Provider (PCP)

Prior Authorization (PA)

Provider

Provider Organization

Terms Defined by this Agreement:

Recipient

Recoupment

Referral

Request for Hearing

Retroactive Medical Eligibility

Rural

Sanctio

School Based Health Service
Service Agreement

Subrogation

Termination

Third Party Liability (TPL), Third Party
Resource (TPR) or Third party payer
Transportation

Type A Hospital

Type B AAA

Type B AAA Unit

Type B Hospital

Urgent Care Services

Utilization Review (UR)

a. “Agreement” means this Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services Delegation

Agreement by and between CCO and Delegate including all exhibits, addenda and
attachments, all of which are incorporated herein by reference.

“CCO Contract” means the standard agreement by and between CCO and the State of
Oregon, acting through the Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) titled, “Oregon Health Plan,
the Health Plan Services Contract” and “Cover All Kids Health Plan Services Contract”
intentionally referred to in the singular in this Agreement as the “CCO Contract”, as may be
updated, amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time.

“Central Dispatch” means the centralized authorization and dispatch call center for Rides,
defined infra.

“Clean Claim” means a claim for Covered Services provided to a Member that (a)is
received timely by CCO; (b) has no defect, impropriety, or lack of substantiating
documentation from the Member's medical record regarding the Covered Services; (c)is
not subject to coordination of benefits or subrogation; (d) is on a completed, legible CMS
1500 form or UB-04 form or electronic equivalent that follows then current HIPAA
Administrative Simplification ASC X12 837 standards and additional specific requirements
in the Program Policies, including all then-current guidelines regarding coding andinclusive
code sets; and (e) includes all relevant information necessary for CCO or Payor to (i) meet
requirements of Laws and Program Requirements for reporting of Covered Services
provided to Members, and (ii) determine Payor liability, and ensure timely processingand
payment. A Clean Claim does not include a claim from a Contracted Provider who is under
investigation for fraud or abuse, or a claim under review for Medical Necessity.

“Covered Services” means a service for which CCO is responsible for payment as contained
in the CCO Contract, Health Systems Division General Rules, and the Medical

EXHIBIT A—PART 1
Page 5 of 56

| 54



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

Transportation Services rules under OAR 410-136-0000 et seq.

f.  “Member” means an individual properly enrolled with CCO and eligible to receive Covered
Services at the time services are rendered.

8. “Member Reimbursement” is defined as payment to a Member that includes but isnot
limited to miles, meals, and lodging.

h. “Non-Emergent Medical Transport” (“NEMT") is defined as transportation by (1) van,
including wheelchair lift-equipped vans; (2) sedan service; (3) taxi service; (4) stretcher car
service; and (5) secure transport. Non-Emergent Medical Transport also includes Member
transportation reimbursement, bus tickets and passes, common carrier, and voucher
programs.

i. “Policies and Procedures” means the criteria and methods pertaining to participation,
compensation, payment rules, processing guidelines, medical policy, utilization
management, quality improvement, fraud and abuse, health benefit plan standards, and
such other matters determined from time to time by CCO.

j. “Ride(s)” means NEMT Services for a Member either to or from a location where Covered
Services are provided. Ride(s) does not include Member reimbursed medicaltransportation
or ambulance transportation requiring an Emergency Medical Technician.

k. “Transportation Provider Standards” means the service standards which CCO requires
Delegate to meet.

I “Utilization Management” (“UM”) is defined as the evaluation of medical necessity,
appropriateness, and efficiency of the use of healthcare services, procedures, andfacilities
under the provisions of the Oregon Health Plan.

m. “Volunteer” means an individual selected, trained and under the supervision of Oregon
Department of Human Services (DHS) and brokered by Delegate who is providing services
under this Agreement in a non-paid capacity except for incidental expense reimbursement.

n. “Work” means the required activities, obligations, tasks, deliverables, reporting, and
invoicing requirements as defined herein, in this Agreement, and, where relevant, the CCO
Contract.

EXHIBIT A-PART 1
Page 6 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

EXHIBIT A — PART 2

STATEMENT OF WORK

1. Member Rights. Delegate shall:

a. Require and cause its Subcontractors, Providers, and Volunteers to require, that CCO
Members are treated with respect, due consideration for Member’s dignity and privacy,
and the same as non-Members or other customers who receive services equivalentto
Covered Services consistent with the requirements of this Agreement and OAR410-141-
3590, Oregon Health Plan {(“OHP”) Member Rights and Responsibilities and CCO Policies
and Procedures;

b. Ensure and cause its Subcontractors, Providers and Volunteers to ensure, that eachCCO
Member is free to exercise said Member’s rights, and that the exercise of those rights
does not adversely affect the way Delegate, its staff, subcontractors, providers or
volunteers treat Members. Delegate shall not discriminate in any way against Members
when those Members exercise their rights under the Oregon Health Plan;

¢.  Notdeny, and shall cause all subcontractors or volunteers to not deny, any Member
Non-Emergent Medical Transportation Services on the basis of race, color, sex, sexual
orientation, gender, religion, national origin, creed, marital status, age, health status or
the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability;

d. Not bill or hold any Member responsible for payment for Non-Emergent Medical
Transportation Services.

2. Covered Services. CCO hereby delegates to Delegate and Delegate hereby accepts delegation of,
and agrees to provide to Members certain Covered Services delineated in, relevant parts, Exhibit
B, Part 2, Section 5 of the CCO Contract associated with NEMT Services and as further
particularized in this Agreement. Delegate expressly assumes the duties, obligations, rights, and
privileges applicable to “Contractor” as described in the designated exhibits, parts, and sections
of the CCO Contract, as they relate to providing certain Non-Emergent Medical Transportation
Services that are Covered Services and that are further enumerated herein.

Delegate shall provide NEMT Services on behalf of CCO to CCO’s Members directly orthrough
subcontracts with Transportation Providers.

3. Operations.
a. General Operations.

i. Delegate will provide access to Brokerage Call Centers for ride requests with a
toll-free number. Delegate shall ensure that all Call Centers comply with all
applicable terms and conditions set forth in Para. f. of Sec. 5, Ex. B, Part 2 of the

EXHIBIT A—-PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 7 of 56

| Alo



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE96

Vi.

vii.

CCO Contract titled, NEMT Call Center Operations. In particular, Call Centers
shall:

[a] Operate at minimum Monday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m., but may close the call center on New Year’s Day, Memorial Day,
July 4, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and Christmas.

[b] Shall provide an after-hours message in, at a minimum, Englishand
Spanish during any hours the Call Center is closed. The after-hours
message must:

(1) Explain how to access alternative transportation arrangements,
in a manner that does not require Member to place asecond
call; and,

(2) Offerthe caller the opportunity to leave a message.

Delegate will provide after-hours call center service to provide transports for
after-hour hospital discharges or urgent ride requests.

Emergent Need. Providing Emergent Medical Transportation is not part of
Delegate’s obligation under this Agreement but available to CCO Members.
Delegate shall have procedures for referring Members requesting Emergent
Medical Transportation to 911 Emergency Services.

Medicare Supplemental Transportation Benefit. Delegate shall have processes
and procedures in compliance with the Brokerage Manual for the CareOregon
Advantage (“COA”) Plus Gym and Pharmacy Transportation Benefit. Said benefit
is meant to provide supplemental transportation for COA Plus members and
remove transportation barriers in order to access eligible gyms and pharmacies.

Delegate will ensure timely communication and collaboration with CCO and
other necessary parties for sharing NEMT request information including
knowledge concerning special needs of any particular Member and any other
programmatic material that will support a timely and safe transportation of all
Members.

Delegate will provide online portal for Members and medical providers to
schedule ride requests for Members already enrolled into NEMT services.

Delegate will provide all equipment and staff necessary for adequate operation
of the NEMT benefit, including the purchase of workstations, computers,
computer peripherals, and software (hereinafter “Equipment”). Vehicles are
excluded from the definition of Equipment and from Reimbursement under this
Agreement.

b. Communication Materials For Members.

Delegate and CCO will collaborate to develop materials to educate and outreach
EXHIBIT A—PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 8 of 56

|51



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

to Members about their options to access NEMT services. At minimum, the
partnership will collaborate to develop material to inform Members of their
rights and responsibilities for accessing the NEMT benefit. Delegate shall not
implement any changes to Member outreach and education materials without
prior approval from CCO. The information must contain:

[a] Operation hours.

[b] How to register and request a ride along with how to access mileage,
lodging, and meal reimbursements.

[c] Public transit and shared-ride options.

[d] Programmatic elements pertaining to vehicle-provided rides,
reimbursement, public transit and shared-rides information.

[e] Anindividual’s rights and responsibilities to access their benefits and
healthcare services as according to the Oregon Health Plan.

[f] Member’s right to request preferred transportation providers for
vehicle-provided rides.

[g] How to file a complaint, compliment, or appeal a denied NEMT request.

¢. Policies and Procedures.

The Delegate and CCO will develop and implement processes to deliverthe
NEMT services efficiently, and in a manner that minimizes costs while meeting
Members' needs.

Policies and Procedures will include, but are not limited to:

[a] NEMT requests, authorizations, and denials

[b] Registration and Level of Service assessments

[c] Ride Assignments, Dispatch, and Preferred Transportation Providers

[d] Mileage, lodging, and meal Reimbursement

[e] Volunteer Driver

[f] Public Transit and shared-rides

(8] Non-Emergent Ambulance authorizations and payment

[h] Grievance and Appeals

[i1 Network Management

fil Quality Improvement practices

[k] Accommodation of, on occasion, short notice and medically urgentride
requests.

4. Eligibility, Level of Service Assessments, and Dispatch

a. Eligibility.
Delegate shall verify Member’s eligibility prior to scheduling or submitting
reservation requests for NEMT services by screening and confirming:

[a] Member’s enrollment with CCO, including that the Member’s CCO
enrollment is up-to-date and that the Member’s benefit package

EXHIBIT A — PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 9 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

includes NEMT services. Delegate will confirm enrollment through
various means, including:

(1) Reviewing Eligibility Files. CCO shall provide access to Eligibility
Files. In addition, Delegate shall review electronic eligibility
information as determined by the Brokerage Manual.

(2) Accessing and utilizing the Oregon Health Authority’s Provider
Web Portal at https://or-medicaid.gov or Division of Medical
Assistance Programs (DMAP) Provider Services telephone
number (800-336-6016) to verify any client’s eligibility in CCO
enrollment or receiving services under DMAP;

(3) Contacting CCO to provide additional support in verifying
enroliment, notably when eligibility information is conflicting or
not available by other means.

[b] That the service for which NEMT Service is requested is a Covered
Service or Health-Related Service (referred to herein as “Flex Rides”) as
further defined in the CCO Contract.

ii. Delegate will not seek payment from CCO for services provided to ineligible
members unless Delegate verified member eligibility through the process above
prior to providing services, and the member is later determined to have been
ineligible.

b. Registration and Level of Service Assessments. Delegate shall assign Rides based upon
an assessment of a Member’s resources and abilities as directed infra in Sec. 4, Ex. A,
Part 2 of this Agreement. Subsequently, Delegate shall consider in its assignment: cost;
appropriate equipment; any factors related to transportation provider capabilities,
transportation provider availability, and transportation provider past performance; and
any other reasonable factors as deemed appropriate.

i. Delegate is responsible for assessing a Member’s resources and abilities to find
the most appropriate ride type available that is cost efficient. This assessment
will occur at the registration of the first-time request of a new Member
accessing their NEMT benefit. Delegate will include, in its assessment of a
member, any additional special needs including, but not limited to whetherthe
Member:

[a] Will be accompanied by an attendant, including those permitted under
OAR 410-141-3935, and if so, whether the Member requires assistance
and whether the attendant meets the requirements for an attendant;

[b] Is under the age of twelve (12) and will be accompanied by anadul;

[c] Has any special conditions or needs, not known by CCO, and modify, as
may be required, the NEMT Services in accordance with OAR410-141-
3950.

[d] Based on approval of previous NEMT services, Delegate shalldisplay
Members’ permanent and temporary special needs, appropriate mode

EXHIBIT A — PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 10 of 56

| 39



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

of transportation, and any other information necessary to ensure that
appropriate transportation is approved and provided.

ii. CCO will provide additional supporting information to determine a Member's
physical and mental health abilities in order to assist Delegate in determining
the most appropriate ride type available that is cost efficient.

iii. CCO will provide any known updates in health status that would qualify Member
for any higher level of transport type that Member is unable to report
themselves. Delegate will request information from CCO verifying any reported
significant health status change that would qualify Member for any higher level
of transport type that Member is unable to report themselves or medical
necessity of a previously lower level of service already authorized.

iv. Delegate shall maintain records reporting the reasons for Ride assignments.
c. Scheduling, Ride Assignment & Dispatch. Delegate will:

i. Permit a Member or a Member’s Representative to make a request for NEMT
services on behalf of that Member. For purposes of this Para. ¢, Sub. Para. .,
Sec. 4, Ex. A, Part 2, Representatives include the Member's Community Health
Worker, foster parent, adoptive parent, or other Provider delegated with this
authority.

ii. Approve and schedule or deny a request for NEMT Services (including all legs of
the trip) within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving the request. This timeframe
shall be reduced as necessary to ensure the Member arrives in time forsuch
Member’s appointment. In so doing, Delegate shall:

[a] Make every reasonable effort to arrange rides including with same day
notice.

[b] Schedule ongoing Member appointments for a minimum of one month
and accept multiple ride requests at one time for a Member.

[c] Allow Members or their Representatives to schedule NEMT services up
to ninety (90) days in advance.

iii. Notify Members requesting NEMT Services of approval or denial, in full orin
part, of the request by adhering to the following:

[a] If NEMT service is approved, this notification shall include information
about the transportation arrangements and logistics of a vehicle-
provided ride as further elucidated in the CCO Contract.

(b] Delegate will make every attempt to notify Member of the
determination including, when appropriate, details of the
transportation arrangements prior to the date of the NEMT service.

EXHIBIT A — PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 11 of 56

|40



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

(1) Delegate shall provide this notification to a Member within
twenty-four (24) hours of receiving the request and, when
possible, whichever comes sooner:

(i.) During the phone call requesting the NEMT Service;or,
(ii.) As soon as the transportation arrangements are in place
and prior to the date of the NEMT Service.

(2) Otherwise, if NEMT Request requires CCO review priorto
approval at the time of request, Delegate shall obtain the
Member’s preferred method of communication (e.g., phone
call, email, fax) and preferred time of contact.

[c] Delegate will document all notifications, including all attempts to notify
Member.

[d] If NEMT Service is denied, denial and timeliness of notification must be
in accordance with OAR 410-141-3835 through 410-141-3915,410-141-
3920(6), and OAR 410-141-3950(2).

iv. Schedule a single transport with an alternate subcontractor or volunteer if the
subcontractor or volunteer originally authorized to provide the transport is
unable to provide the transport.

5. Program Components.
a. Mileage Reimbursement.

i. The Delegate will offer a mileage, lodging, and meal reimbursement programfor
Members. Mileage reimbursement is offered when Member or a friend orfamily
member has a vehicle but may not have the means to afford to get totheir
medical appointments. Lodging and meal reimbursement programs are offered
primarily for travel to out-of-area or state medical providers that are far enough
to require an overnight stay.

ii. The Delegate will determine and administer the most appropriate method of
reimbursement program to Members as they see fit.

iii. The Delegate and CCO will develop a program guide to describe how Member
may qualify for and access the reimbursement program.

b. Volunteer Drivers.

i. The Oregon Department of Human Services (DHS) trains and manages a corps of
volunteers. DHS supervises and assumes all liability for each volunteer provided
by law. OAR 410-136-3020(17).

ii. Delegate may utilize DHS volunteers to provide medical transportation.
Delegate is not required to use DHS volunteers in the provision of any Serviceto

EXHIBIT A—PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 12 of 56



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE9S6

iii.

Members under this agreement. OAR 410-136-3020(17).

If Delegate decides to utilize DHS volunteers as drivers, Delegate will provide
such volunteer(s) with any equipment necessary to provide rides for CCO
Members.

Under ORS 409.360, in the performance of Services under this Agreement, OHA
Volunteers are agents of the State and not Agents of CCO or Delegate inthe
performance of activities on behalf of and under the direction of OHA, and as
such shall have the benefit of, and be subject to, the Oregon Tort Claims Act
(OTCA) unless otherwise disqualified under the OTCA. Delegate will make every
reasonable effort to:

[a] Promptly report any claim or occurrence of which Delegate has actual
knowledge that could give rise to a claim in writing to Risk Management
Division, 1225 Ferry Street SE, U150, Salem, Oregon 97301 (orany
subsequent address of such division) and to CCO; and,

[b] Cooperate fully in the investigation and defense conducted by the State
of any claim covered by the OTCA and otherwise comply in all respects
with the OTCA. If Delegate offers dispatch services for OHA volunteer
drivers, Delegate, at its option may utilize OHA volunteers and OHA
assumes all liability for each OHA volunteer as provided by law.

c. Non-Emergent Ambulance Transports

Delegate will authorize and coordinate Non-Emergent Ambulance Transports on
behalf of CCO. Delegate will assist ambulance providers in completing
authorization form that authorizes amount of payment based on ride type and
level of medical monitoring needs. Delegate will provide payment based onthe
authorization form and approved cost in accordance with the Brokerage
Manual.

Delegate will assist ambulance providers by providing education on relevant
policies and procedures.

6. Utilization Management (“UM”).

a. Outlined Activities.

The Delegate will be provided the authority to make decisions to provide rides
based on Member Eligibility and verification that the ride is to a Covered
Service, as described supra in Section 4. of Ex. A, Part 2 to this Agreement, as
part of UM activities prior to the evaluation of medical necessity under the
provisions of Covered Services and Member Eligibility.

CCO will provide UM review activities for urgent or same day ride requests, out-

EXHIBIT A—PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 13 of 56

4L



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

of-area, out-of-state, higher level of service based on medical necessity, and any
requested information from Delegate that might require clinical review for
medical necessity, along with any ad-hoc requests.

Delegate will perform appointment verifications to check on Member
attendance for continuing service requests by contacting the medical provider
or volunteer of the Covered Services on a minimum of five percent (5%) of all
rides provided under this Agreement prior to the ride to ensure the Memberis
being transported to a Covered Service.

[a] CCO, Delegate, and any other appropriate party will collaborate on

operational implementation of appointment verification.

[b] At a minimum, all same-day and/or urgent requests should be verified

at time of request.

[c] Mileage Reimbursement will require Member submissions to verify

appointment attendance.

b. Prior-Authorization Requirements. Delegate shall follow CCO’s procedures forinitial
and continuing authorizations for services provided that such authorizations does not
violate any Applicable Law, regulation, or contractual obligation within the CCO
Contract. In addition, Delegate must obtain authorization for Covered Services from
CCO, except to the extent prior authorization is not required under applicable rules,
regulations, or elsewhere in the CCO Contract.

Out-of-area. Delegate will utilize CCO clinical network systems to verify if
services are available within CCQO’s Service Area.

Out-of-state.

[a] Delegate will request medical prior-authorization from CCO prior to

approving out-of-state NEMT service(s). CCO requires that any out-of-
state service(s) that surpasses OAR 410-141-3930 service area
parameters shall require an evaluation for medical necessity and a
verification that no medical providers located inside the state of Oregon
can provide said service(s).

[b] Delegate shall arrange for and purchase commercial airline tickets (or

most appropriate mode of transportation) in accordance with OHA
guidelines for qualifying out-of-state travel approved by CCO for medical
necessity and any necessary ground travel to and from an airport or
other departure location within Oregon. Delegate may utilize any
procurement method and criteria to purchase airline tickets anany
necessary travel to and from an airport or other departure location
within Oregon, subject to the only requirement to use the least
expensive mode of transportation that meets the non-emergent medical
needs of the Member.

EXHIBIT A—PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK

Page 14 of 56

45



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

[c] Delegate shall provide the reimbursement options to Members fortheir
out-of-state meals, mileage, and lodging expenses in accordance with
OAR 410-141-3960 and shall not seek additional reimbursements for
these costs from CCO outside of the Payment Provisions in Exhibit A,
Part 3 of this Agreement.

c. Denials. For purposes of this Section 6 of Exhibit A, Part 2 to this Agreement, Delegate
will provide appropriate denial of individual NEMT Service requests.

i. The Delegate will establish an immediate secondary review process by an
employee other than the initial screener prior to the denial of any ride.

il.  Within seventy-two (72) hours of denying a ride, Delegate will send a letter to
the Member, with a copy to CCO, explaining why the Member’s ride has been
denied.

iii. CCO will provide Delegate with regulatory template and guidance for
appropriate denial reasons and compliance procedures.

iv.  Consistent with 42 CFR 431.231, Delegate will reinstate denied NEMTservices
under certain circumstances.

7. Grievance and Appeals.

a. Subject to CCO's reservation of authority over final adjudication of grievances and
appeals and subject to CCO's oversight activities, Delegate shall develop and implement
a Grievance System with CCO supported with written procedures under which CCO
Members or Providers acting on their own behalf may thallenge any Action that
includes a Grievance process, Appeals process, and explains access to and the process of
Contested Case Hearings.

b. As applicable, the shared Grievance System shall meet the requirements of the CCO
Contract to the extent such requirements are applicable, OAR 410-141-3875 through
410-141-3915, 42 CFR 438.400 through 438.424, and any other applicable provisions of
this Agreement.

€. CCO will provide training and technical assistance to support Delegate's responsibility to
develop and implement a Grievance System and produce a policy and procedure. CCO
will support development of documentation for Grievance and Appeals Member
communication.

d. Delegate will determine protocols for receiving expressions of dissatisfaction, concerns,
problems, or issues from Members, Member Representatives and/or network providers
about NEMT services and attempt to resolve those complaints in a timely manner.

e. CCO will be responsible for accepting and processing Member appeals for any NEMT
Actions issued; CCO will develop procedures and communicate to Delegate about
appeals that may require investigation and, when appropriate, Delegate and CCO agree
to collaborate to resolve and process individual appeals.

EXHIBIT A —PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 15 of 56

|44



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

Delegate shall provide to all transportation network subcontractors, at the timethey
enter into a subcontract, the following procedure and timeframes for Member rights to
Grievance, Appeal, and Contested Case Hearings:

i. How to file grievances and appeals and the requirements and timeframes
associated with such filings; the toll-free numbers to file oral Grievancesand
Appeals;

ii. The Members’ rights to a Contested Case Hearing including how to obtain a
hearing and rules regarding a Member’s representation at said hearing;

iii. Members' rights to request continuation of benefits during an appeal or
Contested Case Hearing along with information that if Delegate’s Action is
upheld in a Contested Case Hearing, the Member may be liable for the cost of
any continued benefits; and,

iv.  Any state-determined provider appeal rights to challenge the failure of the
organization to cover a service.

On a quarterly basis, Delegate shall document all Grievances and Appeals using the
approved state grievance log sheet. Delegate shall submit each prepared Grievance Log
Sheet accompanied with the quarterly Grievance and Analysis Report to CCO no later
than thirty (30) days following the end of each calendar quarter. Delegate shall monitor
the Grievance Log Sheets on a monthly basis for completeness and accuracy. Ona
quarterly basis, or upon request, Delegate shall submit to CCO a number of copies ofthe
Notice of Actions that Delegate has sent to Members for submission to the State with
the quarterly report.

8. Provider and Delivery System.

a.

Delegate is solely responsible for subcontracting any vehicle and driver services needed
to support the CCO NEMT benefit.

Delegate must follow Vehicle Equipment and Subcontractor Standards found in OAR
410-136-3040.

Delegate will be responsible for disseminating information and regulations that pertain
to Member rights and responsibilities, vehicle and driver safety standards, and Covered
Services to subcontractors at time of onboarding.

CCO will support Delegate oversight activities for provider and delivery systemupon
request.

Delegate shall be responsible for consistent and regular communication and data
sharing with CCO related to achieving performance metrics, regulatory requirements
regarding grievances, and operations related to direct delivery of services.

EXHIBIT A—PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 16 of 56

|45



DocuSign Envelope {D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYG

9. Quality and Performance Outcomes and Requirements.

a. Member Satisfaction Surveys. CCO and Delegate will jointly develop and periodically
administer a Member satisfaction survey; the results of which will be used toidentify
potential operation deficiencies and opportunities for program improvements within
the transportation programs.

b. General Reporting.

i Unless otherwise exempt pursuant to subsection (iii) of this section, Delegate
shall timely provide to CCO such call center data and recordings as CCO may

reasonably require from time-to-time as necessary to prepare reports necessary

to fulfill CCO’s reporting obligations pursuant to the CCO Contract; including
without limitation, Delegate shall submit to CCO no later than the 30 day of
the following month, document the number of services for NEMT Services,
modes of transportation being used, and operating costs of the NEMT program.

ii. Delegate will provide CCO with audit reports for all NEMT requests, provided
and denied services using the agreed upon detailed transportation billing codes,
no later than the 15th day of the following quarter, or upon CCO's request.

ii. Where Delegate has granted CCO such access to Delegate’s call center and
NEMT services systems so as to enable CCO to generate the reports required by
subsections (i) and (ii), Delegate will he exempt from these reporting
requirements.

¢. External Quality Review.

i. CCO will perform quality improvement activities that review individual and
aggregate performance of Delegate in delivery of Covered Services. Review may
include but is not limited to:

[a] Whether services are or were appropriate, cost effective, and in
compliance with standards for timeliness and accessibility;

[b] Member grievances and appeals and the evaluation of Member
satisfaction with the transportation provided.

ii. Quality Improvement. In conformance with 42 CFR § 438, Subpart E, Delegate
shall, and shali require its subcontractors and Participating Providers to,
cooperate with CCO, its Affiliates, and OHA by providing access to records and
facilities for the purpose of an annual, external, independent professional
review of the quality outcomes and timeliness of, and access to, Covered
Services furnished under this Agreement, pursuant to Section 8. of Exhibit B,
Part 10 of the CCO Contract.

EXHIBIT A - PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 17 of 56

Bl



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBES6

e.

iii. Member Satisfaction Surveys. CCO and Delegate will jointly develop and
periodically administer a Member satisfaction survey; the results of which will
be used to identify potential operation deficiencies and opportunities for
program improvements within the transportation programs.

Performance Metrics. If desired, CCO and Delegate will work in partnership to define
any additional performance metrics that are relevant to provision of services and
operation of the NEMT benefit. Such additional performance metrics may be
implemented if mutually agreed upon by CCO and Delegate.

Monitoring and Compliance Review.

i. Delegation Oversight. As a delegate under the CCO Contract, Delegate agreesto
participate in CCO’s required monitoring and delegation oversight activities as
listed in Exhibit B, Part 4, Section 11 of the CCO Contract, including butnot
limited to:

[a] Ongoing oversight and monitoring of Delegate’s compliance with the
terms of this Agreement.

[b] At least once per year, cooperating with CCO to produce aformal
review of Delegate’s performance under this Agreement, referred to as
the “Annual Subcontractor Performance Report” in the CCO Contract.
The Annual Subcontractor Performance Report will include, at a
minimum, the following:

(1) An assessment of the quality of Delegate’s performance or
contracted Work;

{2) Any complaints or Grievances filed in relation to Delegate’s
Work;

(3) Any late submission of reporting deliverables orincomplete
data;

(4) Whether employees of the Delegate are screened and
monitored for federal exclusion from participating in
Medicaid;

(5) The adequacy of Delegate’s compliance functions including
all Fraud, Waste, and Abuse policies and procedures
required in Exhibit B, Part 9, Section 11-18 of the CCO
Contract and set forth infra, Section 10 of this Exhibit A,

Part 2.

(6) Any deficiencies that have been identified by OHA related to

work performed by Delegate.

ii. Upon identification in writing by CCO, OHA, or their respective designees of
issues with Delegate’s performance, including indications that quality, access, or
expenditure management goals are being compromised, that Member rights or
health are being negatively affected, or any other notable deficiencies or

EXHIBIT A - PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 18 of 56



DocusSign Envelope [D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

material breach(s) of this Agreement, Delegate shall cooperate with CCOin
developing and implementing, within thirty (30) days, a written Corrective
Action Plan to remediate the identified issue(s) and establish service

improvements.

[a] Such remediation could include additional analysis of underlying data
and gathering supplementary data to identify causes and trends,
followed closely by interventions that are targeted to improve
outcomes in the problem areas defined.

[b] If the interventions undertaken in execution of this section do not result
in improved performance in identified areas of concern within ninety
(90) days, subsequent actions may include terminating Agreement with

Delegate.

iii. The actions in this section are in addition to any other rights CCO may have
under the Agreement, at law, or in equity.

EXHIBIT A - PART 2 STATEMENT OF WORK
Page 19 of 56

L8



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

EXHIBIT A—-PART 3
PAYMENT AND
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Where applicable to each section herein, Ex. A, Part 3, Delegate shall follow and use Statutory
Accounting Principles in the preparation of all financial statements and reports filed with CCO,
unless CCO policies and procedures or written reporting instructions allow otherwise.

Delegate shall maintain sound financial management procedures and demonstrate to CCO
through proof of financial responsibility that it is able to perform the work required under this
Agreement efficiently, effectively and economically while also complying with all other
requirements specified by this Agreement.

Delegate shall cooperate with CCO to submit any information necessary for CCO to complete the
reporting required under Exhibit L of the CCO Contract including but not limited to annual,
quarterly, and audited financial statements as needed.

1. Compensation

a. No later than the 15" day of each month, CCO will advance Delegate a base
payment of $10.89 per member per month (“PMPM” or “Payment”) for total CCO
membership per the monthly 820 report from OHA.

b. Payment Contingent on CCO Receiving Payment. Under Exhibit B, Part 4, Section
11(d) of the CCO Contract, Delegate understands and agrees that if CCO is not
paid or not eligible for payment by OHA for services provided because the
applicable CCO is not paid, Delegate will not be paid or be eligible for payment by
OHA.

c.  Payment Process for Flex Rides. No later than forty-five (45) days after the end of
each month, Delegate will prepare and present to CCO a separate invoice
reflecting Flex Ride costs. CCO will review and reimburse Delegate for any Flex
Ride costs within thirty (30) days ofsaid Flex Ride invoicing and reporting.

d. Payment Process for Medicare Supplemental Transportation Rides. No later than
forty-five (45) days after the end of each month, Delegate will prepare and present
to CCO aseparate invoice reflecting Medicare Ride costs. CCO will review and
reimburse Delegate forany Medicare Ride costs within thirty (30) days of said
Medicare Ride invoicing and reporting.

e. Delegate shall, in good faith, prepare and timely submit all invoices, reports, or
other necessary information required for CCO to process payment.

EXHIBIT A—PART 3 PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING
Page 20 of 56

|44



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

2. Revenue Approach.

a. Reconciliation process. No later than thirty (30) days after the end of each

quarter, Delegate will send CCO the revenue and expenditure reports for the
quarter to CCO for review. The parties will review the records and settle any
payments within thirty (30) days afterinitial receipt of reports. Flex Ride and
Medicare Supplemental Transportation Ride reimbursements will not be
subject to this reconciliation process.

b. Risk corridor. The parties agree that in the event Delegate’s revenues exceed its
expenses, Delegate will retain fifty percent (50%) of the amount of the PMPM
advance received from CCO in the quarter that revenue exceeds expenses and
CCOwill retain the other fifty percent (50%). This additional revenue shall be
usedto help build Delegate’s reserve account. CCO will be liable for 100% of
losses incurred and Delegate will not be liable for any losses. Delegate shall
workin good faith toward achieving and remaining in a net gain position.

3. Financial Administration.

Delegate will establish and maintain a separate NEMT bank account to pay forall
expenses incurred for CCO Members and to hold reserves. The reserve account is
intended to fund quarterly true-up if needed and to build reserves for future NEMTrisk
and gain participation by Delegate.

CCO agrees to maintain its own reserve fund at levels sufficient to cover standard ride
costs, and shall not use reserve funds to pay for Flex Rides should the reserve amount
drop below $250,000.

On a quarterly basis, CCO and Delegate will assess the financial impact of the risk
sharing agreement and reserve amount to ensure the terms of this agreementare
sufficient.

4. CCO and Delegate will review this compensation agreement to renegotiate any of the above
described details based on the below.

a.

Both parties recognize that the rates discussed herein are subject to fluctuations in cost
that are out of their control including, but not limited to, OHA rate changes, gas rate
fluctuations, and CCO membership increase or decrease. CCO and Delegate agreeto
renegotiate the PMPM when necessitated by such factors. These rate negotiations will
be built into the partnership on a regular basis to ensure responsiveness to such
fluctuations. Both parties value the principle of managing NEMT at sustainable rates.

On a quarterly basis and more frequently as needed, CCO and Delegate will assess the
financial impact of the risk sharing agreement and reserve amount to ensure theterms
of this agreement are sufficient.

EXHIBIT A—PART 3 PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING
Page 21 of 56

150



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

Records and Encounter Data.

a. Records. Delegate shall maintain documentation of NEMT Services provided to CCO
Members (“Encounter Data”). This documentation shall include at least the following:

Name of Member or person requesting the ride or service on behalf of the
Member (both if different);

Member’s DMAP ID number;

Date and time of original request;

iv. Date and time of requested transportation OHP Covered Service;
v. Type of transportation authorized for Member;
vi. Pick up location;

vii. Destination;

viii. Covered Service, or type of Covered Service, Member is being transported to;
ix. Availability of other transportation resources to Member;
x. Approval or denial of transport and level of transportauthorized;
xi. Reason for denying transportation to a Member;

xii. - Justification of type of transportation authorized (if appropriate);

Person approving/denying request;

Xiv. Subcontractor assigned;

xv. Date and time subcontractor notified.

Xiii.

b. Claims processing. Delegate shall submit to CCO claims in such form, and containing
such information and supporting documentation, as is specified by CCO Policies and
Procedures. Delegate shall submit claims to CCO no later than 120 days afterthe
Covered Service is provided. Provider shall submit claims to CCO no less frequently than
once a month. Delegate, by submitting each claim thereby, certifies that all claims,
submissions and/or information Delegate submits to CCO hereunder is and shall betrue,
accurate, and complete. Delegate acknowledges that Payment shall be from federaland
state funds, and therefore any falsification or concealment of material fact by Delegate
may be prosecuted under federal and state laws. All billing and Payments will be
processed pursuant to the provisions in this section, and the claims submissions will be
considered encounter data and no payment associated with those claims.

¢. Encounter Data. Delegate shall submit all Encounter Data to CCO electronically.
Delegate must submit all data in an 837 HIPAA compliant format and as set forthin
HIPAA's Implementation Guides, DHS' 837 Companion Guides and system
specifications supplied by DHS. The Encounter Data must constitute the minimum data
elements required for DHS processing. DHS requires an 837P format and the following
minimum data elements for DHS processing of encounters:

i. Delegate to report NPl and Provider Taxonomy Code, as applicable, must be
used pursuant to 45 CFR 162.410 and 162.412;
ii. 1CD-10-CM diagnosis code authorized for transportation purposes;

EXHIBIT A—PART 3 PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Page 22 of 56

53l



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

Vi,
Vii.

viii.

Date(s) of Service;

Modifier(s);

Procedure code(s) (e.g., CPT, HCPC) (if applicable);

Quantity of units of service;

Amount paid by Delegate to Subcontractor pursuant to OAR 410-120-1295for
non-participating providers or the rate so deemed agreeable between
subcontracted provider and Delegate;

Any third-party liability payments including Medicare.

6. Risk of Insolvency

a. Delegate assures that it is able to perform the Work required under this Agreement
efficiently, effectively and economically and is able to comply with the requirements of
this Agreement. As part of the proof of financial responsibility, Delegate shall provide
assurances satisfactory to CCO, that Delegate’s provision(s) against the risk of insolvency
are adequate to ensure that Members will not be liable for Delegate’s debts if Delegate
becomes insolvent.

b. Delegate shall provide solvency protection through maintenance of a restricted reserve
account, or other means approved by CCO.

Funds held in the restricted reserves, if any, shall be made available to CCOfor
the purpose of making payments to providers in the event of Delegate’s
insolvency. Insolvency occurs when Delegate is unable to pay debts when due,
even if assets exceed liabilities.

If any of the information that forms the basis for determining the manneror
amount of a restricted reserve account is eliminated, changed, or modifiedin
any manner, Delegate shall immediately notify CCO.

Failure to maintain adequate financial solvency, including solvency protections
specified pursuant to the requirements of this Agreement shall be groundsfor
termination under this Agreement at CCO’s sole discretion.

¢. Inthe event that insolvency occurs, Delegate remains responsible for providing covered
services for Clients through the end of the period for which it has been paid.

EXHIBIT A—PART 3 PAYMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Page 23 of 56

152



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE96

EXHIBIT A - PART 4

INSURANCE

Required Insurance: Delegate shall obtain at Delegate’s expense the insurance specified in this
Exhibit A, Part 4 prior to performing under this Agreement and shall maintain it in full force and at its
ownexpense throughout the duration of this Agreement and all warranty periods. Delegate shall
obtain the following insurance from insurance companies or entities that are authorized to transact
the business ofinsurance and issue coverage in State and that are acceptable to CCO. The
requirements of this section aresubject to the limits of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 et
seq.) to the extent it applies to each ofthe parties.

1.

Workers Compensation: All employers, including Delegate, who work under this
Agreement in the state of Oregon, shall comply with ORS 656.017 and providethe
required Workers’ Compensation insurance coverage, unless such employers are exempt
under ORS 656.126. Delegate shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors
complies with these requirements.

Commercial General Liability: Delegate shall obtain, at Delegate’s expense, and keep in
effect during the term of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance covering
bodilyinjury, death and property damage in a form and with coverages that are
satisfactory to the CCO. This insurance shall include personal and advertising injury
liability, products and completed operations, data disclosure liability, and contractual
liability coverage for the indemnity provided under this Agreement. Coverage shall be
written on an occurrence basis in an amount notless than $1,000,000 per occurrence.
Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $3,000,000.

Automobile Liability Insurance: Delegate shall obtain, at Delegate’s expense, and
keep in effect during the term of this Agreement, Automobile Liability Insurance
covering Delegate’s business use, including coverage for all owned, non-owned, or
hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the Commercial
General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for “Commercial General Liability”
and “Automobile Liability”). Delegate shall provide proof of insurance of not less
than the following amounts: Per occurrence limit for any single claimant, $1,000,000
for bodily injury and property damage. Per occurrence limit for multiple claimants,
$3,000,000 for bodily injury and property damage.

Network Security and Privacy Liability: Delegate shall provide network security and privacy
liability insurance for the duration of the Agreement and for the period of time in which
Delegate (or its Business Associates or subcontractor(s)) maintains, possesses, stores or has
access to CCO or Member data, whichever is longer, with a combined single limit per claim or
incident of no less than $100,000 that corresponds to Delegate’s average monthly Member
Enrollment. This insurance shall include coverage for third party claims and for losses, thefts,
unauthorized disclosures, access or use of CCO or Member data (which may include, but is
not limited to, Personally identifiable Information (“PlI”), Payment Card Data and Protected
Health Information (“PHI”)) in any format, including coverage for accidental loss, theft,
unauthorized disclosure access or use of CCO data.

EXHIBIT A - PART 4 INSURANCE

Page 24 of 56

D3



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

10.

Additional Insured. The Commercial General Liability insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance required under this Agreement shall include the CCO, its officers, employees and
agents as Additional Insureds but only with respect to Delegate's activities to be performed
under this Agreement. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other
insurance and self-insurance.

Notice of Cancellation or Change. Delegate will provide CCO with notice of any
cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits or non-renewal of
insurance coverage(s) with as much advance written notice as possible. Any failure to
comply with the reporting provisions of this clause shall constitute a material breach of
Agreement and shallbe grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement by CCO.

Proof of Insurance. Delegate shall provide to CCO information requested for all required
insurance before performing any services required under this Agreement. Delegate shall
payfor all deductibles, self-insured retention and self-insurance, if any.

Notice of Claims Involving Members. Delegate shall promptly notify CCO of any legal claim
or demand involving any Member based on alleged negligence of Delegate or its
subcontractors in the delivery of services pursuant to this Agreement. Delegate shall notify
CCO of anysettlement or judgment related to such a claim or demand within ten (10} days
following execution orfiling thereof.

Insurance Requirements for Subcontractors. In the event Delegate subcontracts any of the
work under this Agreement, Delegate shall require that its subcontractors obtain, and
provide proof of insurance in the types and amounts specified herein. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Delegate may elect in its sole discretion to allow its subcontractors to provide
automobile insurance and general comprehensive insurance in a minimum amount of S1
million dollars on the condition that Delegate’s hired and non-owned automobile insurance
policy acts as excess coverage.

Limit Adjustments. CCO reserves the right to propose an increase or decrease to limits as
appropriate, necessitated by business needs or regulatory requirements, as agreed on by
both parties in writing.

EXHIBIT A - PART 4 INSURANCE
Page 25 of 56

| H4



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

EXHIBIT B

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construedin
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any
claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim”) between CCO and Delegate or any other entity
whereby the Claim implicates CCO and respectively Delegate that arises from or relates to this
Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion
County or Multnomah County for the State of Oregon; provided, however, if a Claim must be brought
in or is removed to a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively
within the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. Delegate agrees that a suit brought
bythe State of Oregon can be in the jurisdiction of any court and it is entitled to any form of defense
toor immunity from any Claim whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity
based onthe Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise. This
Section shallsurvive expiration or termination of this Agreement. DELEGATE, BY EXECUTION OF THIS
AGREEMENT, HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONAM [URISDICTION OF SAID COURTS.

2. Compliance with Law.

a. Delegate shall comply and cause all subcontractors to comply with all federal, state andlocal
laws, regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to this Agreement or to the
performance of Work as they may be adopted, amended, or repealed from time totime,
including but not limited to the following: (i) ORS 659A.142; (i) OHA rules pertaining tothe
provision of integrated and coordinated care and services, OAR Chapter 410, Division141;
(i) all other OHA Rules in OAR Chapter 410; (iv) rules in OAR Chapter 309, Divisions 012,
014, 015, 018, 019, 022, 032 and 040, pertaining to the provisions of Behavioral Health
services; (v) rules in OAR Chapter 415 pertaining to the provision of Substance Use Disorders
services; (vi) state law establishing requirements for Declaration for Mental Health
Treatment in ORS 127.700 through 127.737; and (vii) all other applicable requirements of
State civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. These laws, regulations,
executive orders and ordinances are incorporated by reference herein to the extent that
they are applicable to this Agreement and required by law to be so incorporated. OHA’s
performance under the CCO Contract and where applicable under this Agreement is
conditioned upon Delegate’s compliance with the provisions of ORS 279B.220, ORS
279B.225, 279B.230, 279B.235 and 279B.270, which are incorporated by reference herein.
Delegate shall, to the maximum extent economically feasible in the performance ofthis
Agreement, use recycled paper (as defined in ORS 279A.010(1)(gg)), recycled PETE products
(as defined in ORS 279A.010(1)(hh)), and other recycled products (as "recycled product™is
defined in ORS 279A.010(1)(ii)). This Section shall survive expiration or termination ofthis
Agreement.

b. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any written material that is
generated and provided by Delegate under this Agreement to Clients or Members, including

EXHIBIT B
Page 26 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

Medicaid-Eligible Individuals, shall, at the request of such Clients or Members, be
reproduced in alternate formats of communication, to include Braille, large print, audiotape,
oral presentation, and electronic format. Delegate shall not be reimbursed for costsincurred
in complying with this provision. Delegate shall cause all subcontractors under this
Agreement to comply with the requirements of this provision.

Delegate shall comply with the federal laws as set forth or incorporated, or both, inthis
Agreement and all other federal laws applicable to Delegate’s performance under this
Agreement as they may be adopted, amended or repealed from time to time.

3. Independent Delegate. Delegate shall perform all Work as an Independent Contractor.

a.

Delegate is not an officer, employee, or agent of CCO or its affiliates or of the State of
Oregon as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or otherwise.

If Delegate is currently performing work for the State of Oregon or the federal government,
Delegate by signature to this Agreement, represents and warrants that Delegate’s Workto
be performed under this Agreement creates no potential or actual conflict of interest as
defined by ORS Chapter 244 and that no statutes, rules or regulations of the State of Oregon
or federal agency for which Delegate currently performs work would prohibit Delegate’s
Work under this Agreement. If compensation under this Agreement is to be charged against
federal funds, Delegate certifies that it is not currently employed by the federal
government.

Delegate is responsible for all federal and State taxes applicable to compensation paidto
Delegate under this Agreement and, unless Delegate is subject to backup withholding, CCO
will not withhold from such compensation any amounts to cover Delegate’s federal or State
tax obligations. Delegate is not eligible for any social security, unemployment insurance or
workers’ compensation benefits from compensation paid to Delegate under this Agreement,
except as a self-employed individual.

CCO reserves the right (i) to determine and modify the delivery schedule for the Workand
(i) evaluate the quality of the Work Product; however, CCO may not and will not controlthe
means or manner of Delegate’s performance. Delegate is responsible for determiningthe
appropriate means and manner of performing the Work.

4. Representations and Warranties.

a.

Delegate's Representations and Warranties. Delegate represents and warrants to CCO
that:

(1) Delegate has the power and authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement;

(2) This Agreement, when executed and delivered, shall be a valid and binding
obligation of Delegate enforceable in accordance with its terms;

EXHIBIT B
Page 27 of 56

1Dlo



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

(3) Delegate has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of
its industry, trade or profession and Delegate will apply that skill and knowledge
with care and diligence to perform the Work in a professional manner and in
accordance with standards prevalent in Delegate's industry, trade or profession;

(4) Delegate shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, be qualified,
professionally competent, and duly licensed to perform the Work; and

(5) Delegate prepared its proposal related to this Agreement, if any, independently
from all other proposers, and without collusion, fraud, or other dishonesty.

b. Warranties Cumulative. The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and
not in lieu of, any other warranties provided.

5. Time is of the Essence. Delegate agrees that time is of the essence under this Agreement.

6. Recovery of Overpayments. If billings under this Agreement result in payments to Delegate to which
Delegate is not entitled, CCO, after giving written notification to Delegate, may withhold from
payments due to Delegate such amounts as are necessary to recover the amount of the
overpayment unless Delegate provides a written objection within 14 calendar days from the date of
the notice. If Delegate provides a timely written objection to CCO’s withholding of such payments,
the parties agree to confer in good faith regarding the nature and amount of the overpayment in
dispute and themanner in which the overpayment is to be repaid. CCO reserves its right to pursue
any or all of theremedies available to it under this Agreement and at law or in equity including CCO’s
right to setoff. Delegate acknowledges that all payments made under this Agreement are subject to
Medicaid Program Integrity rules regarding overpayments.

7. Indemnity.

Delegate shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify CCO and its officers, directors,
employees and agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, liabilities,
costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever, including attorney’s fees, resulting from, arising
out of, or relating to the activities of Delegate or its officers, directors, employees,
subcontractors, or agents under this Agreement. This section shall survive expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

CCO shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify Delegate and its officers, directors,
employees and agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, liabilities,
costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever, including attorney's fees, resulting from, arising
out of, or relating to the activities of CCO or its officers, directors, employees, subcontractors, or
agents under this Agreement. This section shall survive expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

This indemnity extended under this section is subject to the limits of the Oregon Tort Claims Act
to the extent it applies to each of the parties.

8. Default; Remedies; Termination.
{1) Default by Delegate. Delegate shall be in default under this Agreement if; Delegate
institutes or has instituted against it insolvency, receivership or bankruptcy proceedings,
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or ceases doingbusiness on a regular
EXHIBIT B
Page 28 of 56

157



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

basis.

(2) Delegate no longer holds a license or certificate that is required for Delegate to
perform its obligations under the Agreement.

(3) Delegate commits any material breach or default of any covenant, warranty,
obligation or agreement under this Agreement, fails to perform the Work under this
Agreement within the time specified herein or any extension thereof, or so failsto
pursue the Work as to endanger Delegate’s performance under this Agreementin
accordance with its terms, and such breach, default or failure is not cured within 30
calendar days after CCO’s written notice, or such longer period as CCO may specifyin
such notice.

(4) Delegate knowingly has a director, officer, partner or person with beneficial ownership
interest in their business or has an employment, consulting or other subcontractor
agreement for the provision of items and services that are significantand material to
Delegate’s obligations under this Agreement, concerning whom: (i) any license or certificate
required by law or regulation to be held by Delegate or subcontractor to provide services
required by this Agreement is for any reason denied, revoked or not renewed; or (i) is
suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in procurement activities
under the Federal Acquisition Regulation or from participating in non-procurement
activities under regulations issued pursuant to Executive Order No. 12549 or under
guidelines implementing such order; or (iii} is suspended or terminated from the Oregon
Medical Assistance Program orexcluded from participation in the Medicare program; or (iv)
is convicted of a felony or misdemeanor related to a crime or violation of Title XVIII, XIX, or
XX of the SocialSecurity Act or related laws (or entered a plea of nolo contendere); or (v) if
OHA or CCO determines that the health or welfare of Members is in jeopardy if this
Agreement continues.

b. CCO’s Remedies for Delegate’s Default. In the event Delegate is in default under the above
section, CCO may, at its option, pursue any or all of the remedies available to it underthis
Agreement and at law or in equity, including, but not limited to:

(1) Termination of this Agreement;

(2) Withholding all monies due for Work and Work Products that Delegate has failed to
deliver within any scheduled completion dates or has performed inadequately or
defectively;

(3) Initiation of an action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, or
declaratory or injunctive relief; or

(4) Exercise of its right of recovery of overpayments.

These remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and CCO
may pursue any remedy or remedies singly, collectively, successively or in any order
whatsoever. If a court determines that Delegate was not in default under this section, then
Delegate shall be entitled to the same remedies as if this Agreementwas terminated

EXHIBIT B
Page 29 of 56

5%



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE96

pursuant to the relevant terms of this Exhibit B.

c. Default by CCO. CCO shall be in default under this Agreement if CCO commits any material
breach or default of any covenant, warranty, or obligation under this Agreement, and such
breach or default is not cured within 30 calendar days after Delegate's written notice orsuch
longer period as Delegate may specify in such notice.

d. Delegate’s Remedies for CCO’s Default. In the event CCO terminates the Agreement, orin the
event OHA is in default and whether or not Delegate elects to exercise its right to terminate the
Agreement under Section 8, Subsection e. of this Exhibit B to this Agreement, Delegate's sole
monetary remedy shall be a claim for unpaid invoices and for any reimbursable expenses and
time worked within any limits set forth in this Agreement but not yet invoiced. In no event shall
CCO be liable to Delegate for any expenses related to termination of this Agreement or for
anticipated profits. If previous amounts paid to Delegate exceed the amount due to Delegate
under this Section 8.d., Delegate shall immediately pay any excess to CCO upon written demand. If
Delegate does not immediately pay the excess, CCO may recover the overpayments in accordance
with Section 6., Recovery of Overpayments, supra and may pursue any other remedy that may be
available to it.

e. Termination.
{1) CCO’s Right to Terminate

(a) Atits sole discretion, CCO may terminate this Agreement:

i. Forits convenience upon 120 days’ prior written notice by CCO to
Delegate;

ii. Immediately upon written notice if CCO fails to receive funding,
appropriations, limitations, allotments or other expenditure authority at
levels sufficient to pay for the Work or Work Products; or,

iii. Immediately upon written notice to Delegate if there is a threat to the health,
safety, or welfare of any recipient of services under this Agreement, including
any Medicaid Eligible Individual, under its care.

(b) For Cause. In addition to any other rights and remedies CCO may have under this
Agreement, CCO may terminate this Agreement for cause (i) immediately upon
written notice to Delegate or (ii) at such later date as CCO may establish in such
notice, if Delegate is in default under Section 8.a. of this Exhibit B, supra, and
Delegate fails to cure such default within thirty (30) calendar days after Delegate
receives CCO’s notice or such longer period as CCO may specify in such notice.

(2) Delegate’s Rights to Terminate:

(a) At its sole discretion, Delegate may terminate this Agreement for its
convenience upon 120 days’ prior written notice by Delegate to CCO.

EXHIBIT B

Page 30 of 56 ‘ 6 q



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFREY6

(b) For Cause. Delegate may terminate this Agreement for cause (i) upon 30days
written notice to CCO, or (ii) at such later date as Delegate may establish insuch
notice, if CCO is in default under Section 8.c. of this Exhibit B, supra, and CCOfails to
cure such default within 30 calendar days after CCO receives Delegate's notice or
such longer period as Delegate may specify in such notice.

(3) Mutual Termination. This Agreement may be terminated immediately upon mutual
written consent of the parties or at such other time as the parties may agree inthe written
consent.

(4) The party initiating the termination, under any circumstance, shall render written Legal
Notice of termination to the other party and must specify the provision ofthis Agreement
giving the right to terminate, the circumstances giving rise totermination, and the date on
which such termination is proposed to become effective {(“Termination Date”).

(5) Actions Following Termination or Expiration of Agreement.

(a) Transition Plan. After providing notice of termination for convenience or inthe
case of expiration, Delegate shall:

i Submit to CCO a Transition Plan detailing how Delegate will fulfill its
continuing obligations under this Agreement and identifying an individual (with
contact information) as Delegate’s transition coordinator. The Transition Plan is
subject to approval by CCO. Delegate shall make reasonable revisions to the
plan as requested by CCO. Failure to submit a Transition Plan and obtain
written approval of the Transition Plan by CCO may result in CCO extending the
Termination Date by the amount of time necessary in order for CCO to provide
a Transition Plan or approve the Transition Plan submitted by Delegate. The
Transition Plan shall includethe prioritization of high-needs Members for care
coordination and otherMembers requiring high level coordination.

ii.  Submit reports to CCO five (5) days before said reports are due to OHA
and every thirty (30) calendar days thereafter, or as otherwise agreed uponin
the Transition plan, detailing Delegate’s progress in carrying out the Transition
Plan. Delegate shall submit a final report to CCO describinghow Delegate has
fulfilled obligations under the Transition Plan including resolution of
outstanding responsibilities.

iii. Maintain adequate staffing to perform all functions specified in this
Agreement during the implementation and operation of the Transition Plan.

iv. Cooperate with CCO to arrange for orderly and timely transfer of
Members from coverage under this Agreement to coverage under new
arrangements authorized by CCO. Such actions of cooperation shall include but
are not limited to Delegate continuing to provide NEMT services until
appropriate NEMT services can be arranged for particular Members for which
change of Delegate could be harmful, but in no event shall Delegate be
responsible to provide NEMT services to CCO Members beyond the end of the
Transition Plan period.

EXHIBIT B
Page 31 of 56

| LeD



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

(b) Continuity of Care. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, the parties
shall cooperate in ensuring the transition of the Members’ care, and wrap-up all
duties and responsibilities. Delegate shall ensure:

i Continuation of NEMT Services to Members for any period and Covered Service
for which CCO has actually paid Compensation to Delegate, including the period
associated with the Transition Plan as particularized above.

ii. Orderly and reasonable transfer of Member care in progress atthe Termination
Date, whether or not those Members are hospitalized.

iii. Timely submission of information, records, and reports including encounter
data, required to be provided to CCO and/or OHA relating to the services
provided.

(c) Return of Property. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason
whatsoever, Delegate shall immediately deliver to CCO all of CCO’s property that
is in the possession or under the control of Delegate at that time. This clause
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

(d) Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement and when expressly directed
by CCO, Delegate shall immediately cease all activities under this Agreement.

(e) If Delegate continues to provide services to a Member after the Termination
Date and after any additional time period required for Continuity of Care and the
Transition Plan, CCO shall have no responsibility to pay for such services pursuant
to this Agreement.

(f) Delegate acknowledges and agrees that CCO is obligated to provide written
notice of the Termination of this Agreement to each CCO Member regularly
served by Delegate under this Agreement, within fifteen (15) days of such
termination.

9. Survival.

a. Allrights and obligations cease upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, exceptfor the
rights and obligations, and declarations which expressly or by their nature survive termination of
this Agreement, including without limitation the following Sections or provisions set forth below
in this Section 9, a. i-v of Exhibit B. Without limiting the forgoing or anything else in this
Agreement, in no event shall the CCO Contract expiration or termination extinguish or prejudice
OHA and/or CCO’s right to enforce the CCO Contractand/or this Agreement with respect to any
default by Delegate that has not been cured.

i. CCO Contract Exhibit A, Definitions

ii. CCO Contract General Provisions: Section V and VI

iii. CCO Contract Exhibit B, Part 10: Section 3

iv. CCO Contract Exhibit D: Sections 1, 4 through 13, 15 through 17, 19 through 30,32.

v. CCO Contract Exhibit E: Section 6, HIPAA Compliance {but excluding paragraph d)shall
survive termination for as long as Delegate holds, stores, or otherwise preserved
Individually identifiable Health Information of Members or for a longer period if required

EXHIBIT B
Page 32 of 56

| Lo



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

under the CCO Contract Section 12 of Exhibit D.

b. Special Terms and Conditions: In addition to any other provisions of this Agreement that by their
context are meant to survive expiration or termination, the following special termsand
conditions survive expiration or termination, for the period of two (2) years unless alonger
period is set forth in this Agreement, and as long as the scope of Work includes functions or
operations that implicate the below items:

i. Claims Data

[a]l The submission of all Encounter Data for services rendered to CCQO’s
Members during contracted period;

[b] Certification that Delegate attests that the submitted encounterclaims are
complete, truthful, and accurate to the best knowledge and belief of the
Delegate’s authorized representative, subject to False Claims Act liability;

[c] Adjustments to encounter claims in the event Delegate receives payment
from a Member’s Third-Party Liability, or Third-Party recovery; and,

[d] Adjustments to encounter claims in the event Delegate recoversany Provider
Overpayment from the Provider.

ii. Financial Reporting

[a] Quarterly financial statements as defined in Exhibit L of the CCO Contract;
[b] Audited annual financial statements as defined in Exhibit L of theCCO
Contract;
[c] Submission of details related to ongoing Third-Party Liability and Third- Party
recovery activities by Delegate or its downstream subcontractors;
[d] Submission of any and all financial information related to the calculation
of Delegate’s minimum medical loss ratio {(“MMLR”}; and,
[e] Data related to the calculation of quality and performance metrics.

iii. Operations

[a] Point of contact for operations while transitioning;

[b] Claims processing;

[c] Provider and Member Grievances and Appeals; and,

[d] Implementation of and any necessary modifications to the Transition Plan.

iv. Corporate Governance
[a]l Oversight by Governing Board and Community Advisory Council;
[b] Not initiating voluntary bankruptcy, liquidation, ordissolution;
[c] Responding to subpoenas, investigations, and governmental inquiries.

v. Financial Obligations. The following requirements survive Agreement expiration or
termination indefinitely:

EXHIBIT B
Page 33 of 56

YA



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

[a] Reconciliation of Risk Corridor Payments;

[b] Reconciliation and right of setoffs;

[c] Recoupment of MMLR Rebates;

[d] Recoupment of capitation paid for Members deemed ineligible orwho were
enrolled into an incorrect benefit category; and,

[e] Recoupment (by means of setoff or otherwise) of any identified
Overpayment.

vi. Sanctions and Liquidated Damages

[a] Agreement expiration or termination does not limit OHA's ability to impose
Sanctions or Liquidated Damages for the failure or acts {orboth) of the CCO
and its downstream subcontractors and Delegates as set out in Exhibit B,
Part 9 of the CCO Contract.
{b] The decision to impose a Sanction or Liquidated Damages does not prevent
OHA from imposing additional Sanctions against CCO and its downstream
subcontractors and Delegates at a later date.
[c] Sanctions imposed on the CCO and its downstream subcontractors and
Delegates after Agreement expiration or termination will be reportedto
CMS according to the requirements set out in the CCO Contract, Exhibit B,
Part 9.
Equal Access. Delegate shall provide equal access to Covered Services for both male andfemale
Members under 18 years of age, including access to appropriate facilities, services, and treatment, to
achieve the policy in ORS § 417.270.

Media Disclosure. Subcontractor shall not provide information to the media regarding a recipient
of services under this Agreement without first consulting with and receiving approvalfrom CCO,
who must seek approval from its affiliates and OHA. Delegate shall make immediate contact with
CCO when media contact occurs. CCO will coordinate the appropriate follow-ups to its affiliates
and OHA and a response for the media.

Limitation of Liabilities. Except for liability arising under or related to section 7. Indemnity,
neither party shall be liable for incidental or consequential damages arising out of or related to
this Agreement.

Insurance. Delegate shall maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit C, attached hereto.
Access to Records and Facilities Records Retention; Information Sharing.

a. Delegate shall maintain, and shall require its subcontractors and participating providersto
maintain, all financial records relating to this Agreement in accordance with best practices
or National Association of Insurance Commissioners accounting standards. In addition,
Delegate shall maintain any other records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of
shipments and payments and writings of Delegate, whether in paper, electronic orother

EXHIBIT B
Page 34 of 56

s



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE96

form, that are pertinent to this Agreement, in such a manner as to clearly document
Delegate's performance. All Clinical Records, financial records, other records, books,
documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and payments and writings of Delegate
whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this Agreement, are
collectively referred to as “Records.” Delegate acknowledges and agrees that CCO and its
affiliates, OHA, and the Secretary of State's Office, DHHS, CMS, the Office of thelnspector
General, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Oregon Department of Justice
Medicaid Fraud Control Unit and their duly authorized representatives shall have accessto
all Records of Delegate, its subcontractors, and participating providers to perform
examinations and audits and make excerpts and transcripts evaluating compliance with this
Agreement, and to evaluate the quality, appropriateness and timeliness of services.
Delegate further acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing entities may, at any time,
inspect the premises, physical facilities, computer systems, and any other equipmentand
facilities where Medicaid-related activities or Work is conducted or equipment is used (or
both conducted and used).

i.  The right to audit under this section exists for ten (10) years from, as applicable,
the Expiration Date or the date of termination, or from the date of completion of
any audit, whichever is later,

ii. Delegate shall, upon request and without charge, provide a suitable work areaand
copying capabilities to facilitate such a review or audit. This right also includes
timely and reasonable access to Delegate’s personnel and the personnel of any
subcontractors for the purpose of interview and discussion related tosuch
documents. The rights of access in this section are not limited to the required
retention period, but shall last as long as the records are retained.

b. Delegate shall retain and keep accessible all Records for the longest of ten (10) years orfor:

i.  The retention period specified in the CCO Contract for certain kinds of records;
iil.  The period as may be required by Applicable Law including the records retention
schedules set forth in OAR Chapters 410 and 166; or,
iii. Until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to
this Agreement.

¢ Inaccordance with OAR 410-141-5080, OHA has theright to provide the Oregon
Department of Consumer and Business Services with information reported to OHA by CCO
and its subcontractors and/or delegates provided that OHA and DCBS have entered into
information sharing agreements that govern the disclosure of such information.

15. Force Majeure. No party is responsible for delay or default caused by an event beyond its
reasonable control. CCO may terminate this Agreement upon written notice after reasonably
determining the delay or default reasonably prevents performance of this Agreement.

16. Assignment of Contract, Successors in Interest.

a. Delegate shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement, voluntarily or

EXHIBIT B
Page 35 of 56

| Lot



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

17.

18.

19.

involuntarily, whether by merger, consolidation, dissolution, operation of law, or in any
other manner without the prior written approval of CCO. Any such assignment or transfer, if
approved, is subject to such conditions and provisions as OHA or CCO may deemnecessary,
including but not limited to Exhibit B, Part 8, Section 20 of the CCO Contract. No approval by
CCO of any assignment or transfer of interest shall be deemed to create any obligation of
CCO in addition to those set forth in this Agreement.

b. This Agreement’s provisions are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties tothis
Agreement and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. CCO and Delegate are the only parties to this Agreement andare the
only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise,
to third persons any greater than the rights and benefits enjoyed by the general public unless such
third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended
beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. This Section shall survive expiration or termination of
this Agreement.

Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared bya court
of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms
and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held tobe invalid.
This Section shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications between the
parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal delivery,
facsimile, or mailing the same, postage prepaid to Delegate or CCO at the address set forthin this
Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as either party may indicate pursuant to this
Section. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed by regular mail shall be deemed
received and effective five days after the date of mailing. Any communication or notice delivered by
facsimile shall be deemed received and effective on the day the transmitting machine generatesa
receipt of the successful transmission, if transmission was during normal business hours of the
recipient, or on the next business day if transmission was outside normal business hours of the
recipient. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to be effective against the other party, any notice
transmitted by facsimile must be confirmed by telephone notice to the other party. Any
communication or notice given by personal delivery shall be deemed effective when actually
delivered to the addressee.

CCO:  Attn: NEMT Benefit Manager

315 SW Fifth Ave
Portland, Oregon 97204

Telephone: 503-416-4100

Facsimile: 503-416-1335
Email: sunowens@-careoregon.org
EXHIBIT B
Page 36 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

This Section shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

20.

21.

22

23.

Headings. The headings and captions to sections of this Agreement have been inserted for
identification and reference purposes only and shall not be used to construe the meaning or to
interpret this Agreement.

Amendments. The Parties may mutually amend this Agreement. CCO may amend this Agreement to
comply with any changes that occur in federal or state statute or regulations, or changes in Covered
Services or Payments under ORS 414.735, such that failure to amend this Agreement may place CCO
at risk of non-compliance with Federal or state statute or regulations or at risk of breach of the CCO
Contract; or, to address any changes needed in the event that the CCO’s service area is expanded or
reduced. Whenever feasible, CCO commits to providing advance notice to Delegate ofany such
anticipated changes, engaging Delegate in the development of these amendments and to the extent
possible will provide Delegate with a preview of proposed amendments as soon as possible.

Delegate’s Failure to Perform. Delegate’s failure to perform the Statement of Work specifiedin
Exhibit A — Part 2 to this Agreement or to meet the performance standards established in this
Agreement, may result in consequences that include, but are not limited to:

a. Reducing or withholding payment under this Agreement;

b, Requiring Delegate to perform at Delegate’s expense additional work necessaryto
perform the statement of work or meet performance standards; and

C. Declaring a default of this Agreement and pursuing any available remedies fordefault,
including termination of the Agreement as permitted in Section 8. Default; Remedies;
Termination of this Agreement.

OHA Sanctions. In the CCO Contract, OHA has reserved the right to impose sanctions on the CCO. In
the event that any act or failure to act by Delegate pursuant to this Agreement results in OHA
imposing a sanction against CCO, CCO may impose or pass through such sanctions to Delegate. The
CCO’s right to file a request for an Administrative Review with OHA will pass through the Delegate
should thesanction be related to Delegate’s performance unless OHA exercises its reserved right to
provisionally impose a sanction before such Administrative Review.

24. Warranties. Delegate warrants that:

a. Delegate's employees and subcontractors are not excluded from participation in the
Medicare or Medicaid programs and are not included in the Office of Inspector General List
of Excluded Individuals/Entities.

b. Delegate is not listed on the non- procurement portion of the General Service
Administration’s “List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs” found at: https://www.sam.gov/SAM/

EXHIBIT B
Page 37 of 56

| Lele



DocuSign Envelope |D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

EXHIBIT C

REQUIRED FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

General Applicability and Compliance. Unless exempt under 45 CFR Part 87 for Faith-Based
Organizations (Federal Register, July 16, 2004, Volume 69, #136), or other federal provisions, Delegate
shall comply and, as indicated, cause all subcontractors to comply with the following federal
requirements to the extent that they are applicable to this Agreement, to Delegate, or to the Work, or
to any combination of the foregoing. For purposes of this Agreement, all references to federal and state
laws are references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from time totime.

1. Miscellaneous Federal Provisions. Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply
with all federal laws, regulations, and executive orders applicable to the Agreement or to the delivery
of Work. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Delegate expressly agrees to comply and
require all subcontractors to comply with the following laws, regulations and executive orders to the
extent they are applicable to the Agreement: (a) Title VI and Vil of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended; (b) 45 CFR Part 84 which implements Title V, Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation
Actof 1973, as amended; (c) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; (d) Section
1557 ofthe Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA); (e) Executive Order 11246, as
amended; (f) theHealth Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended; (g) the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended; (h)the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; (i) the
Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equity Act of 2008, as amended); (j) CMS regulations (including
42 CFR Part 428, subpartK and guidance regarding mental health parity, including 42 CFR 438.900 et
seq.; (k) all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; (1) all
other applicable requirements of federal civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations;
and (m) all federal laws requiring reporting of Member abuse. These laws, regulations and executive
orders are incorporated by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the Agreement
and required by law to be so incorporated. No federal funds may be used to provide Work in
violation of 42 U.S.C. 14402.

2. Fraud, Waste, & Abuse. Exhibit B, Part 9, Section 10-18 of the CCO Contract is delegated to
Delegate, which requires Delegate to (i) Develop and implement Fraud, Waste, and Abuse
prevention policies and procedures that ensure compliance with 42 CFR Part 455, 42 CFR Part 438,
Subpart Hand OAR 410-120-1510; and (ii) annually create a plan for implementing its policies and
procedures.

a. CCOis required to ensure Delegate complies with the terms and conditions set forthin
Exhibit B, Part 9, Section 11-18 of the CCO Contract.

b. In addition, Delegate shall comply, to the extent permissible, with CCO’s Fraud and
Abuse policies to prevent and detect Fraud and Abuse activities as such activities relate
to the OHP, and shall promptly refer all suspected cases of fraud and Abuse to the CCO
and the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit (“MFCU"). Delegate shall permit the MFCU or OHA
or both to inspect, evaluate, or audit books, records, documents, files, accounts, and
facilities maintained by or on behalf of Delegate, as required to investigate anincident

EXHIBIT C
Page 38 of 56

L]



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

of Fraud and Abuse. Delegate shall cooperate with the MFCU and OHA investigator
during any investigation of Fraud and Abuse. Delegate shall provide copies of reports or
other documentation regarding any suspected fraud at no cost to MFCU or OHAduring
an investigation.

c. Delegate recognizes that CCO may perform oversight and monitoring of these
requirements at regular intervals including but not limited to an annual
Delegation Oversight Review.

3. Participation in Health Equity Plan. Pursuant to OAR 410-141-3735, CCO is required to work withits
affiliates to develop and implement a Health Equity Plan designed to address the cultural,
socioeconomic, racial, and regional disparities in health care that exist among OHP Members and the
communities within the CCO’s Service Area. Insofar as the Health Equity Plan includes functions that
the Delegate is performing on behalf of CCO, Delegate will participate and contribute to the
development and execution of the Health Equity Plan.

4. Equal Employment Opportunity. If this Agreement, including amendments, is for more than
$10,000, then Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with Executive Order
11246, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Part 60).

5. Clean Air, Clean Water, EPA Regulations. If this Agreement, including amendments, exceeds
$100,000, then Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with allapplicable
standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7606),
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (commonly known as the Clean Water Act) (33
U.S.C. 1251 to 1387), specifically including, but not limited to Section 508 (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive
Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (2 CFR Part 1532), which prohibit
theuse under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of
Violating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to OHA, United States Department of Health and
Human Services and the appropriate Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency.
Delegate shall include and require all subcontractors to include in all contracts with subcontractors
receiving more than $100,000, language requiring the subcontractor to comply with the federal laws
identified in thissection.

6. Energy Efficiency. Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with applicable
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in the Oregon
energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42
U.S.C. 6201 et seq. (Pub. L. 94 163).

7. Truth in Lobbying. By signing this Agreement, the Delegate certifies, to the best ofthe
Delegate’s knowledge and belief that:

a. Nofederal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of
Delegate, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee ofan agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or

EXHIBIT C
Page 39 of 56

\\e$



DocuSign Envelope [D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

an employee ofa Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making ofany federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative
agreement.

b.  If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid toany
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative
agreement, the Delegate shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions.

c.  The Delegate shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
andsubcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

d.  This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title
31 of the U.S.Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of notless than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

e.  No part of any federal funds paid to Delegate under this Agreement shall be used other
than for normal and recognized executive legislative relationships, for publicity or
propaganda purposes, for the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet,
booklet, publication, electronic communication, radio, television, or video presentation
designed to support or defeat the enactment of legislation before the United States
Congress or any State or locallegislature itself, or designed to support or defeat any
proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order issued by the executive
branch of any State or local government itself.

f. No part of any federal funds paid to Delegate under this Agreement shall be used to pay
the salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such
recipient, related to any activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation,
appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or Executive order proposed or
pending before the United States Congress or any State government, State legislature
or local legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and recognized executive-
legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a State, local or tribal
government in policymaking andadministrative processes within the executive branch
of that government.

g The prohibitions in subsections (e) and (f) of this section shall include any activity to
advocate or promote any proposed, pending or future Federal, State or local tax
increase, or any proposed, pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal
consumer product, including its sale or marketing, including but not limited to the

EXHIBIT C
Page 40 of 56

| k4



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

8.

10.

11.

advocacy or promotion of gun control.

h.  No part of any federal funds paid to Delegate under this Agreement may be used forany
activity that promotes the legalization of any drug or other substance included in
schedule I of the schedules of controlled substances established under Section 202 of
the Controlled Substances Act except for normal and recognized executive
congressional communications. This limitation shall not apply when there is significant
medical evidence of a therapeuticadvantage to the use of such drug or other substance
or that federally sponsored clinical trials arebeing conducted to determine therapeutic
advantage.

Resource Conservation and Recovery. Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to
comply with all mandatory standards and policies that relate to resource conservation and recovery
pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.). Section
6002 of that Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6962) requires that preference be given in procurement
programs to the purchase of specific products containing recycled materials identified in guidelines
developed by the Environmental Protection Agency. Current guidelines are set forth in 40 CFR Part
247.

Audits.

a. Delegate shall comply, and require all subcontractors to comply, with applicable audit
requirements and responsibilities set forth in this Agreement and applicable state or
federal law.

b. If Delegate expends $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources) in a federal
fiscal year, Delegate shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200.
Copies of all audits must be submitted to OHA within thirty (30) days of completion. If
Delegate expends less than $750,000 in a federal fiscal year, Contractor is exempt from
Federal audit requirements for that year. Records must be available as provided in
Exhibit B, “Access to Records.”

Debarment and Suspension. Delegate shall not permit any person or entity to be a subcontractor if
the person or entity is listed on the non-procurement portion of the GeneralService
Administration’s “List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs” in accordance with Executive Orders No. 12549 and No. 12689, “Debarment and
Suspension”. (See 2 CFR Part 180.) This list contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or
otherwise excluded by agencies, and contractors declared ineligible under statutory authority other
than Executive Order No. 12549. Subcontractors with awards that exceed the simplified acquisition
threshold shall provide the required certification regarding their exclusion status and that of their
principals prior to award.

Drug-Free Workplace. Delegate shall comply and cause all subcontractors to comply with the
following provisions to maintain a drug-free workplace: (i) Delegate certifies that it will provide a
drug- free workplace by publishing a statement notifying its employees that the unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance, except as may
EXHIBIT C
Page 41 of 56

1710



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

12.

13.

be presentin lawfully prescribed or over-the-counter medications, is prohibited in Delegate's
workplace orwhile providing services to OHA clients. Delegate's notice shall specify the actions that
will be taken by Delegate against its employees for violation of such prohibitions; (ii) Establish a drug-
freeawareness program to inform its employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,
Delegate's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation,
and employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug
abuse violations; (iii) Provide each employee to be engaged in the performance of services under this
Agreement a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (i) above; (iv) Notify each employee in
the statementrequired by paragraph (i) above that, as a condition of employment to provide services
under this Agreement, the employee will abide by the terms of the statement, and notify the
employer of any criminal drugstatute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace no later
than five (5) days after such conviction; (v) Notify OHA within ten (10) days after receiving notice
under subparagraph (iv) above from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction; (vi) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so convicted as required by Section
5154 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988; (vii) Make agood- faith effort to continue a drug-free
workplace through implementation of subparagraphs (i) through (vi) above; (viii) Require any
subcontractor to comply with subparagrapbhs (i) through (vii) above; (ix) Neither Delegate, or any of
Delegate's employees, officers, agents or subcontractors may provide anyservice required under this
Agreement while under the influence of drugs. For purposes of this provision, "under the influence"
means: observed abnormal behavior or impairments in mental or physical performance leading a
reasonable person to believe the Delegate or Delegate's employee, officer, agent or subcontractor
has used a controlled substance, prescription or non-prescription medication that impairs the
Delegate or Delegate's employee, officer, agent or subcontractor's performance of essential job
function or creates a direct threat to OHA clients or others. Examples of abnormal behaviorinclude,
but are not limited to: hallucinations, paranoia or violent outbursts. Examples of impairments in
physical or mental performance include, but are not limited to: slurred speech, difficulty walking or
performing job activities; and (x) Violation of any provision of this subsection may result in
termination ofthe Agreement.

Pro-Children Act. Delegate shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with the Pro-
Children Act of 1994 (codified at 20 U.S.C. Section 6081 et. seq.).

Medicaid Services. Delegate shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulation
pertaining to the provision of Medicaid Services under the Medicaid Act, Title XIX, 42U.5.C. Section
1396 et seq., including without limitation:

a. Keepsuch records as are necessary to fully disclose the extent of the services provided
to individuals receiving Medicaid assistance and shall furnish such information to any
state or federal agency responsible for administering the Medicaid program regarding
anypayments claimed by such person or institution for providing Medicaid Services as
the state orfederal agency may from time to time request. 42 U.S.C. Section 1396a
(a)27); 42 CFRPart 431.107(b)(1) & (2).

b. Comply with all disclosure requirements of 42 CFR Part 1002.3(a) and 42 CFR Part455
Subpart (B).

EXHIBIT C
Page 42 of 56

Tl



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

¢. Maintain written notices and procedures respecting advance directives in compliance
with 42 U.5.C. Section 1396(a)(57) and (w), 42 CFR Part 431.107(b)(4), and 42 CFR
Part489 subpart I.

d. Certify when submitting any claim for the provision of Medicaid Services that the
information submitted is true, accurate and complete. Delegate shall acknowledge
Delegate’s understanding that payment of the claim will be from federal and state
funds and that any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted
under federal and state laws.

e. Entities receiving $5 million or more annually (under this Agreement and any other
Medicaid contract) for furnishing Medicaid health care items or services shall, as a
condition of receiving such payments, adopt written fraud, waste and abuse policies and
procedures and inform employees, contractors and agents about the policies and
procedures in compliance with Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, 42
U.S.C. §1396a(a)(68).

14. Agency-based Voter Registration. If applicable, Delegate shall comply with the Agency-based Voter
Registration sections of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 that require voterregistration
opportunities be offered where an individual may apply for or receive an application forpublic
assistance.

15. Disclosure.

a. 42 CFR Part 455.104 requires the State Medicaid agency to obtain the following
information from any provider of Medicaid or CHIP services, including fiscal agents of providers
and managed care entities: (1) the name and address (including the primary business address,
every business location and P.O. Box address) of any person (individual or corporation) with an
ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity; (2) in thecase
of an individual, the date of birth and Social Security Number, or, in the case of acorporation,
the tax identification number of the entity, with an ownership interest in the provider, fiscal
agent or managed care entity or of any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or
managed care entity has a 5% or more interest; (3) whether the person (individual or
corporation) with an ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care
entity is related to another person with ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal
agent or managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child or sibling, or whether the person
(individual or corporation) with an ownership or control interest in any subcontractor in which
the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has a 5% or more interest is related to another
person with ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as
a spouse, parent, child or sibling; (4) the name of any other provider, fiscal agent ormanaged
care entity in which an owner of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has an
ownership or control interest; and, (5) the name, address, date of birth and Social Security
Number of any managing employee of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity.

b. 42 CFR Part 455.434 requires as a condition of enrollment as a Medicaid or CHIP
provider, to consent to criminal background checks, including fingerprinting when requiredto
do so under state law, or by the category of the provider based on risk of fraud, waste, and
abuse under federal law.

EXHIBIT C
Page 43 of 56

[ Tl



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYSS

c. As such, a provider must disclose any person with a 5% or greater direct orindirect
ownership interest in the provider whom has been convicted of a criminal offense related to
that person's involvement with the Medicare, Medicaid, or title XX program in the last ten (10)
years.

d. Delegate shall make the disclosures required by this Section 13. to OHA. OHA reserves
the right to take such action required by law, or where OHA has discretion, it deems
appropriate, based on the information received (or the failure to receive information) from the
provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity.

16. Federal Intellectual Property Rights Notice. The federal funding agency, as the awarding agency of
the funds used, at least in part, for the Work under this Agreement, may have certain rights as set
forth in the federal requirements pertinent to these funds. For purposes of this subsection, the
terms “grant” and “award” refer to funding issued by the federal fu nding agency to the State of
Oregon. The Delegate agrees that it has been provided the following notice:

a. The federal funding agency reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable rightto
reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the Work, and to authorize others to do so, for Federal
Government purposes with respect to:

° The copyright in any Work developed under a grant, subgrant or contract under
a grant or subgrant; and

. Any rights of copyright to which a grantee, subgrantee or a Delegate purchases
ownership with grant support.

b. The parties are subject to applicable federal regulations governing patents and
inventions, including government-wide regulations issued by the Department of Commerce at
37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business
Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements.”

c. The parties are subject to applicable requirements and regulations of the federal
funding agency regarding rights in data first produced under a grant, subgrant or contract
under a grant or subgrant.

17. State of Oregon OHP Requirements. The services provided under this Agreement are being
delivered on behalf of CCO because Delegate is performing on contractual obligations for specified
health plan services. This is distinct from the actual delivery of health care services as outlined in
other parts of this Agreement. Therefore, CCO is required to bind its Subcontractors/Delegates to
the following:

a. Business Associate Agreement (“BAA”) required for Delegated Health Plan Services. ABAA
must be executed between Delegate and CCO, as under this Agreement Delegate is acting as
the Business Associate of CCO.

b. CCO Delegate Requirements. As may have been expressed in various sections of this

Agreement supra, Delegate is required and agrees to comply with the following parts of the
CCO Contract:

EXHIBIT C
Page 44 of 56

]



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

i Exhibit D, Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 15, 16, 19, 20, 25, 31, 32, and33.

ii. Allthe general subcontractor requirements listed in Exhibit B, Part 4, Section 11 ofthe
CCO Contract, which is summarized in Section 9 of Exhibit A, Part 2 of this Agreement,
to the extent the requirements apply to Delegate’s scope of work under this
Agreement.

iii. Delegate agrees to comply with the federal requirements listed in the CCO Contract,
Exhibit E, to the extent they apply to Delegate’s Work under this Agreement.

iv. Delegate agrees to comply with the Program Integrity requirements listed in Exhibit B, Part
9, Section 11-18 of the CCO Contract, to the extent they applyto Delegate’s Work under
this Agreement.

¢. Inaddition to all of the other provisions OHA requires under the CCO Contract, including
without limitation, information required to be reported under Ex. B, Part 4 of the CCO
Contract, and any other information OHA or CCO may request from time to time, Delegate
shallinclude in any permitted downstream subcontract under this Agreement provisionsto
ensure that OHA will receive the benefit of Delegate performance as if the Delegate were the
CCO with respect to Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 15, 16, 19, 20, 25, and 31-33 of Exhibit D of the CCO
Contract and as further specified in various provisions of this Agreement, OHAand/or CCO’s
consent to any downstream subcontract(s) shall not relieve Delegate of any of its duties or
obligations under this Agreement.

d. Monitoring and Reviews. Delegate understands that, on an ongoing basis, as may have been
expressed in various sections of this Agreement, CCO will monitor Delegate’s compliance with
and performance under this Agreement along with the relevant terms of the CCO Contract. In
addition, Delegate agrees that OHA is authorized to monitor compliance with the terms and
conditions of the CCO Contract as it relates to this Agreement and the Delegate’s Work, along
all applicable rules, regulations, and laws. Delegate understands that methods of monitoring
compliance may include review of documents or records of Delegate, CCO Contract
performance review, Grievances, on-site reviews of documentation or any other source of
relevant information.

i. Delegate agrees to cooperate and participate with CCO and, when necessary, OHA inany
monitoring, review, or oversight activities such as the Delegation Oversight activities and the
Annual Subcontractor Performance Report expressed in Exhibit A, Part 2 ofthis Agreement.

ii. If after conducting an audit or other compliance review of the CCO, Delegate’scompliance
cannot be determined, or if OHA determines that the CCO and/or Delegate has breached the
terms or conditions of the CCO Contract, OHA may impose Sanctions on the CCO which will
be applied to CCO and Delegate in so far as the Sanctions relateto work performed under
this Agreement. A larger explanation of OHA’s authority and potential sanctions are
contained in Exhibit B, Part 9 of the CCO Contract.

EXHIBIT C
Page 45 of 56

T4



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

iii. The actions/sanctions provided for in this section are in addition to any other rights CCO
may have under this Agreement, at law, or in equity.

e. Federal Medicaid Managed Care. Delegate shall comply with the requirements of 42 CFR§
438.6 that are applicable to the Work required under this Agreement.

f.  Hold Harmless.

i. Delegate shall not hold OHA nor a Member receiving services liable for any costs or
charges related to CCO-authorized Covered Services rendered to a Member whetherin an
emergency or otherwise. Furthermore, Delegate shall not hold a Member liable for any
payments for any of the following:

fa] CCO’s or Delegate’s debt due to CCO’s or Delegate’s insolvency;

[b] Coordinated Care Services authorized or required to be provided under the CCO Contract
and the Agreement to a Member, for which: (1) OHA does not pay CCO;or,
(2) CCO does not pay Delegate for Covered Services rendered to a Member as set forth
in the Agreement; and.

[c] Covered Services furnished pursuant to the Agreement to the extent that those
payments are in excess of the amount that the Member would owe if CCO provided the
services directly.

ii. Delegate may not initiate or maintain a civil action against a Member to collect any amounts
owed by the CCO for which the Member is not liable to the Delegate underthis Agreement.

g. Billing and Payment. Delegate shall ensure that it or its Subcontractors or Providers do not bill
Members for services that are not covered under the CCO Contract unless there is a full
written disclosure or waiver (also referred to as agreement to pay) on file signed bythe
Member, in advance of the service being provided, in accordance with the applicable State
rules and regulations.

h. Reports. In congruence with relevant obligations expressed in separate sections herein,
Delegate shall provide timely access to records and facilities and cooperate with OHAin
collection of information through consumer surveys, on-site reviews, medical chartreviews,
financial reporting and financial record reviews, interviews with staff, and otherinformation for
the purposes of monitoring compliance with the CCO Contract, including but notlimited to
verification of services actually provided, and for developing and monitoring performance and
outcomes.

i.  Access to, Maintenance of, and Confidentiality of Records. Delegate shall maintain all
financial records related to the CCO Contract in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles or National Association of Insurance Commissioners accounting
standards. In addition, Delegate shall maintain any other records, books, documents, papers,
plans, records of shipment and payments and writings of Delegate, whetherin paper, electronic
or other form, that are pertinent to the CCO Contract (the “Records”) in such a manner to

EXHIBIT C
Page 46 of 56

|75



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

clearly document Delegate’s performance. Delegate shall provide timely and reasonable access

to Records to: (a) OHA; (b) the Secretary of State’s Office; (c) CMS; (d) the Comptroller General
of the United States; (e) the Oregon Department of Justice Medicaid Fraud Control Unit; and, (f)
all their duly authorized representatives, to perform examinations and audits, make excerpts

and transcripts, and evaluate the quality, appropriateness and timeliness of services performed.
Delegate shall, upon request and without charge, provide a suitable work area and copying
capabilities to facilities for such a review or audit.

i. Delegate shall retain and keep accessible all Records for the longer of: (a) ten (10) years
following final payment and termination of the CCO Contract; (b) the period as maybe
required by applicable law, including the records retention schedules set forth in OAR
Chapter 166; or (c) until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of
or related to the CCO Contract. The rights of access in this paragraph are not limited to the
required retention period, but shall last as long as the Records are retained.

ii.  Clinical Records and Confidentiality of Member Records. Delegate shall comply with CCO’s

policies and procedures that ensure maintenance of a record keeping system that includes
maintaining the security of records as required by the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1320d., and the federal regulations implementing the Act
(“HIPAA”), and complete Clinical Records that document the Coordinated Care Services
received by the Members. CCO shall regularly monitor Delegate’s compliance with these
policies and procedures and Delegate shall be subject to and comply with any Corrective
Action taken by CCO that is necessary to ensure Delegate compliance.

j- Mandatory Reporting of Abuse.

Delegate shall immediately report any evidence of Child Abuse, neglect or threat of harm to
DHS Child Protective Services or law enforcement officials in full accordance with the
mandatory Child Abuse Reporting law (ORS 419B.005 to 419B.045). If law enforcement is
notified, the Delegate shall notify the referring case worker within twenty-four (24) hours.
Delegate shall immediately contact the local DHS child Protective Services office if questions
arise whether an incident meets the definition of Child Abuse or neglect.

Delegate shall comply, and require its employees and subcontractors to comply, with all
protective services, investigation and reporting requirements described in any of the
following laws:

[a] OAR 407-045-0000 through 407-045-0370 (abuse investigations by the Office of
Investigations and Training);

[b] ORS § 430.735 through 430.765 {persons with mental illness ordevelopmental
disabilities);

[c] ORS 124.005 to 124.040 (elderly persons and persons with disabilities abuse);and,

[d] ORS441.650 to 441.680 (residents of long-term carefacilities).

k. Certification. Delegate certifies that all Claims data submissions by the Delegate, either directly

EXHIBIT C
Page 47 of 56

1l



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE9S

or through a third-party submitter, is and will be accurate, truthful and complete in accordance
with OAR 410-141-3565 and OAR 410-120-1280.

I.  Subcontracts.

i. Where Delegate is permitted to subcontract certain functions of this Agreement,
Delegate shall notify CCO, in writing, of any subcontract(s) for any of the Work
required by the CCO Contract other than information submitted in Exhibit G of the
CCO Contract.

ii. Minority-Owned, Woman-Owned and Emerging Small Business (“MWESB”)
Participation. Delegate shall take reasonable steps, such as through a quote, bid,
proposal, or similar process, to ensure that MWESB certified firms, as referenceon:
http://www.oregon4biz.com/how—we-can-he!p/COBID/, are provided an equal
opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of anysubcontracts.

m. Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification. Exhibit B, Part 8, Section 2 of the CCO Contract is
delegated to Delegate, whereby Delegate ensures compliance with all requirements found
within. If the terms or services provided under this Agreement permits Delegate to have access
to any OHA Information Asset or Network and Information System to which security and
privacy requirements apply, and OHA grants access tosuch OHA Information Assets or Network
and Information Systems, Delegate shall comply with QAR 943-014-0300 through 943-014-
0320.

EXHIBIT C
Page 48 of 56

[T



DocuSign Envelope I1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEY6

EXHIBIT D
Business Associate Agreement

Columbia Pacific CCO, LL.C THE COMPANIES
315 SW Fifth Avenue
Portland, Oregon 97204

Tillamook County Transportation District BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141

This Business Associate Agreement (“BAA”) is between the Companies and Business
Associate.

Business Associate and the Companies have entered into a Non-Emergent Medical
Transportation Delegation Agreement (“Agreement”) effective January 1, 2021 and this BAA is
incorporated by reference in the Agreement. The parties” activities pursuant to the Agreement
sometimes may involve (i) the disclosure of PHI by the Companies (or another business associate
of the Companies) to Business Associate. (ii) the use or disclosure by Business Associate of PHI
received from the Companies and (iii) the transmission by Electronic Media or the maintenance
in Electronic Media of Individually Identifiable Health Information by Business Associate.
Accordingly, the relationship between the Companies and Business Associate is subject to
provisions of the HIPAA Rules. The Companies and Business Associate intend to protect the
privacy of PHI and the security of electronic PHI held by Business Associate in connection with
the Agreement in compliance with this BAA, the HIPAA Rules and other applicable laws.

1. Definitions
Capitalized terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this BAA shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules.

(a) “Agent” means an agent as used and defined under the HIPAA Rules and federal
common law.

(b) “Breach” has the same meaning as in 45.C.F.R. § 164.402.
(c) “Designated Record Set” has the same meaning as in 45 C.F.R. 164.501.

(d) “Discovery™ means the first day on which a Breach is known, or reasonably
should have been known, to Business Associate (including any person, other than the individual
committing the Breach, who is an employee or officer of Business Associate) or any Agent or
Subcontractor of Business Associate.

EXHIBIT D
Page 49 of 56

| 7¢



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

(e) “Effective Date™ means the date first written above.
H “Electronic Media” means the same as in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103.

(2) “Electronic Protected Health Information™ or “EPHI” means the same as in
45 C.F.R. § 160.103, limited for purposes of this BAA to EPHI received by Business Associate
from, or received or created by Business Associate on behalf of, the Companies.

(h) “Electronic Transactions Rules” means 45 CFR Part 162.

(1) “Fundraising” means raising funds for the Business Associate’s own benefit as
governed by 45 CFR § 164.514.

) “HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy Rules, the Security Rules, and the Electronic
Transactions Rules.

(k) “Individual” means a person to which specific PHI applies.

) “Marketing” means the same as in 45 CFR § 164.501.

(m)  “PHI” or “Protected Health Information™ means the same as in
45 CFR § 160.103, limited for purposes of this BAA to PHI received by Business Associate or
its Agent or Subcontractor from, or received or created by Business Associate, its Agent or
Subcontractor on behalf of, the Companies.

(n) “Privacy Rule” means the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information in 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E.

(o) “Required by Law™ means the same as in 45 C.F.R. § 164.103.

(p) “Secretary” means the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and
Human Services or the Secretary’s designee.

C)) “Security Incident” means the same as in 45 CFR § 164.304.

() “Security Rule™ means the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information in 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C.

(s) “Subcontractor” means the same as in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103.
(t) “Unsecured PHI"" means the same as the term “unsecured protected health

information” in 45 C.F.R. § 164.402.

2 blisation d Activities of Busi Associate

(a) Business Associate agrees to not use or disclose PHI other than as permitted or
required by this BAA or as Required by Law.

Business Associate Agreement
Page 50 of 56

714



DocuSign Envelope ID: 077904OC~C3A6-4968-920A-8022ABBFBE96

(b) Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or
disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this BAA.

(¢) Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful
effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate or
a Subcontractor or Agent of Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this BAA.

(d) Business Associate agrees to report to the Companies any use or disclosure of
PHI by Business Associate or a Subcontractor or Agent of Business Associate not permitted
under this BAA within five business days after Business Associate becomes aware of such
disclosure.

(e) Business Associate agrees to report to the Companies any Security Incident,
Breach of Unsecured PHI or any use or disclosure of PHI that is not authorized by this BAA of
which Business Associate becomes aware.

) Business Associate will ensure that any Subcontractor or Agent of Business
Associate using or disclosing PHI has executed a business associate agreement containing
substantially the same terms as this BAA, including the same restrictions and conditions that
apply through this BAA to Business Associate with respect to such PHI. Business Associate will
ensure that any Agent to whom Business Associate provides PHI received from, or created or
received by Business Associate on behalf of, the Companies has executed an agreement
containing substantially the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this BAA to
Business Associate with respect to such PHI. Business Associate will provide, upon written
request by the Companies, a list of any such Subcontractors of Business Associate and any
Agents of Business Associate using or disclosing PHI.

(g) Business Associate will ensure that any permitted disclosure will be only as
minimally necessary for the purpose of the disclosure.

(h) Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the reasonable request of, and in
the time and manner designated by, the Companies to PHI in a Designated Record Set, to the
Companies or, as directed by the Companies, to an Individual in order to meet the requirements
under 45 CFR § 164.524. If the Companies request an electronic copy of PHI that is maintained
electronically in a Designated Record Set in Business Associate’s custody or control or the
custody or control of a Subcontractor or Agent of Business Associate, Business Associate will
provide such PHI in the electronic format requested by the Companies unless the PHI is not
readily produced in such format, in which case Business Associate will provide another
reasonable electronic format as agreed to by the parties and the Individual requesting such PHI.

(i) Within 30 days of receiving a request by the Companies, Business Associate wil]
document disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures in such form as would
be required for the Companies to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of
disclosures in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.

() Business Associate agrees to make any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated
Record Set as directed or agreed to by the Companies pursuant to 45 CER § 164.526, at the
request of the Companies or of the Individual concerned.

Business Associate Agreement
Page 51 of 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

(k) Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books. and records relating
to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by Business Associate on
behalf of, the Companies available to the Companies or, at the request of the Companies, to the
Secretary or other regulatory official as directed by the Companies, in a time and manner
requested by the Companies or such official for the purpose of determining the Companies’ or
Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Regulations.

(I Business Associate agrees to implement administrative, physical, and technical
safeguards (including written policies and procedures) that reasonably and appropriately protect
the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of EPHI that it receives from, or creates or receives
on behalf of, the Companies as required by the Security Rule. Business Associate will ensure
that any Agent or Subcontractor to whom Business Associate provides EPHI agrees to
implement reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards to
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of such EPHI.
Business Associate agrees to comply with Sections 164.306, 164.308, 164.310, 164.312, and
164.316 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations with respect to all EPHI.

(m)  In conducting any electronic transaction that is subject to the Electronic
Transactions Rule on behalf of the Companies, Business Associate agrees to comply with all
requirements of the Electronic Transactions Rule that would apply to the Companies if the
Companies were conducting the transaction itself. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any
Agent or Subcontractor of Business Associate that conducts standard transactions with PHI of
the Companies will comply with all of the requirements of the Electronic Transactions Rule that
would apply to the Companies if the Companies were conducting the transaction itself,

(n) Business Associate shall not disclose PHI to any member of its workforce unless
Business Associate has advised such person of Business Associate’s privacy and security
obligations under this BAA, including the consequences for violation of such obligations.
Business Associate shall take appropriate disciplinary action against any member of its
workforce who uses or discloses PHI in violation of this BAA or applicable law.

(0) Business Associate shall notify the Companies of any Breach without
unreasonable delay, and in no case later than five business days after Discovery of the Breach.
Business Associate will require its Subcontractors and Agents to notify the Companies of a
Discovery of a Breach at the same time its Subcontractors and Agents notify the Business
Associate and the following shall apply:

(N Notice to the Companies shall include, to the extent possible: (1) the
names of the Individual(s) affected by the Breach; (i1) a brief description of what
happened, including the date of the Breach and the date of the discovery of the Breach, if
known; (iii) a description of the types of Unsecured PHI that were involved in the
Breach; (iv) any steps affected Individuals should take to protect themselves from
potential harm resulting from the Breach; (v) a description of what Business Associate is
doing to investigate the Breach, to mitigate harm to the affected Individual(s), and to
protect against further Breaches; (vi) any notice Business Associate has given pursuant to
45 CFR § 164.404 and (vii) any other information that the Companies reasonably
requests.

Business Associate Agreement
Page 52 of 56

| ]



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

(2) After receipt of notice, from any source, of a Breach involving PHI used,
disclosed, maintained, or otherwise possessed by Business Associate or any
Subcontractor or Agent of Business Associate, the Companies may: (i) require Business
Associate, at Business Associate’s sole expense, to use a mutually agreed upon written
notice to notify, on the Companies’ behalf, the affected Individual(s), in accordance with
the notification requirements set forth in 45 CFR § 164.404, without unreasonable delay,
but in no case later than sixty (60) days after discovery of the Breach; or (ii) elect to itself
provide such notice. Business Associate shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the
Companies from and against any and all costs (including mailing, labor, administrative
costs, vendor charges, and any other costs determined to be reasonable by the
Companies), losses, penalties, fines, and liabilities arising from or associated with the
Breach, including without limitation, the costs of the Companies’ actions taken to: (i)
notify the affected Individual(s) of and to respond to the Breach; (ii) mitigate harm to the
affected Individual(s); (iii) respond to questions or requests for information about the
Breach; and (iv) fines, damages or penalties assessed against the Companies on account
of the Breach of Unsecured PHI.

(p) Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI that is genetic information, or
sell (or directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for), any PHI in violation of
45 CFR §164.502(a)(5).

Q) Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI for Marketing or Fundraising
purposes without prior written consent from the Companies, subject to any conditions of such
consent.

3. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate

(a) Subject to this BAA and applicable law, Business Associate may use or disclose
PHI in connection with functions, activities or services for, or on behalf of, the Companies under
the Agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Rules or the
Companies’ own policies and procedures concerning compliance with the “minimum necessary”
standard under 45 CFR § 164.502(b) if performed by the Companies.

(b) Business Associate may use and disclose PHI for the proper management and
administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal obligations of Business Associate,
but only if?

(N The disclosure is required by Law; or

(2) Business Associate receives reasonable assurances from any party to
whom the PHI is disclosed that: (i) the PHI will be held confidentially by that party; (ii)
the PHI will be used or further disclosed by that party only as required by law or for the
purpose for which it was disclosed to that party; and (iii) the party agrees to notify
Business Associate of any Breaches of which the party becomes aware.

Business Associate Agreement
Page 53 of 56

| €71



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBE9S

4, Obligations of the Companies

(a) The Companies shall provide Business Associate with its notice of privacy
practices produced in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.520 and any changes to such notice while
this BAA is in effect.

(b) The Companies shall provide Business Associate with any changes in or
revocation of permission by any Individual for use or disclosure of PHI if such change or
revocation affects Business Associate’s permitted or required uses and disclosures of the PHI.

(c) The Companies shall notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that the Companies have agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.522 to
the extent that such restrictions affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

5. Term and Termination

(a) This BAA shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall terminate when all
PHI provided is destroyed or returned to the Companies, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy
PHI, as long as protections are extended to such PHI in accordance with (c)(2).

(b) Upon the Companies obtaining knowledge of a material breach or violation of
this BAA by Business Associate, the Companies shall take one of the following actions:

(1) If the Companies determine that the breach or violation is curable, the
Companies shall provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end
the violation within a reasonable time period set by the Companies, which shall not
exceed 90 days. If the breach or violation is not cured or ended within the time set by the
Companies, the Companies may: (i) immediately terminate this BAA and the
Agreement; or (ii) suspend performance by the Companies under the Agreement until
such breach or violation is cured.

2) If the Companies determine that the breach or violation is not curable, The
Companies immediately terminate this BAA and the Agreement.

(3) If the Companies determine that neither a termination of this BAA and the
Agreement nor a cure of a breach or violation is feasible, the Companies may take such
other appropriate actions to remedy, correct or mitigate the breach or violation as the
Companies shall determine.

(4) In addition to the forgoing, the Companies may immediately terminate this
BAA and the Agreement if the Companies determine that Business Associate has
violated a material term of this BAA concerning the Security Rule.

(c) Effect of Termination.

(1 Except as provided in paragraph (c) (2), upon termination of this BAA for
any reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy all PHI in possession of Business
Associate, its Agents or Subcontractors. Business Associate, its Agents and
Subcontractors shall retain no copies of the PHL

Business Associate Agreement
Page 54 of 56

|95



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYE

(2) In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying
the PHI is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to the Companies notification of
the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon mutual agreement of the
parties that return or destruction of PHJ is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the
protections of this BAA to such PHI (including PHI held by Agents or Subcontractors of
Business Associate) and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes
that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate, its
Agents or Subcontractors maintain such PHI.

6. Indemnificgtign

Business Associate agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Companies from direct losses and
damages suffered as a result of Business Associate’s breach of its obligations under this BAA,
including but not limited to direct losses and damages relating to third party claims. The
obligations under this Section 6 regarding indemnification will survive any expiration or
termination of this BAA.

7. Miscellaneous

(a) A reference in this BAA to a section in the HIPAA Rules means the section as in
effect or as amended, and for which compliance is required.

(b) The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this BAA from
time to time for the Companies to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191, as amended.

(c) The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section 5 of this
BAA shall survive the termination of this BAA.

(d)  Any ambiguity in this BAA shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that permits
the Companies to comply with the HIPAA Rules and other applicable law. The section and
paragraph headings of this BAA are for the convenience of the reader only, and are not intended
to act as a limitation of the scope or meaning of the sections and paragraphs themselves.

(e) Subject to the following, this BAA shall not be assigned or otherwise
transferred by a party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld. However, no such consent shall be required for either party’s
assignment or transfer of this BAA in connection with a merger, sale or transfer of all or
substantially all of the business or assets of the assigning party.

(f) The invalidity of any term or provision of this BAA will not affect the validity
of any other provision. Waiver by any party of strict performance of any provision of this
BAA will not be a waiver of or prejudice any party’s right to require strict performance of the
same provision in the future or of any other provision on the same or any other occasion.

(g) Any notices permitted or required by this BAA will be addressed to the receiving
party at the address shown at the top of this BAA or at such other address as either party may
provide to the other.

Business Associate Agreement
Page 55 of 56

34



DocusSign Envelope ID: 0779040C-C3A6-496B-920A-B022ABBFBEYS

(h) This BAA may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which together
will constitute one agreement, even thou gh all parties do not sign the same counterpart.

(i) To the extent of any inconsistency between any other agreement between
the parties and this BAA, the provisions of this BAA shall prevail.

() This BAA supersedes any other business associate agreement in effect
among or between the parties to this BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Business Associate Agreement
to be executed on their behalf by their duly authorized representatives’ signatures as of the
dates set forth below.

THE COMPANIES COLUMBIA PACIFIC CCO, LLC

DocuSigned by:
By:i Mim H’af:,q

Title: Executive Director

7/202
Date: 1/27/2021

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

By: j% @oﬁd

Title: Gfmemo.( /\ACLMC'-{JQV

Date: _ [l -27-20

Business Assaciate Agreement
Page 56 of 56

| §5



Rider’'s Guide v121820c¢

Contact information & office hours
Program overview

Public transportation

Mileage reimbursement
Vehicle-provided rides
Pharmacy stops

Out of area

Emergencies

Driver screening

Adverse weather plan

Your rights & responsibilities
Grievances, feedback & denials
Member confidentiality
Language & format support

Phone: 503-861-0657
Toll-free: 888-793-0439
TTY: 711

Office hours are 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday, except holidays. During those hours
you can go through intake, file grievances and arrange your transportation needs. Anything
outside of that time is considered after hours.

Customer Service representatives are available regardless of the time, day or holidays. While
our primary call center is open on weekdays from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., our afterhours team is
available outside of those hours for your transportation needs. After hours, you can schedule
an urgent same-day ride or check on existing rides. Transportation that was scheduled
previously will not be affected by our office hours or holidays. You can schedule transportation
for any day or time you need, but please call during our regular business hours to schedule.

NW Rides provides a free non-emergent medical transportation (NEMT) service for eligible
Columbia Pacific CCO members going to covered health care visits. This includes traveling to the
doctor, dentist, physical therapy, counseling and more. We serve members who live in Clatsop,
Columbia and Tillamook counties.

NW Rides offers three ways to help you get to your health care appointments:

| Bl



* Public transit: NW Rides is a part of the Tillamook County Transportation District. As a part of
your public transit option, our buses serve much of Tillamook County and the surrounding
areas. TCTD is also part of an alliance of transit agencies across northwest Oregon, NW
Connector, that connects and coordinates to meet your transportation needs in Tillamook,
Clatsop and Columbia counties.

NW Rides can offer any type of pass including single ride, day and monthly passes available
through any transit district that’s part of the NW Connector alliance. Please call us to find out
more and how to qualify for a monthly pass to get to your health care appointments.

Reimbursement: We pay a per-mile rate for mileage to and from health care visits. You can
drive yourself, or someone else can drive you. In some cases, we pay stipends for meals and
lodging when your health care needs take you outside of Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook
counties.

» Vehicle-provided rides: We can schedule a ride in the type of vehicle that’s appropriate to
your needs and mobility-aid requirements. The NW Rides program is a benefit available for
Columbia Pacific CCO members. There is no cost to you to use it. Customer Service
representatives are available 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday to help you schedule your
non-urgent transportation.

When you call NW Rides, you will speak with a Customer Service representative who will work
with you to find the most-appropriate and least-costly mode of transportation to fit your needs.
NW Rides provides all non-emergent medical transportation for Columbia Pacific CCO
members. We will verify you're eligible for transportation services to and from covered or
health-related services.

Customer Service will ask questions such as:
* What is your preferred method and time of contact {phone, email, fax)? We'll let you know
about your transportation arrangements as soon as they are in place, and before the date of
your service.
» How do you usually get to your appointments?
» Do you live near public transportation?
Do you have access to a vehicle?
» Do you use any mobility devices?
» Will you need any extra assistance?
» What special modifications to the trip should we make
based on your needs, history or circumstances?

Authorized representatives may call NW Rides on the member’s behalf, and request

transportation. Such representatives include community health workers, foster parents,
adoptive parents and other providers delegated with this authority.

|97



Once your needs are established, we can help you get to any covered service.

A covered service is any physical, dental or mental health visit or health care service that’s
included in the Oregon Health Plan (OHP) and paid for by Columbia Pacific CCO.

If you are a dual member of both Columbia Pacific CCO and Medicare, Columbia Pacific CCO will
verify that you require trip assistance to a Medicaid or Medicare-covered appointment within
Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties, or outside the service area if nonemergent
transportation services are not available within our service area and for which Columbia Pacific
CCO is responsible for cost-sharing, including the transportation services.

Each time you call, we will need the following information
from you:
* Your first and last name.
= Your date of birth.
= Your Member ID number.
Date and time of the appointment.
Full starting and drop off addresses.
» Facility name, doctor’s name and doctor’s phone number.
Medical reason for the appointment.
« Whether it is a round trip or a one-way trip.

We may ask you for other information, too. We will approve or deny your transportation
request within 24 hours of your contacting us. If your appointment is within 24 hours, we will
let you know our decision sooner than that, so you can arrive on time for your appointment.

If we authorize your transportation at the time of your request by phone, we will notify you,
when possible, of the arrangements.

Information about transportation arrangements includes, but is not limited to, the name and
phone number of the transportation provider, the scheduled time and address of pick-up, and
the name and address of the health care provider to whom you’re seeking transport.

As a Columbia Pacific CCO member, you are not responsible for determining whether the
transportation arrangements have been made.

Be aware that drivers cannot change your assigned pick-up time without prior approval from
NW Rides.

Public transportation

If you can take public transportation, NW Rides can give you bus tickets or pass. (We may need
to check with your health providers first to confirm your scheduled appointments.)

| &3



When you call NW Rides, we’ll go over your health care appointments. Please be ready to tell
us about all your upcoming appointments for covered physical, dental and mental health care.

If you have five or more appointments in a calendar month, you’ll be eligible for a monthly
transit pass.

On the phone, we’ll ask:

¢ Whether you need fare for a personal care attendant, or PCA. (See more information at the
end of this section about a PCA. A personal care attendant is a helper who travels with you to
your appointment.)

¢ Your mailing address.

e Your first and last name.

e Your date of birth.

e Your Member ID number.

¢ Dates and times of upcoming appointments.

e Your health care providers’ name, facility and phone number.

¢ Medical reason for each appointment.

e Whether you need round-trip fare or just one way.

We may ask other questions, too.

There are several options for public transportation that we can provide fare for. They serve
Columbia, Clatsop and Tillamook counties. Let us know the one you would use for your health
care appointment.

When to call us

Please plan ahead! We want to make sure you get your bus ticket or pass in time.

It's best to contact NW Rides as soon as you know about your appointment. If we need to mail
bus passes to you, contact us at least five days in advance.

You can ask us for a bus ticket or pass up to 90 days before your appointment.

A personal care attendant can assist before, during or after your appointment. They help with
things like going up and down stairs, your mobility device, language interpretation and medical
monitoring.

If you need a PCA to travel with you to your appointment, tell NW Rides Customer Service when
you call to ask for a bus ticket or pass.

| §4



If you or someone you know can drive you to your health care appointments, NW Rides can
reimburse you for that mileage.

Here are the steps you must take. Note the 45-day deadline.

1. Call us at NW Rides to schedule your trip.

Whenever possible, call at least two full business days before your appointment. You may call
up to 90 days before your appointment. This allows us to confirm information prior to your
appointment so that we may approve the request.

2 Bring an appointment verification form to your appointment.

Ask the provider’s office staff to sign it. You can get a verification form in three ways: Print it
from the ' te, Ask us to mail you a form, Or ask us to fax the form to your
provider’s office.

1. Send us the fully completed form before the deadline.

We must receive the form and any required receipts within 45 days of your appointment. We
will not reimburse if we receive your verification form and any required receipts more than 45
days after your visit. You can mail the form or ask your provider’s office to fax it. If your
provider faxes the form, they need to include a cover sheet with their facility letterhead and
your appointment information.

Mailing address:

NW Rides

3600 3" Street, Suite A

Tillamook, Oregon 97141

NW Rides fax: 503-815-2834

We will verify that you were seen and treated.

1. Or, ask your provider to write a letter. Instead of having your provider office fax an
appointment verification form, your provider can fax us a letter on their professional
letterhead.
The letter must include:
» Your first and last name.
» Your current mailing address.
Your Member ID number.
- The date and time of your visit.
The purpose of your visit.
* A signature and phone number of a provider
or staff member where you were seen.

5. Get reimbursed. After we verify your appointment, we will load your mileage reimbursement

onto a US Bank ReliaCard. This is a Visa prepaid debit card, offered through U.S. Bank. We will
load the funds within 14 business days of receiving your completed form.

140



The first time you request reimbursement, we will create your account and order you a US Bank
ReliaCard prepaid debit card. It could take 7 to 10 business days to arrive. It will come in an
unmarked envelope, and it may appear as though it is junk mail, so please watch for it.

Keep your US Bank ReliaCard safe. We will reload this same card for future reimbursements.
Before you use your card, you will need to activate it. Instructions are with the card. You can
use the card at any location that accepts Visa.

Your mileage reimbursement will be loaded onto the ReliaCard at a rate of $0.25 per mile.

The balance on the card rolls over from month to month. If your ReliaCard goes six months
without being used, it becomes inactive. You would have to ask us to reactivate your ReliaCard
before you could access funds.

If you do not have access to a vehicle and are unable to take public transportation, NW Rides
can schedule vehicle-provided rides for you. We can send a sedan, wheelchair van, stretcher
vehicle or non-emergent ambulance, depending on your medical needs.

A personal care attendant (PCA) can travel with you if needed.

Drivers must make their presence known to you when they arrive. They must wait for you at
least 15 minutes after your scheduled pick-up time. If you are not present within those
15 minutes, drivers must notify the dispatcher before they depart from your pick-up location.

When you call to request a trip, we will ask some questions to make sure you are getting the
right type of transportation. If we are scheduling a ride, we will ask for information such as:
Full starting address and drop off address, including apartment, room, building, floor or suite
number.
* Helpful information for the driver about your pickup location, such as the number of stairs or
whether it's a gated community.
¢ You must notify NW Rides in advance if you are traveling with a personal care attendant or
service animal,
» If you use a mobility device, we may need the measurements of the device and the type (for
example: wheelchair, walker).
* The level of service you need.
If you need a return ride, and what time you expect to need it.

Whenever possible, please call at least 48 business hours before your appointment. This

advance notice helps us with the scheduling process. You can schedule rides up to 90 days
before your appointment. You have the right to request a same-day or next-day ride. However,

K



if your request is on short notice, and demand for rides is high, NW Rides prioritizes medically
urgent requests.

When you have a scheduled ride, your driver will arrive with enough time to get you to your
appointment. Please be ready to go when the driver arrives, but you do not have to
board the vehicle before your scheduled pickup time if you are not ready.

Here are some other timing guidelines:

We may not require you to be at your scheduled appointment more than one hour before
your appointment time.

We will drop you off at least 15 minutes before your appointment time to prevent the drop-
off from being considered late.

We have contingency plans and back-up plans for different circumstances that can affect ride
availability. This may be a time of peak demand, when demand exceeds the supply of vehicles,
or when a scheduled ride is more than 20 minutes late or otherwise unavailable for service.

Drivers are not permitted to drop you off at your appointment location more than 15 minutes
before the office or other facility opens for business.

Drivers are not permitted to drop you off at an appointment less than 15 minutes before the
office or other facility closes for business.

If you are not sure what time you need to go home from your appointment, you can schedule a
will call, or call return. When you are done at your appointment, call the NW Rides call center at
503-861-0657 or toll-free 888-793-0439 to arrange your ride. A driver will arrive within 60
minutes from the time you call. To avoid delays, we encourage you to schedule a pickup time
whenever possible. If you need to cancel or change a ride after scheduling, please let us know
as soon as possible and no later than two hours prior to your scheduled pickup time. We may
not be able to accommodate last-minute changes, but we will always do our best.

t-day requests
We ask that you call us two or more business days before your health care appointment. You
have the right to request a same-day or next-day ride. However, we cannot guarantee same-
day trip requests. Fulfilling a same-day trip request depends on our transportation providers’
capacity and availability.

At times, a transportation provider may be late or unable to pick you up due to traffic or other
reasons. If your ride is late, or there is another issue, please call NW Rides. If that happens, we
will reassign your trip to another provider as soon as possible. We’re working with
transportation providers to make sure extra vehicles are available when they're needed.

Here is how we prioritize same-day trip requests:
+ If you are being discharged from the hospital.
> If a friend or family member can take you to your appointment, we can approve mileage

reimbursement on a same-day basis.



If you can use public transit, we can approve bus tickets or pass.
= If your health care provider asks you to come in the same day for a serious condition. This can
include rides for lab work or other testing.
* A ride to urgent care because you are sick and your primary care provider is not available.
A ride for pregnant members to see their pregnancy provider or go to urgent care.
A sick child to see primary care provider or go to urgent care.
If your health care provider refers you to a specialist.
* You need to pick up a medicine you need right away.

For all other reasons, please make your trip request at least two business days before your
appointment. Services are available 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. You may schedule multiple
trips during one phone call.

Level of service

Upon request, our drivers are able to provide different levels of service to best fit your medical
needs:

¢ Curb-to-curb: Your driver will meet you at the curb of your pickup location.

» Door-to-door: Your driver will meet you at the door or front desk of your pickup location and
escort you to the door or front desk of your drop-off location.

* Hand-to-hand: Your driver will meet you and a member of your care team at your pickup
location, bring you all the way inside at your drop-off location, and remain with you until
someone from your care team takes you the rest of the way.

Whether you use a cane, walker, wheelchair or scooter, or you need stretcher transport, we
can get you to your appointment.

We can provide a ride that accommodates your mobility device, but not every vehicle can
accommodate every type of device. We want to send the vehicle that best fits your needs.

If you ever have a vehicle that arrives and does not match what you need, please call us
immediately.

We ask that you have information regarding the type, size and any other special details about
your mobility device when you call.

This can include things such as:

» Whether it folds.

- The width and length of the device.

» The combined weight of the device when occupied.
» If it has a high back or is reclining.

For stretcher transport, or if you need a wheelchair provided for the ride, we will need to know
your height and weight so we can send the appropriate size.

LE



If you use a scooter, the driver may ask if you want to transfer into a vehicle seat for your own
safety, but you are not required to do so. Mobility aids such as walkers or canes must be safely
stowed in the vehicle after you have been seated. The provider will help you secure your
equipment if necessary. Portable oxygen tanks must be secured while being transported.

You can bring a service animal with you during your rides. A service animal is a dog or miniature
horse that is required because of a disability and that has been trained to do work or perform
tasks for the benefit of the person with a disability.

When you call to schedule your ride, please let us know if you will have a service animal with
you. The Customer Service representatives and drivers may ask you the following questions
regarding your service animal:

What kind of animal is it?
* |s the animal required because of a disability?
= What task has the animal been trained to perform?

Customer Service representatives and drivers can ask only those questions. You have the right
to keep the details of your medical information private. You are not required to disclose any
information beyond those three questions.

All riders must follow safety belt laws. When you call to schedule your ride, please let us know if
you will need a seat belt extension. If you have a safety belt exemption card, please call us to
discuss how we can best assist you. Riders using wheelchairs must use the lap and shoulder
belt.

Shared rides

Rides are not guaranteed to be private and may be shared. Other members may be picked up
or dropped off along the way to your destination. We ask that you always treat other
passengers with respect, and not act in a way that causes a safety risk to anyone in the vehicle.

Secure transport

When a member is in a mental health crisis, the most appropriate type of transportation may
be secure medical transport in a special vehicle. This means a doctor or peace officer
determined that the member is in danger of harming themselves or others, or needs immediate
care, custody or treatment.

When medically appropriate, one other person may go with the member, to give medicine
enroute or meet legal requirements. Examples include, but are not limited to, a parent, legal
guardian or escort.

3

|44



NW Rides will authorize medical secure transports for OHP-covered medical services ordered by
a court, except going to court or commitment hearings (unless there’s no other funded
transportation option) or if the member is in custody.

A no-show happens when you do not take a scheduled ride and did not give enough notice to
cancel the trip.

That includes situations such as:

You cancel a ride less than two hours before your scheduled pickup time.
- You are not ready within 15 minutes of your scheduled pickup time.

You turn a driver away at the door because you don’t need the ride anymore or you don’t
wish to go with that provider.

After a certain number of no-shows, NW Rides may place a service modification on a member’s
profile. A service modification sets special conditions and reasonable restrictions on future
rides. They can include requiring members to use a specific provider, travel with an attendant,
use public transit where available and call to confirm rides before each scheduled trip.

If you feel your ride was marked a no-show by mistake, you can contact Customer Service to
dispute the no-show. Your dispute will be reviewed, and the no-show removed if appropriate.

Children age 12 and under must be accompanied by an adult during transportation. The adult
traveling with the child must be their parent, stepparent, grandparent, legal guardian,
Department of Human Services (DHS) employee or volunteer, Oregon Health Authority (OHA)
employee or an adult 18 years or older identified in writing by the parent or legal guardian as
an attendant.

The adult attendant must provide and install car seats for any children under 8 years old.

We are unable to provide car seats for you, and the driver may not help install or remove a
carseat. You must take the car seat with you when you leave the vehicle, as the driver
cannot keep it in the vehicle for you.

Per Oregon law:
+ A child under 2 years old must sit in a rear-facing car seat.

A child 2 years or older who weighs less than 40 pounds must sit in a car seat.

A child who weighs more than 40 pounds must sit in a booster seat until they are 4 feet, 9
inches or 8 years old and the adult belt fits correctly.

Pharmacy stops

NW Rides can help you get to the pharmacy to pick up prescription medication as an add-on to
an existing trip, either before or after your appointment.

195



If you need to go to the pharmacy before or after an appointment, we can provide bus fare,
mileage reimbursement or a vehicle-provided ride. For vehicle-provided rides, you have the
option of having the driver wait 15 minutes, or you can call when you are ready to be picked up.

If you need to go to the pharmacy only, to pick up medication right away, we may be able to
help get you there. Please refer to same-day prioritization section for more information on
stand-alone pharmacy trip requests.

If you need transportation to a Columbia Pacific CCO-covered appointment that is not available
within Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties, we can work with you to see if we can
provide transportation to that appointment.

In some cases, we may also be able to provide meal and lodging stipends based on travel times
and appointment duration.

Meal stipends are $3 per breakfast, $3.50 per lunch and $5.50 per dinner.
Lodging stipends are up to $40 a night.

Anything beyond those allowances must be covered by the member, so please plan accordingly
if you are approved for meal and lodging stipends.

NW Rides will get you there

We have a process for reviewing requests for travel expenses for care outside of our service
area. When approved in advance, we may reimburse certain travel expenses or provide a travel
stipend. As soon as you schedule a health care appointment that is out of the area, please call
NW Rides to give us time to review your request. We will first check if it is medically
appropriate to go outside of the service area for your care. If we approve your out-of-area
appointment, we then need time to schedule the necessary pieces of your trip.

You can call up to 90 days in advance to request an out-of-area trip. You have up to 45 days
after the appointment for NW Rides to receive your completed reimbursement form.

When you call to request a trip to an appointment outside of Columbia, Tillamook and Clatsop
counties, we will need some information.

This will help us decide if the trip falls within our out-of-area coverage guidelines:
Your first and last name.
* Your Member ID number.
Your date of birth.
» Full starting and destination addresses, including apartment and suite numbers (if applicable).
s Facility name, provider’s name and provider’s phone number.

&l



Reason for the appointment.
« Date and time of the appointment.

How long you will need to stay.
* If you will have a mobility device or attendant.
¢ The type of transportation you are requesting, such as vehicle transport, air travel or mileage
reimbursement.

A good call-back number.
After we review and verify the trip information, we will contact you to let you know whether
your trip is approved or denied. If the trip is approved, we will provide all the details for your
transportation and set you up with a Focus card for reimbursement.

Emergencies

If you experience a medical emergency, please call 911 or have someone take you to the
nearest emergency room.

If you have an emergency during your ride, please notify your driver. Your driver can call 911.
NW Rides does not provide emergency transportation.

Driver screening

We screen our drivers. They undergo criminal background checks and are subject to specific
credentialing requirements. Transportation services are provided only in vehicles that meet
certain safety and comfort standards, such as featuring safety belts, fire extinguishers and first
aid kits. The vehicles are smoke-free, clean and free of debris.

Adverse weather plan :

If you need critical medical care during a time of adverse weather conditions, we have a plan to
serve you. Examples of critical medical care include, but are not limited to, kidney

dialysis and chemotherapy infusions. Adverse weather conditions include, but are not limited
to, extreme heat, extreme cold, flooding, tornado warnings, heavy snowfall and icy roads.

Your rights & responsibilities

As a NW Rides user, you have the right to:

L. Receive safe and reliable transportation services that are appropriate for your needs.

J. Ask for interpretation services when talking to Customer Service and request NW Rides
materials in a language or format that meets your needs.

1. File grievances about your NW Rides experience.

I. Submit an appeal, ask for a hearing, or ask for both if you feel you have been denied a service
unfairly.

As a NW Rides passenger, your responsibilities include:
1. Treating drivers and other passengers with respect.

Calling us as early as possible to schedule, change or cancel your transportation.
i. Using seat belts and other safety equipment as required by Oregon law.



Riders who cause a safety risk or misuse the service may receive a service modification. If this
happens, we will work with you to find other options to help you get to your appointments.

Neither we nor Columbia Pacific CCO may bill you for transport to or from covered medical
services, even if we denied reimbursement for the transportation service.

A grievance is any expression of dissatisfaction and may be filed about any aspect of NW Rides’
services or processes. Your authorized representative may file a grievance on your behalf. If you
have an issue or a concern about any experience you have with NW Rides or your trips, you
have the right to file a grievance. Grievances can be about things such as, but not limited to,
being denied a service, driver or vehicle safety, the quality of service you received, whether you
received the appropriate type of service or your access to services.

You can file a grievance or submit other feedback by calling NW Rides during office hours. A
letter will be sent to you within five business days of your grievance. If more time is needed to
investigate your grievance, an extension letter will be sent to you within 30 days.

Neither we nor Columbia Pacific CCO will preclude you from making complaints or grievances
that you've made previously, or from filing or submitting, the same complaint or grievance to
both us and Columbia Pacific CCO.

If you feel you have been denied service unfairly, you have the right to an appeal, a hearing or
both. If you are denied a service, NW Rides will tell you verbally why the request was denied.

Before mailing a notice of adverse benefit determination to you, Columbia Pacific CCO must
provide a secondary review by another employee when the initial screener denies a ride.

Within 72 hours of denial, Columbia Pacific CCO shall mail a notice of adverse benefit
determination to you (the member denied the ride) and to the provider or other third-party
with whom you had scheduled an appointment.

You can find more information about your rights in your Member Handbook.

You should always attempt to resolve concerns through NW Rides directly. However, if we are
unable to resolve your concern, you may contact Columbia Pacific CCO Customer Service at
855-722-8206, or Oregon Medicaid Client Services toll-free at 800-273-0557.

Member confidentiality

Discussing or providing member information, except for necessary business purposes, is strictly
prohibited. Your privacy is important to us. We will keep your information private as required
by law.

a9



Language & format support

If you need this guide in a different language or format, please contact us at 503-488-2822 or
toll-free at 855-722-8206; TTY 711.

You can request an interpreter when you call, if needed.

NW Rides manages this benefit on behalf of your CCO, Columbia Pacific CCO. If you need to
contact Columbia Pacific CCO directly, please note the following ways:

Address: 315 SW Fifth Ave, Portland, OR 97204

Phone: 503-488-2822 or toll-free 855-722-8205; TTY 711

Text message: 503-488-2886

Hours: 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday; closed holidays

Online: colpachealth.org



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the to )
General Manager to Execute an ODOT )
CARES Act Grant Agreement #34734 )
to Expand Dial-A-Ride Services ) RESOLUTION NO. 21-11

WHEREAS, the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(“CARES”) Act provides emergency assistance and health care response for individuals,
families, and businesses affected by the novel coronavirus, COVID-19, pandemic and
provides emergency appropriations to support agency operations during the pandemic;
and

WHEREAS, the CARES Act permits funds to be made available to transit agencies
to maintain service and lost revenue, including the purchase of protective equipment and
paid administrative leave; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) applied for an
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) CARES Act grant application to expand
general public dial-a-ride services to include riders of Veterans’ Affairs (DAV) and NW
Senior Disabled Services (NWSDS) not receiving rides due to COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of
Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, desires to provide and the District desires
to accept grant funds in an amount not to exceed $643,760 to provide expanded dial-a-
ride services throughout the region; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District’'s Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute ODOT Grant
Agreement #34734 with the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of
Transportation.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 18™ day of March, 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Jim Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

200

45039-27477 4852-6836-1167.1



EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH
ITS DEPARMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION
AND TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORATION DISTRICT
AGREEMENT No. 34734

20l

45039-27477 4852-6836-1167.1



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 34734
Operating 5311

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and
through its Department of Transportation, Public Transportation Division, hereinafter referred to as
"State," and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient,”
and collectively referred to as the "Parties."

AGREEMENT

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of March 1, 2021 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for
Project Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2023 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are
available for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant
Funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Budget
Exhibit B: Financial Information
Exhibit C: Subcontractor Insurance

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements, incorporating by reference Annual
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants
and Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal Transit
Administration Master Agreement

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.331(a), may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/, Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), as
the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement,
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence
to lowest precedence: Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit
B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match. The total project cost is estimated at $643,760.00. In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall provide Recipient an
amount not to exceed $643,760.00 in Grant Funds for eligible costs described in Section 6.a.
hereof. Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs as described in Exhibit A.

4. Project. The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the Project described in Exhibit A and shall
not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any changes to the
Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant to Section 11.d
hereof.

5. Progress Reports. Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later than
45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period. Reporting periods are July through
September, October through December, January through March, and April through June.
Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into the Oregon Public
Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at https://www.oregon.gov/odot/
RPTD/Pages/index.aspx. If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be delivered
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Reports shall include a statement of revenues and
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be

Page 1 of 18 20?_



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements.
6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.

a.

Disbursement Generally. State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out
the Project, up to the Grant Fund amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement
described in Section 9.a. of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are
not excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as
a result of financial review or audit.

Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that is
acceptable to and approved by State. Recipient must submit its final request for
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within
60 days after the Expiration Date could result in non-payment.

Recovery of Grant Funds. Any funds disbursed to Recipient under this Agreement
that are expended in violation or contravention of one or more of the provisions of
this Agreement ("Misexpended Funds") or that remain unexpended on the earlier of
termination or expiration of this Agreement must be returned to State. Recipient shall
return all Misexpended Funds to State promptly after State's written demand and no later
than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return all Unexpended Funds
to State within 14 days after the earlier of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient. Recipient represents and warrants to State
as follows:

a.

C.

Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has
full power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient
of this Agreement.

Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

No Solicitation. Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor

Page 2 of 18 O

N

—



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

No Debarment. Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred,
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes.

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.

a.

Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper
and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State,
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition,
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents,
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents,
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds or the
Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required by
other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. If
there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall
retain the records until the questions are resolved.

Expenditure Records. Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds
disbursed by State under this Agreement. Recipient shall create and maintain all
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

Audit Requirements.

i. Recipients receiving federal funds in excess of $750,000 are subject to audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Recipient,
if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own expense submit to State,
Rail and Public Transit Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon,
97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic
link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, the annual audit
of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible
for the financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of any audits
or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the funds
expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that any audit
costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are
ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between Recipient
and State.

Page 3 of 18 q

o4



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a. Subagreements. Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient agrees to provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement upon
request by State. Any substantial breach of a term or condition of a subagreement
relating to funds covered by this Agreement must be reported by Recipient to State
within ten (10) days of its being discovered.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance
manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.html

c. Subagreement indemnity; insurance

Recipient’'s subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and its
officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions,
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising from
a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of
the other party to Recipient's subagreement or any of such party's officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors ("Claims"). It is the specific intention of
the Parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely
from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
the other party to Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all
Claims.

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's subrecipient(s),
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively "Subrecipients"), nor any attorney
engaged by Recipient's Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State
or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the
State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon
Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, assume its own defense
and settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited
from defending State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best
interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against
Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain
insurance of the types and in the amounts provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Any
insurance obtained by the other party to Recipient's subagreements, if any, shall not
relieve Recipient of the requirements of Section 11 of this Agreement. The other party to
any subagreement with Recipient, if the other party employs subject workers as defined
in ORS 657.027, must obtain Workers Compensation Coverage as described in Exhibit C.

d. Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. all applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

il. all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open
competition;

Page 4 of 18

205



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

iii. procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or proposals (with exception of
locally controlled licensing requirements);

iv. construction, architectura! and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C.125.

10. Termination

a. Termination by State. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal;
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the
approval of State.

b. Termination by Recipient. Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be
established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at
least ten days notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions

a. Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding
alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against
State or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver
to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party
Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a
Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for
the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party
Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party’s liability
with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would
be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is appropriate
to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the Recipient on the other

Page 5 of 18

20l



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative
fault of State on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined
by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State’s contribution amount in any
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law,
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability
in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments,
fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge,
access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount
in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability
in the proceeding.

b. Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute
arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

¢. Responsibility for Grant Funds. Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient's breach of the
conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmless and indemnify State for an
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received
under this Agreement.

d. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written
instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.

e. Duplicate Payment. Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or
any other party, organization or individual.

f. No Third Party Beneficiaries. State and Recipient are the only Parties to this
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the
this Agreement.

g. Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth

Page 6 of 18



Titlamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 11.g. Any communication
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

h. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

i. Compliance with Law. Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation
as described in Exhibit D.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and
state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

j. Insurance; Workers' Compensation. All employers, including Recipient, that employ
subject workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS
656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employer's liability insurance with coverage
limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.

k. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State. Recipient has no right or authority
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way. State cannot and
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except
as specifically set forth in this Agreement. Recipient is responsible for determining the
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent” of State, as those terms
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the
contrary.

|. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term
or provision held to be invalid.

m. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart.

n. Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein
regarding this Agreement. The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of

Page 7 of 18

2 0%



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges

that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

Page 8 of 18

104



Tilamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation
Order Number OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of
Transportation to administer programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which
delegates the authority to approve this Agreement to the Public Transportation
Division Administrator.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

Page 9 of 18 '2_[ O



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 34734

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By

(Legally designated representative)

Name

(printed)

Date

By

Name

(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By

Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:

Doug Pilant

3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
dpilant@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:

Arla Miller

555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

1 (503) 949-5415
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
Karyn Criswell
Public Transportation Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 03/12/2021

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

By

Assistant Attorney General

Name Marvin Fjordbeck by email
(printed)

Date 03/13/2017

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us

Page 10 of 18

2\

A=



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 34734

Project Description/Statement of Work

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget

Project Title: CARES 5311 (NB) Tillamook County TD 34734
Provide relief from expenses incurred in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Item #1: Operating Assistance

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$643,760.00 $643,760.00 $0.00
Sub Total $643,760.00 $643,760.00 $0.00
Grand Total $643,760.00 $643,760.00 $0.00

1. BACKGROUND

The federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act provides emergency
assistance and health care response for individuals, families, and businesses affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic and provides emergency appropriations to support agency operations
during the pandemic. Funds provided under the CARES Act are available for transit agencies
to maintain service and lost revenue, including the purchase of protective equipment and paid
administrative leave.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides financial support for general public transportation services in the state
of Oregon to provide relief from expenses incurred in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

3. PROJECT DELIVERABLES and EXPENSE TYPES

Funding may be used for projects to prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19. Although
operational expenses are the priority, all expenses normally eligible under the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Formula Grants to Rural Areas Program incurred on or after
January 20, 2020 are considered to be in response to economic or other conditions caused by
COVID-19 and thus are eligible under this Agreement. Normally-eligible expenses include those
for operating, preventive maintenance, project administration, contracted services, and capital
purchases. There is no limit to the percentage of funds that may be used for any category of
expense.

Specific eligible expenses under the CARES Act include operating costs to maintain service,
lost revenue due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, purchase of personal protective
equipment associated with response to the pandemic, administrative leave salaries for
personnel, and cleaning and sanitizing equipment and supplies.

Ineligible expenses under the Section 5311 program may be reimbursed if an FTA waiver is
obtained. Waiver requests are managed by State and results are posted on State's website.
Waivers may be implemented during the Agreement period.

Operating Expenses

In general, operating expenses are those costs necessary to operate, maintain, and manage a
public transportation system. Operating expenses include such costs as driver salaries, fuel, and
items having a useful life of less than one year, including personal protective equipment and
cleaning supplies. See Chapter III of the FTA Circular 9040.1G (Formula Grants for Rural Areas)
for more information on eligible operating expenses.

Recipient shall expand Dial-A-Ride services in Oregon to include riders who were left without

rides due to the Oregon Department of Veterans' Affairs (DAV) and NorthWest Senior and
Disabled Services (NWSDS) not providing rides due to COVID-19. Recipient shall keep the

Page 11 of 18

yRAYA



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

service open to the general public, following the Oregon Health Authority guidelines of physical
distancing.

4. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING

Generally accepted accounting principles and Recipient's own accounting system determine
those costs that are to be accounted for as gross operating expenses. Recipient may not count
the same costs twice if they have multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.
The contractor may use capital equipment funded from USDOT- or State-source grants when
performing services rendered through a contract funded by this Agreement. Depreciation of
capital equipment funded from USDOT- or State-source grants is not an eligible expense.

Recipient will subtract revenue from fares, tickets, and passes, ejther pre-paid or post-paid, from
the gross operating expense of service.

Projects completed under this Agreement will be reimbursed at 100 percent. There is no local
match requirement.

If Recipient receives federal funding, directly or indirectly, from insurance proceeds, the
Federal Emergency Management Agency, the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act, or a different federal agency for any portion of a project activity funded under
this Agreement, Recipient will provide written notification to State. State will then deduct that
amount from this Agreement to reimburse FTA for that federal share that duplicates funding
provided by FEMA, another federal agency, or an insurance company.

5. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

Reimbursement requests may be submitted no more frequently than monthly. Grant Funds
provided under this Agreement must be expended by the Expiration Date. The Expiration Date
may be extended if local circumstances change; however, there is no guarantee of an extension.

Recipient shall track rides provided due to the expansion of Dial-A-Ride service covered under
this Agreement, over and above what had been typically given. This will mean tracking veteran
riders who would have normally been given a ride on the DAV van, as well as tracking rides that
would have normally been given through NWSDS. Ride tracking documentation can consist of

a spreadsheet detailing the number of rides, how the passenger would have travelled prior to
COVID-19, and the cost of each ride.

Expenses incurred will not be reimbursed if the project's scope is changed or altered without the
necessary approval and amendment by State.

Page 12 of 18



Tilamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:

Federal Program
49 U.S.C. 5311

Federal Funding Agency

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Administration

915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA 98174

CFDA Number
20.509 (5311)

Total Federal Funding
$643,760.00

Administered By

Public Transportation Division
555 13th Street NE
Salem, OR 97301-4179

Page 13 of 18

214



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

EXHIBIT C

Insurance Requirements

GENERAL - SUBRECIPIENT.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance

under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout
the duration of the subagreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. In
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier"
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers'
compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subcontract. Coverage must
be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as
professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous

115

Page 14 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made"
coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following
the later of: (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's acceptance of all Services required
under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail"
coverage and if the maximum time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace
is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may request and State may
grant approval of the maximum "tail" coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.
If State approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail” coverage for the maximum time
period that "tail" coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to Recipient before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are
endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the
extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

GENERAL - RECIPIENT.

Recipient shall: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS (except TYPES AND
AMOUNTS paragraph I applies only to Recipient's subcontractors who employ subject workers)
and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under this
Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of this
Agreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized
to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are
acceptable to State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide Workers'
Compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

Page 15 of 18 Z] LQ



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage must be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as
professional liability insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims
made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is
on or before the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later
of: (i) Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement
or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing 24-month requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail” coverage and if the maximum
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail"
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient
shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to State before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits
of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance
for all required insurance before the effective date of this Agreement . The certificate(s) or an
attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy
as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

Page 16 of 18



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

EXHIBIT D

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and
Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances") and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any,
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances
available at www.transit.dot.gov. The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement
and the funds described in Exhibit A:

1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. §
2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21,
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex,
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement.
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26
and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may,
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient,
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems
appropriate.

5. By executing the Agreement, Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in
federal funds, other than Indian tribes, certify to State that they have not and will not use
federal funds to pay for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any federal department or Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other

Page 17 of 18

219



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 34734

federal award as well as the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification
of any federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other federal award. This
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code.
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. If non-federal
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking
a congressional earmark.

Page 18 of 18



NELSON
NYGAARD

MEMORANDUM
To: Doug Pilant, Tillamook County Transportation District

From: Cristina Barone and Oren Eshel, Nelson\Nygaard
Date: March 11, 2021
Subject: Fare Analysis Project Update

The Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD)fare analysis provides a comprehensive review of
the current fare structure and policies for The Wave, analyzed fare scenarios, and provides fare structure
and policy recommendations. TCTD is interested in making changes to fare and/orservice policies
effective Summer 2021, coordinated with itslaunch of the Ecolane Deviated Fixed-Route module.

The fare analysis includesa review of:
= Existingfare policies
= Relevant fare-related best practices
= Potential impacttoridershipand revenue of modeled fare scenarios
= Fare and policy recommendations

Fare recommendationsincorporate resultsfrom reviewing national best practices, evaluation of fare
scenarios, refining concepts with agency staff, and input from the public and stakeholders.

621 SW MORRISONST,, SUITE 1250 PORTLAND, OR 97205  503-227-3463  FAX 503-228-2320
www.nelsonnygaard.com

/20



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook County Transportafion District

PROJECT GOALS

Specific goalsand objectives forthe fare study are summarized as follows:

Simplify and streamline fare structure
Coordination and seamless integration with other providers
Increase ridership while balancing fare revenue

Establish performance metrics, including average subsidy per trip and farebox
recovery

Evaluate alternatives to in-county multi-zone fare structure
Explore new fare media, including mobile and electronic ticketing

Educate operators, board, and public on fares and fare policies

00000600

EXISTING CONDITIONS ASSESSMENT

This analysisreviews existing fare structure and policies for TCTD, as well as summarizes revenue trends,
fare media usage, otherregionalfare policies and practices, and rider demographicsto determine
opportunities formodifications to fare policiesand structure. For reference, Figure 1 illustrates existing
services andfare zones.

Analysisfindingsare includedin Appendix A.
Select opportunities to improve the fare structure include the following:

= Discount policies and age thresholds canbe simplified and made consistent across all routes
= Inconsistent zoneboundariesacrossservices maybe confusingforriders
= Potential opportunityto better marketvisitor pass for passengers usingtransit alongthe coast
— gand7-Day Visitor passes have low usage compared to Route 5 ridership
= Offermore ways to purchase fare products, induding online or mobile ticket options
= Considerintercounty and additional interagency passoptions
= Consider potential for fare reciprocity among partner providers
*  Some peeragenciesoffer additional pass and discountoptions
= Mostlocal services atpeeragenciesare a flatfare
= Streamlining passengerinformation can make the fare structure more understandable forriders

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 2

27



(Jeoipaw 1deoxa) suoz
yoea uiyum Ajuo sduj -
DOUBADPE UI'DEAISSSY «

PRI VONeOdsuR |
Kiunoz woowsjy |

(503 ss0us = auy SOPIM)
SO —
3du) OOL e

=
_ funo) yinos

A Auno) enua;
S 3

Kunoj .E.oz

(Aunoj ynog pue ‘lenusa) ‘Yyuon)
apry-e-jeid

¢ | "ouy sejepossy Bupnsuo) pieeBAN|UOSON

sdojs payuwi| ‘aouelsip-Buo .
S9ie) PISBQ-oU07

pamojje suoneinaqg
salie] paseq-auQz .

_ Auno ujooury

Auno) uoour'] .

{X0. “%09 ‘s a1n0y)
a)noy-paxid Aloaiajul

(v ‘¢ ‘¢ ‘1 @wnoy)
9lN0oY-paxid pajeirnaqg
S991AI9G pue ssuozale Buisixg L 8inbi4

JousIq uotedodsues | fiunon joowej |
F1VAdN LD3rOAUd SISATYNY 3dvd

222,



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Titamook County Transportation District

STAKEHOLDER FOCUS GROUPS: EXISTING CONDITIONS (FALL 2020)

Two focus group meetings (10 people) were held on September 15 and 16, 2020 to obtain inputfrom
TCTID stakeholders on topicsrelated to the fare study, indluding the zone structure, fare media, and
discounts. The discussionincluded general feedback on TCTD’sexisting services and op portunities for the
District. Focusgroup participantsincluded members representing the following agencies:

Tillamook County Community Action Resource Enterprises
Tides of Change

Tillamook County Veterans Services

Oregon Health Authority VISTA

Rinehart Clinic

Marie Mills Center

Northwest Seniorand Disability Services

ODOT PublicTransportation Division

Columbia PacificCoordinated Care Organization

Lincoln County Transit

Highlightsfrom the focus groups relevant to the fare analysisare provided in Figure 2.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 4

725



FAREANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Figure 2 Summary of Fare-Related Focus Group Comments

' Category I Findings

= Zonesarearbitrary, cutoffs are challenging {pecple need multiple tokens)

»  People would be delighted to pay a little more to be able to travel outside the existing

Farezones z0nes
= Amileage-based fare seems confusing and could get expensive

= Simplicity should be the goal

= More passes are needed; look for options to fund more passes (PUD donation
program)

= Would be concerned about eliminating tokens/passes (some people don't use
internet/smartphones)

= Multiple options/flexibility to pay fare are beneficial (e.g., credit card, enable buying
tickets/passes electronically, change machine at transit center)

Fare media/options

Fare policies = Consider modifying accompanying child policies

= Consider programslike the following:

o “Honored Citizens” pass (including Medicare/Medicaid and disabled
veterans).

Low-income; ability to apply for discounted access

Fare capping

Youth pass program (through school districts and charter schools)
o Children under 5 or 6 yearsride free

Discount programs

o O O

Pass{flogiatie = Expandemployer pass programs (PUD, CheeseF actory, Smoker) where employers

provide bus passes
Cross-county = Farereciprocity would be beneficial (works with pass but not one-way fare)
connections = FEasfer to establish on agency-by-agency basis than allat once
Freefares = Stronginterest/support
Teghhloty = Support for mobile ticketing as a convenient option for most riders (as long as other

options are maintained); people aredoing this for sports and other events

FARE SCENARIO EVALUATION AND RESULTS

Fare scenarios combine select concepts that can be compared againstone another. These scenariosare
preliminary andintended to test alternative approaches; optionsin some scenarios carried through tobe
part ofthe finalrecommendations, while others did not. Thissection describes the ridership and revenue
impacts of sevenspecific scenarios.

Approach and Assumptions

The fare modeldeveloped for this project is based on existing ridership and revenue data (FY2018) and
assumptionson average fare per passenger foreach fare product. Thisinformation is then used asa
baseline to understand order of magnitude changesto fare revenuesandridership asa resultof pricingor
structuralchanges.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 5

724



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tiltamook County Transportation District

Consumptionoftransit, like other goods and services, reactsto cost. Significant research overtime has
examined the sensitivity of transit ridership to fareincreases. In transit, the standard measurement of
sensitivity tofare changesmeansthat forevery10%increasein fares, ridership will decrease by 3% (and
vice-versa).

As such, elasticity factorsare common in fare modeling, as they define the price sensitivity of riders to fare
changes. An elastic factor suggestsa larger change in ridership relative to a fare change. Aninelasticfactor
suggestsa relatively small change in ridership relative to a fare change. The model accountsforthree
elasticityfactors:

= Arelativelyinelasticfactor (-0.33), which is consistent with industry standardsforregular fares

» A'reduced”elasticity factor (-0.21) to account for observations associated with student, elderly,
and disabled patrons

Using theseelasticity factors, ridership changes (ona fare product basis) are determined from the
proposed fareincrease or decrease. A newaverage fare for each fare productis also calculated from the
percentage change in the fare productprice. Finally, multiplying the newridership estimate by the new
averagefare producesa revenue estimate forthatfare product.

It should be cautioned thatany estimation model is anapproximation based on a set of assumptionsand
is highly dependent on accurate datainputsto ensure quality outputs. The fare modelbases ridership and
revenue changes strictly on price variation. Qualitative factors such as customer simplicity or other factors
are not considered herebutare certainly factors in reality thatinfluence ridership and revenue levels.
Basedon the perceived simplicity gains, it is likely that ridership benefitsin each alternative are
understated. As a result, the findings from thisanalysis are simply estimates but offer a valuable means to
comparedifferentalternatives against one another,

Fare Scenarios

Seven different scenarios for fare structure and pricing changes were developed to evaluate potential
impacts to TCTDridership and revenue. Fare scenarios are listed below and compared to project goals in
Figure 3.
*  Scenario1— Focuson Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare
- 1A:IncludingRoute s
— 1B:NotincludingRoute 5
= Scenario 2 — Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone Fare
— 2A:Including Route s
— 2B:Notincluding Routes
»  Scenario 3 — Focuson Increasing Ridership
»  Scenario4— Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds
—  4A:Target15%
- 4B:Target20%
= Scenario5— Focus on Regional Fare Integration
= Scenario 6 — Implement Low-Income Fare Program
e Scenario?7— Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 6

i



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook County Transportafion District

ProposedFare Scenarios for Evaluation

Figure3

Simplify
and
streamline
fare
structure

Proposed Fare Scenarios

Coordination/
seamless
integration
with other
providers

Project Goals

Increase
ridership
while
balancing
fare
revenue

Establish
performance
metrics,
including
average
subsidy per
trip and
farebox
recovery

Evaluate
alternatives
toin-county

zonefare

Focus on Simplicity: Implement
Flat Fare

11" Emphasize; simplicity by
implementing a flat fare across
service types

= Align discount policies

v

Focus on Simplicity: Implement
Streamlined Zone Fare

2 | = Maintain zone fares but simplify
where possible

= Align discount policies

Focus on Increasing Ridership

3|« Modify fare structure to increase
ridership

Achieve Farebox Recovery
Thresholds

4| Modify fare structure to increase

fareboxrecovery and achieve

15% and 20% thresholds

Focus on Regional Fare
Integration

5 | = Align TCTD fares with pricing and

discount practices at other NW

Connector agencies, to the extent

feasible

ImplementLow-Income Fare
Program

6 | = Implement low-income fare

program at 200% of the federal

poverty level

Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-
Ride Fare

= |mplement Dial-a-Ride fare option

based on trip distance

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 7

220



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Initial Fare Scenario Results Summary

The relative ridership and revenue changesfor each scenario forare shownin Figure 4 and Figure 5. The
fare structure andresulting ridership and revenue impactsforeach scenario are described in further
detail in the remainder of this section.

Figured Fare Scenario Ridership and Revenue Change

Changein | Ridership. | Changein | Revenue %

Ridership | % Change | Revenue Change

1A.Focus on Simplicity: ImplementFlat Fare

(including Route 5) 7,000 5.0% -$117,000 -42.5%
1B. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare (not

including Route 5) 4,000 3.3% -$41,000 -14.8%
2A. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone

Fare (including Route 5) 3,000 24% -§73,000 -28.3%
2B. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamiined Zone G

Fare (notincluding Route 5) 1008 0.9% -$11,000 4.0

3. Focus on Increasing Ridership 11,000 8.1% -$47,000 -17.3%
4A. Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds - 15% -12,000 -9.0% $35,000 12.7%
4B. Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds - 20% -38,000 -28.6% $94,000 34.3%
5. Focus on Regional Fare Integration 7,000 5.1% 4,000 1.4%

8. Implement Low-Income Fare Program 3,000 2.1% -$19,000 -7.0%
7. Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare 0 0.0% $6,000 2.1%

Figure5 Fare Scenario Ridership and Revenue Change (Chart)

$150,000
~ Scenario4c
$100,000 %
— Scenario 4b
[¢}]
£ $50,000 ‘
3+ 3 ;
,_'E e"— Scenario Ja’“m Scenarflc/>_7 Scenario 5
2 50 ¥
o Scenario 2b . .
3 r : ~—— Scenario 6
o -$50,000 Scefario ~ Scenario 3
nw - Seenario 2a
-$100,000
- Scenario 1a
-$150,000
-50,000 -40,000 -30,000 -20,000 -10,000 0 10,000 20,000

Ridership Change

Nelsom\Nygaard Consulting Assoclates Inc. | 8

L0



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 1A: Focus on Simplicity — Implement Flat Fare (including Route 5)

The goal of the flat fare scenario is to provide a simplified fare structure in which the same flat rate fare is
chargedregardless of service type. This scenario includes Route 5 as partof thatassumption. While a flat
fare would simplify the customer experience and improve a regional approach to transit, the steep
financial impacts may be prohibitive for this approach. The revision of the TCTD fare structure is
estimatedto resultin a 7,000 (5.0%) ridership gain and $117,000 (-42.5%) revenueloss. The fare
structureis providedin Figure 6.

Figure 6 Scenario 1A Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75

Deviated §
-fixed Cash —Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30

¢ Cash — Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash —Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75

LG Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75

PDX one-way $1.50 $0.75

PDX round-trip 33 $1.50

Cash one zone $4 $2

Cash multi-zone $4 $2

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 9

22%



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 1B: Focus on Simplicity — Implement Flat Fare (including Route 5)

The goal of the flat fare scenario is to provide a simplified fare structure in which the sameflatrate fare is
chargedregardless of service type. This scenario excludes Route 5 as part of that assumption, which has a
significantimpacton revenue compared with Scenario 1A. Therevision of the TCTD fare structure is
estimated toresultin a 4,000 (3.3%) ridership gainand $41,000(-14.8%) revenueloss. The fare structure
is providedin Figure 7.

Figure7 Scenario 1B Fare Structure
Cash — Trip within one zone _ $1.50 $0.75
Cash —Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75
Deviated
-fixed . Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
routes 3
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30
Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75
[ Gl Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
PDX one-way $15 $7.50
. PDX round-trip $20 $10
Cash one zone %4 $2
Cash multi-zone $4 $2

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 10

ety



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 2A: Focus on Simplicity — Implement Streamlined Zone Fare (including Route
5)

A streamlined zone fare would simplify the regionalfare structure, while allowing some services to
continue charging a higherrate than local service. While a streamlined zone fare would simplify the
customer experience and improve a regionalapproach to transit, the steep financial impacts may be
prohibitive for thisapproach. The revision of the TCTD fare structure is estimated to resultin a 3,000
(2.4%) ridership gainand $73,000(-26.7%)revenue loss. The fare structure is providedin Figure 8.

Figure8 Scenario 2A Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75

Deviated
fixed . Cash — Trip across three zones $4 $2
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30

Cash —Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash — Trip across two zones $4 $2

111 f<1388 Cash — Trip across three zones $4 $2

PDX one-way 54 $2

PDX round-trip 54 : $2

Cash one zone $4 $2

Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 11

130



FAREANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 2B: Focus on Simplicity — Implement Streamlined Zone Fare (not including

Route 5)

Astreamlined zone fare would simplify the regional fare structure, while allowing some services to
continue charging a higherrate than local service. Thisscenario excludes Route 5 as partof that
assumption, which hasa significantimpact on revenue compared with Scenario 2A. The revision of the
TCTD fare structureis estimated to resultin a 1,000 (0.9%) ridership gainand $11,000 (-4.0%) revenue
loss. The fare structureis provided in Figure 9.

Figure9

Scenario 2B Fare Structure

Deviated
-fixed
routes

intercity

Cash — Trip withinone zone
Cash —Trip across two zones
Cash — Trip across three zones
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass

Monthly Pass

. Cash — Trip withinone zone

Cash —Trip across two zones
Cash — Trip across three zones
PDX one-way

PDX round-trip

Cash one zone

Cash multi-zone

$1.50 $0.75
$1.50 $0.75
$4 $2
$1.50 $0.75
$40 $30
$1.50 $0.75
$4 $2
$4 $2
$15 $7.50
$20 $10
$4 $2
$12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 12

23



FAREANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 3: Focus on Increasing Ridership

This scenariotakesan iterative approach to adjusting fares until pricesare such thatridershipis
maximized and nolongerincreases with subsequent decreases in fare price. This scenario also assumes
that fareswould not be reducedsolow asto provide fare free service and that passmultipliers must
remain within peer agencybest practices. The revision of the TCTD fare structure is estimated to result in
an 11,000 (8.1%) ridership gainand $47,000(-17.3%) revenue loss. The fare structure is providedin

Figure 10.

Figure10 Scenario 3 Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone

Cash - Trip across two zones

Deviated
-fixed - Cash —Trip across three zones
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass
Monthly Pass

Cash — Trip withinone zone
Cash — Trip across two zones
L1108 Cash — Trip across three zones
PDX one-way

PDX round-trip

Cash one zone

Cash multi-zone

Full Fare Reduced Fare

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 13

$1 ' $0.50
$2.50 $1.25
54 $2
$1 $0.50
$40 $20
$1 $0.50
$2 $1
$4 $2
$10 $5
$15 $7.50
$4 $2
$12.50 $12.50

L5



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tiflamook County Transportation District

Scenario 4A: Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds—159%

Similarto Scenario 3, thisscenario takes an iterative approach to adjusting faresand pass multipliers
until pricesare such thatfarebox recovery rate is maximized and no longerincreases with subsequent
increasesin fare price. The maximized fare for this scenario was designed to achieve 15% farebox
recovery.The revision of the TCTD fare structure is estimated to resultin a 12,000 (-9.0%) ridershiploss
and $35,000(12.7%) revenue gain. The fare structure is provided in Figure 11.

Figure 11 Scenario 4A Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone

Full Fare Reduced Fare

Cash — Trip across two zones

Deviated

-fixed Cash —Trip across three zones

routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass

Monthly Pass

Cash- Trip within one zone

Cash - Trip across two zones

Intercity

Cash — Trip across three zones
PDX one-way

PDX round-trip

Cash one zone

Cash multi-zone

Nelson\WNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 14

$2 | $1
$3.50 $1.75
$5 $2.50
$2 $1
$55 $40
$2.50 $1.25
$4 $2
$7 $3.50
$15 $7.50
$30 $15
$5 $2.50
$12.50 $12.50

35



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamock County Transportation District

Scenario 4B: Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds — 20%

Similarto Scenario3, thisscenario takesan iterative approach to adjusting faresand pass multipliers
until pricesare such thatfareboxrecoveryrateis maximized and nolonger increases with subsequent
increasesin fare price. The maximized fare for this scenario was designed to achieve 20% farebox
recovery. The revision of the TCTD fare structure is estimated to resultin a 38,000 (-28.6%) ridership
loss and $94,000 (34.3%) revenue gain. The fare structureis provided in Figure 12.

Figure 12 Scenario 4B Fare Structure

Cash —Trip withinone zone $2.50 I $1.25

Cash —Trip across two zones $5 $2.50

Deviated ‘
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones 58 : $4
routes ‘

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $3.50 $1.75

Monthly Pass $80 | $60

Cash — Trip within one zone $2.50 $1.25

Cash — Trip across two zones $5 $2.50

[11{7741v Cash — Trip across three zones | $8 $4

PDX one-way $25 $12.50

PDX round-trip $40 $20

Cash one zone $10 $5

Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 15

L3N



FARE ANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook Ceunty Transportation District

Scenario 5: Focus on Regional Fare Integration

This scenarioevaluated the ridership and revenue impacts of simplifying the regional fare structure by

modifying TCTD faresto more closely align with Sunset Empire Transportaion District’sfare structure.

Nearly allfare pricing was modified. The revisionof the TCTD fare structure is estimated toresultin a

7,000 (5.1%) ridership gainand $4,000 (1.4%)revenue gain. The fare structure is provided in Figure 13.

Figure13 Scenario 5 Fare Structure

Cash — Trip withinone zone $1 ¥ $0.50

Cash —Trip across two zones $1 $0.50

Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $5 ‘ $2.50
routes ' :

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1 | $0.50

Monthly Pass $30 ‘ $20

Cash — Trip within one zone $1 $0.50

Cash - Trip across two zones $5 $2.50

[ ¢d1/88 Cash —~ Trip across three zones $8 54

PDX one-way $15 $7.50

PDX round-trip $30 $15

Cash one zone $8 $4

Cash multi-zone $12 $12

Nelson\NygaardConsulting Associatesinc. | 16

235



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 6: ImplementLow-Income Fare Program

This scenarioevaluated the ridershipand revenue impacts of implementing a low-income fare programin
the region. Offeringa low-income fare category is another method formakingtransita more affordable
transportation option. This scenario analyzes the impacts of offeringa halffare discount to eligible adults
making up to200% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL). This scenario assumes that 35% of eligible riders
would actually use the low-income fare program—the observed usage rate forthe ORCA Liftlow-income
fare programin Seattle, WA. Offering a low-income discount program with a threshold at200% FPLis
the current industrystandard (although 150% FPLis also being used). The revision of the TCTD fare
structureis estimated toresultin a 3,000 (2.1%)ridership gain and $19,000 (-7.0%) revenue loss. The
fare structureis provided in Figure 14.

Figure 14 Scenario 6 Fare Structure

- Reduced Fare/
Low Income

Cash —Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash — Trip across two zones $3 $1.50

Deviated -
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $4.50 $2.25
routes E

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75

. Monthly Pass $40 $30

Cash —Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash - Trip across two zones $3 $1.50

intercity Cash —~Trip across three zones 36 $3

PDX one-way $15 $7.50

" PDX round-trip $20 $10

Cash one zone %4 $2

Cash multi-zone $12.5 $125

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 17

23l



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tilamoock County Transportafion District

Scenario 7: Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare

This scenarioevaluated the potential ridership and revenue impacts for implementinga mileage-based
fare for Dial-a-Ride service. This scenario would eliminate the existing Dial-a-Ride zones and offera
combined fixed-fare with a variable fare based on distance. This scenario takes an iterative approach to
adjusting fares. The analyzed scenario assumesa fare of $4 for the first five miles of travel, with $1 per
mile charged afterthat. This scenario does nothave any changes associated with deviated fixed-route or
intercity service. The revision ofthe TCTD fare structureis estimated to result in no change to ridership
and a $6,000 (2.1%) revenue gain. The fare structureis provided in Figure 15.

Figure 15 Scenario 7 Fare Structure

Deviated-fixed
routes

No change in current fare structure

Cash one zone

No change in current fare structure

%4 the first 5 miles, $2 the first 5 miles,
After $1 additional per mile  After $0.50 additional per mile

Dial-a-ride

Cash multi-zone

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 18

131



PUBLIC AND STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH: INITIAL FARE PROPOSAL

(WINTER 2020)

A publicsurveywas conducted between January 11-31, 2021 to obtain initialinput on the fare proposal.
There were 77responses. On March 2, 2021 a follow up focus group meetingwasheld with stakeholders
tosolicit their feedback, particularly on proposed changes where supportin the public survey was mixed
or not in favor of the original proposal. Figure 21 and Figure 22 summarize the existing fare or policy, the
proposed fare orpolicy change (asrevised based on survey and/orfocus group input), and key changes

FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transpartation District

that were made in response to theinput.

Input on Initial Fare Proposal

Key highlightsinclude:

= 86% of peoplewhoresponded to the surveylive in Tillamook County; 55%live in Central County
(including 44% wholivein Tillamook), 21% in North County,and 10%in South County. (See

Figure 16).

Figure16 Survey RespondentLocations

] County City Zip # % | Total%

Clatsop County Seaside 97138 1 1%

North Tillamook County | Manzanita 97130 1 1%
Rockaway Beach 97136 7 10%
Nehalem 97131 2 3% 21%
Wheeler 97147 2 3%
Garibaldi 97118 3 4%

Central Tilamook County | Bay City 97107 3 4%
Tillamook 97141 31 44% 55%
Netarts 97143 4 6%
Netarts 97141 1 1%

South Tillamook County | Neskowin 97148 1 1%
Hebo 97122 2 3% 10%
Cloverdale 97112 4 6%

Grand Ronde 1 1%

Yamhill County 1 1%

Marion County 1 1%

Multnomah County 2 3%

Clackamas County 1 1%

Washington County 3 4%

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 19




FAREANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tilamook County Transportafion District

People whoresponded to the survey ride a broad re presentation of The Wave fixed-routes (see
Figure 17), and Dial-A-Ride users were re presented across the three Dial-A-Ride fare zones.

Figure17 Routes Used by Survey Respondents

Route 3; Tillamook-Manzanita-Cannon Beach

Which of The Wave's fixed-route transit services do
you use? (Check all that apply)

Route 70X: Grand Ronde - Salem P %

Route 60X: Lincaln City - Salem

36

Route 5: Tillamook-Partiand (Coastliner) ]

Route 4: Tillamook-Lincoln City

23 |

Route 2: Tillamook-Oceanside-Netarts i
Route 1: Tillamook Town Loop | l | . [ 38 ‘
N=69 O:% 1 (3% 2(5% 36% 46% 56% 60% |

92% of peoplewho respondedto the surveyfeel The Wave service is affordable.

The following proposals received strong supportin the survey:

80% supported makingreduced faresavailable to lower income personsand
disabled veterans, comparedto 11% did notsupportthe change. Reduced fares foradult
passengers are currently available for seniors (60+) and persons with disabilities (except
Route 5). Medicare/Medicaid (Oregon Health Plan)card holderswould be eligible underthe
proposal. A consideration discussed with stakeholdersis that the Oregon Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) includesimproving service to low-income
individuals (earningless than200% ofthe federal povertylevel)as one ofits criteria; TCTD
could use fundsfrom this programto help offset the costs of reducing fares forlow-income
individuals.

67% supported lowering monthlypass costs from $40to $30, andthe reduced month
passfrom $30to $20, compared to 14% whodid not support the change.

63% supportedsimplifyingin-countyfaresby charginga $1single-ride flatfare
(nofare zones), compared to 17% who did notsupport the change

59% supported charging $2 for deviations on Routes 1,2, 3, and 4, comparedto
23% who did not support the change.

60% supportedmaking faresfree for children (age 0-12) and youth (age 13-18)
on in-county service, compared to 17%who did notsupport the change. Based on input
from stakeholders (aswell as best practices from other areas), drivers may request middle
school andhighschoolstudent ID for age verification; an alternative form of identification
could be provided toyouthwho arehome schooled or attend alternative schoolsthat do not
providea studentID. A consideration discussed with stakeholders is thatthe Oregon STIF
program includesimprovingservice to students in grades9-12 as one of its criteria; TCTD
could use fundsfrom this program to help offsetthe costs of providing free rides for youth.

58% supported moving toa mileage-based Dial-A-Ride fare and eliminating Dial-A-
Ridefarezones, comparedto 21% whodid not support the change. The base fare would not

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 20

159



FAREANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportaton District

change,butwould only cover the first five miles. There wouldbe an additional 50 cent charge
permile after thefirst five miles. TCTD has capabilitiesto let passengers find out the fare
when theyreserve theirtrip, by calling the dispatch center or using mobile or self-service
online orsmartphone applications.,

For out-of-countytrips on Routes 60X and 70X (where Grand Ronde and/or Siletztribal
members ride free, because the tribes help fund the service):

o 70% supported offeringa $5 flat fare, with a $2.50reduced fare.

o 64% supported offeringa 10-trip pass for $45, with a $22.50 reduced fare.

Proposalswith more mixed supportincluded:

A slightmajority (52%) of peopleresponding to the survey supported including
out-of-countytripsto Cannon Beach (Route 3) and Lincoln City (Route 4) in the
flatfare (and youth would also be able to ride to theselocations for free), while
48% did not supportthe change (a “Not Sure” optionwas not provide for this question).
However, focusgroup participants strongly supported the proposal, since TCTD is part of the
NW Connector Alliance thatincludes Clatsop and Lincoln Countiesand it would keepfares
simplerforridersand forbus drivers.

The proposalthatreceived theleast support was eliminating the round-tripfare on
Route 5 (Tillamook-Portland). As shown in Figure 18, only 27% supported the proposal while
50%did not support it. The round trip fare costs $20 comparedto a $15 one-wayticket. The
initial proposal was to offera 10-ride passfor $13.50 each way.

Peoplewith lowerincomeswere only slightlylesslikely to supportthe change; among people
whodid not support the change, 50% earnless than $25,000 peryear, while among people
who supported the change 40% earnless than $25,000peryear.

In discussing the change withstakeholders, one concernwasthe potential revenue impact
associated with keeping a steeply discounted round trip fare.In addition, fareson other
services between the Oregon coast and Portland were reviewed and are similarto the current
fare. In comparisonto the 75-mile trip from Tillamook to Portland:

o SunsetEmpire Transit District charges $15 forthe 95-mile Astoria to Portland trip on the
Lower Columbia Connector route; Northwest Point charges $15 to $18 for this trip (via
US26).

o BentonCountycharges $10 fora shorter 60-mile Coastto Valley Albany-Newport service
($7 discounted) but is planningto lowerthe fare to $5.

The revised proposal reflected in the recommendation is to eliminate the round trip fare, but
reduce costof proposed 10-trip discount pass to $120($12 each way).

In addition, thediscount policies for Route 5 were clarified: Children (age 0-12) ride free with
an adult, youth (age 13-18) pay half-fare. No other fare discountsare offered.

Nelson'\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 21



FAREANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tilamock County Transportation District

Figure18 Survey Results for Route 5 Preliminary Fare Proposal, January 2020

Do you support the proposed changes to Route 5 fares?

60%
50%
50% -
40% -
30% - nYes
uNo
20% =Not Sure

10% +

0%
Eliminate the round-trip fare, but Offer a 10-ride pass for $135, with
N=54 offer a 10-ride pass. a $67.50 reduced fare.

Other Survey Highlights

= Interestin mobileticketing: Most respondents expressed interestin mobile ticketingto pay
for bus fares. Allbutthreerespondents had internetaccesson either their smart phone orat
home. This is nota surprising result given that the survey was completed online, but way not be
representative. However, thereis a trend towardsincreasing adoption of high-speed internet
access athomeandsmartphonein ruralareas.: A surprising resultswas that 35% of people
respondingto the survey did not have a credit card; there was no clear correlation with income or
age. Followup surveysshould ask about debit cards (which could also sup port mobile ticketing).

Figure 19 Survey Results: Interestin Mobile Ticketing

90%
0,
80% 8% 74%
70% A7%
60% -
50%
40% -
30%
20%
10%

0% - T T )
| have a smartphone [ have a credit card | would be willing to | have internet
with internet access download an mobile  access at home

phone application to

N=54 pay bus fares

Uhttps:/ /www.pewresearch.ora/fact-tank /2019/05/31/diaital- gap-between-rurat-and-nonrural-ame rica-pe rsists /

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 22 24 (



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

* Optionstomakeitmoreconvenientto payfares: Buying passes atlocalstores(e.g., Fred
Meyer, Sateway), providing a kioskwitha creditcard reader at the transit center,and support for
mobile ticketing were the top three choices among a set of options, although a change machine at
the transitcenter was the third choice among overa quarter of people who responded. (People
were askedtorank the options.)

Figure 20 Survey Results: Options to Make Buying Fares More Convenient

35%
30%
25%
20% -
15%. ¢ = Top Priority
10% ® Second Priority
59 - 2 Third Priority
0% +— : J
Buy atlocal Kiosk with Use a Buy online- Change
stores (such credit card mobile  sentbymail machine at
as Fred readeratthe phone Transit
Meyer)?  Tillamook application Center
Transit
N=59 Center

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 23 ZLI"Z



2 | ol seyeossy Bugnsunn) pleeBANUOsaN

elef-(n) Buided yinpe e yim Bl L ,, ‘AU (I [e91 L BPUOY PUBLS) Uiim 8814 8PIH X0/ ‘(i [BQU . ZIGIS J0 BPUCY PUBJS) I 88J) 8PIY X049, :SBION

siapjoy p1ed (dHO)
abueyo oN pleaipapy/aseaipapy snid saiigesip yum adoad '(+0g) sJolusg saiiqesip yym sjdoad '(+0g) ssoluag - apiy-y-elg
Adde,uop sase) paonpal 13y)0 ey paie|) (UnoAiusipyya puokaq) SJUNOoSIp [EUOHIPPE ON S}unoosIp |eUCNIPPE ON G anoy
abueyo oN X0Z 'X09 9Inoy Aoz
sJapjoy pJes (dHO) (X0Z 'X09 ‘G 53100y uosdiy S8Jn0y
sBueyoop | suosiad awooul-iamo| oy saleypaonpasiioddns %08 pleaipapy/a edipa snid sanmgestp uym sidoad ‘(+09) siojuss sanqesip ym sjdosd ‘(+0g) siousg AJunod-u pue) - s8N0y | -paxi4 pajeinaqg npy
abueyooN i 3 Spiy-v-lelq
alej-jey
81.-9 abe ynoAsualp(iys ‘s-0 abe uaipyo
abueyoon alejjiey (8L-g 1) WNoA [euonippe ‘894 -0 aBe piys sy X0 *X09 8oy
abueyo oy JINPe Lyim 934 (Japun pue z ) uaippyo g ajnoy Rz
“anyioddns ABUOLS SIBPIOYSKEIS ' LIROA O} Be SUOEIASP 3pNjoUIJou S30p {uoeIYIBA J0f pRjsanbal ) aseyey
SI8pI0YaYENS Y Buninsucd Joye | seu Buipuslxainoge ainsun ajdoad sLuos ‘sjustuwos | WAPMIS 1004dS YBiy/aIpPI ‘adiAes Aunoo-ul uo sy (g} 1) YINOA }1-G 8B uaspfiy Jo y-p abe uaipiyd | (X0Z 'X09 'S SaIN0Y uo sy s3I0y
a4e} 1B Ul AjiQ UL pUE YIESE LOUUE D PAUIE)aY | WO paseq Aunod-ul saJe) ynoA/piyo 8al Joddns %09 ANPe LM 834 (19pUN PUE Z 1) USIPIYD [euonippe ‘891 -0 8Be pydIsd | Aunoo-uipue)p-| seinoy | -paxi4 pajemaq | WNOA/LPIUD

Jpetjipow sem fesodosd moy ndu) Bployasels/pue Asaing aijgng tAepois| i1 moH 99|AI88 * adk) aieq

ndu| 1apjoysyeis puedijgnd jo LewWNg sai1|od unoasiq pasodoid pue Bunsixg Zzainbiy

abueya oN i - 08/ 528 - 08/ 52% ssed AeQ-Z/g J0J08UL0D sainoy Iy _ Ssed JOUSIA
sbueyaoN b pajeuLiy Aug sdis| jeapspy - 05¢LS Aunoo uyum suoz-Hny
] 9|l Jad abseya [euonippe
W [euagippe |euoiyppe sad U saw g oy dn asey aseq
abueyooN Hoddns g5 | Jad sjusagg+zg | SUe0Q5+pE | 'Aunoo uiyym paseq-sbesyy 4 4] apiy-vy-ela
B dd [ -
SDUEYD ON 10dans %y9 05°2Z8 Srs$ S5€d 9pIy-01 apUOY PUEID - WaleS
,Slaquew X0 ‘wojes - Ao
abueyo o voddns %0, 0528 ety Aunog-jo-ng [equyiojaeid4 | €$-0518-52'08 9%-£5-09'1$ sauozg-g-| UjoauT X 09 sanoy
0718 01 GE1$ 1041500 paonpay et ALg ¥ 0zk$ S5 8PIY-0L — : |
1500 ssed duj-0|, paanpaJing ‘abueys oy oph08 N : pojeuiy VIN 0z8 du] puncy -
AuoyinoA Jogaies paonpay {Aluo yinok) gg°/$ S1$ Aep-oup VIN 513 fem-eup | -sjoowey| G oy
abuetdoN 05'0% 1§ Aunoy-u| SL0% 05°18 (suoz 8uo) funogy-u| X0 'X09 ‘G 9inoy Ayosspuy
abueya oy - 028 sseqsuoteinaq du] -0 I T : I A1 uooury
-)ooWel L 'y 8oy
abueyoon }ioddns 9.9 028 0e$ ssedALUop 0e$ or ssed Ayjuopy yoeag
abueyoon - £ SuceInap oU 'ssed Aleq G208 051 sseqAleqdooqumoy | UOUUBD - BJUBZUBHY
abueyoo oddns o, - d .
W ON Hoddns 9,66 4 (oJe)ey) sdu| pajeneq SHEIBN - 3PISURR00
siapjoyayels it F._u_m: (yoeag uouue) —O0WEl | °Z 8Inoy sanoy
Uit Buginsuod Jaye a.eyjey ui I Joddis 8525 ‘A1 yoou] ‘g-4 sauoz dooumo) -paxi4
A0 ujoour pue yaesg uouued paule1ay ie12r0 a.e) Je Joddns %69 0508 1§ (81))e14) BIN0Y-UO 522$-05'1$-62'08 | Aunos-w)suoziad gL £-Z-| s8U07 HOOWEY1L '} BIN0Y pajenaq
aie4pasnpay aie4|ing adf) aseq S3I0N ~ ale4pasnpay aled|Ing | adk) asey
poJIpOtl SEM [esodosd mo du| 3 qng B2.4N0 |2 0 paseqpasiaal) pasodoid 5] 1 EpO 0 ainoy R INE

nd u| Japioyse)s pue dlgng jo Alewwing ‘sase 4 pasodosd pue Bujsixg 1zainbig

j0usig uniepodsue | AJBN07) YOOLLER |
FLVAAN LDACOB4SISATYNY 3V

243



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tilamook County Transportation District

FARE STRUCTURE AND POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

This chapter culminates the findings from the existing conditions analysis, peer reviewand best practices,
and fare modeling effort to establish a setof fare policy, pricing, and product recommendations for TCTD.
The recommendationsin this sectionare divided into two categories:

»  FareStructure Recommendations: Recommendationsto specific fare products offered to
the ridingpublicand pricing of those products.

= FarePolicy Recommendations: Recommendationsrelated to internally-adopted policies or
procedures suchas fare collection.

Fare recommendations for TCTD are comprised of fare structure changes and policy recommendations.
This section provides a summary of recommendationsdeveloped as partof the fare analysis. The
recommended fare structureis provided in Figure 23.

Figure 23 Recommended Fare Structure

+ On-route trips: $1

Flat fare (Routes 1-4) Deviated trips: $2

+ On-route trips: $0.50

. _ : Daily Pass e i
Devua?ed fixed routes (no deviations allowed) $-3 N!A 1
Intercity

Monthly Pass $30 $20

(no deviations allowed)
10-trip Deviation Pass $20 N/A
Trip In-County $1 $0.50

* Route 5: $15 * Route 5: $7.50 (youth only)

Trip Out-of-County Route 60X/70X: $5 + Route 60X/70X: $2.50

Intercity

Route 5: $120
Route 60X/70X: $45

Route 5: $60 (youth only)

10-trip Intercity Rass Route 60X/70X: $22.50

Mileage-based fare $4 the first 5 miles, $2 the first 5 miles,

Diai-a-fide within area of service  $0.50 per additional mile  $0.50 per additional mile

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 25



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Fare Structure Summary
Figure 24 TCTD Deviated Fixed-Route Service

Deviated Fixed-Route |
= Goals:

- Simplifyfare structure

— Incentivizenew
ridership

]

- Alignslocal fare with
regional peers (SETD)

& Pricing:
—  $iflat-fareforroutes -4
(on-routetrips)

~  $3dailypass (onlyon-
route trips)

- $30monthlypass(only
on-routetrips)

®=  Pricing - Deviations:
—  $2 flat fare fordeviated
trips
~  $2010-trip pass for
deviatedtrips

PR,

Intercity

= Goals:

— Streamline fare structure
acrossallintercityroutes  Figure25  TCTD Intercity Service

-~ Balancebetween revenue ]
and ridership

— Easytocommunicateto
riders

= Pricing:
-~ $1fortrips within
Tillamook County

- $5for trips out-of-county
(Route 60x/70%)

- $i5fortrips out-of-county
(Route 5)

— 10-trip passavailableat
10%-20% discount

o $45for Route
60X/70X

o $120for Route 5

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 26 24 5



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tilamook County Transportation District

Dial-a-Ride
v Goals:
— Balancerevenue andridership

—  Provide flexibility forlonger tripswhile keeping most shorter trips at current cost
= Mileage-basedfare

—  $4for all one~-way tripsup to 5 miles
— Additional $0.50permileafterfirst5 miles

Figure 26 Dial-a-Ride Proposed Fare Examples

Recommended Fare

Trip Current Change
1¥iaia00e Fale Base Fare Adfmnonai Total Fare
Mileage
North County Manzanita Wheeler 5 miles $4 $4 30 $4 0%
Central County Cape Meares Tillamook 8 miles $4 $4 $1.50 $5.50 38%
North to Central County  Garibaldi Tillamook 10 miles $12.50 34 $2.50 $6.50 -48%
South County Pacific City Beaver 12 miles $4 $4 $3.50 $7.50 88%
South to Central County  Tierra del Mar Tillamook 21 miles $12.50 4 38 $12 -4%

Discount Policies

Deviated Fixed-Route
®  Child/Youth(o-18 years): Free on in-county service
— Doesnot extend to out-of-countyintercity, deviations, or Dial-a-Ride

— Middleschool and high school student ID will be re quested for verification

= Seniors (60+), people with disabilities, Medicare/Medicaid (OHP) card holders: half fare for
single-ride and 10-trip passes; $ 10 off deviated-fixed route monthly pass cost

= Nodiscountsprovided:

— Daypass
— Visitorpass (future policy will offer discount for youth using visitor pass)
— Deviations
Intercity
= Routes

- Child/Youth: 12 and under free with anadult; 13-18 years half-fare
- Noadditional discounts provided

= Route 60X/70X
- Child/Youth: 12 and under free with anadult; 13-18 years half-fare

—  Seniors (60+), people with disabilities, Medicare/Medicaid (OHP) card holders: halffare for
single-ride and 10-trip passes

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 27 2 4 Lp



FARE ANALYSISPROJECT UPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District
Dial-a-Ride
= Child/Youth: 12 and under free with anadult; 13-18 years half-fare
= Seniors (60+), people with disabilities, Medicare/Medicaid (OHP) card holders: half of basefare
= Nodiscounton additionalpermile fare afterfirst 5 miles

Ridership and Revenue Impacts

As discussed previously, consumption of transit—like othergoodsand services—reactsto cost. Significant
research over time hasexamined the sensitivity of transit ridership to fare increases. The anticipated
ridership and revenue impacts for TCTD are shownin Figure 27 and Figure 28. Fare structure
recommendations are estimated to result in anannual 1,800 (1.3%)ridership gain and $29,000 (-10.3%)
revenueloss.

Figure 27 Total Ridership and Revenuelmpacts of Recommended Fare Structure

B l@nge in Ridership = Change in Revenue |

Scenario Recommendations
10,000 A

5,000 A 1,800
0 -
-5,000
-10,000
-15,000
-20,000 1
-25,000 1
-30,000 -
-35,000 -

-$29,000

Figure 28 Percent Ridership and Revenuelmpacts of Recommended Fare Structure

[ & Change in Ridership  ® Change in Reve_nue |

Scenario Recommendations

5% A
1.3%

0% -

5%

-10% -

-10.3%

-16% A

-20% -

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 28

247



FAREANALYSISPROJECTUPDATE
Tillamook County Transportation District

Policy Recommendations

In conjunction with fare structure recommendations, it is recommended that TCTD offer more ways to
purchase fare products, streamline passenger materials, establish formal guidelines for fare adjustments,
and continue coordinationwith regional providers. These policiesare described in greater detail below.

Offer More Ways to Purchase Fare Products
Implement Mobile Ticketing and Online Ticket Sales

Mobile ticketing is an emerging technology option thatis rapid